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2241 Our results

Savills is a global real estate services provider listed on the
London Stock Exchange. We have an international network

of over 200 offices and associates throughout the Americas,
the UK, Continental Europe, Asia Pacific, Africa and the Middle
East, offering a broad range of specialist advisory, management
and transactional services to clients all over the world.

Our people combine entrepreneurial spirt and a deep
understanding of specialist property sectors with the

highest standards of client care.

Reported results
Revenue Undertying basic eamings per share
2009 £560 ?m) (2009 14 5p)

Underying profit before tax*

£47.3m

{2009 £252m)

Total dvdend per share

13.0p

{2009, 2 0p)

“Underiying profit is calautated by adgssting reported pre tax profit for profitioss
on deposals share-basaed payment adprstment and imparment and amortsabon
of goodwill and ntangibles {axchkdng sof twared

Find out more...

Graphic removed

Graphie
removed

Shareholders’ funds

£209.1m

{2009 £1977m)

Savils website
www savils com

Savils Apps avalabl for
ne®
Pa®
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Key performance indicators
We am to serve our clients better than the competiion

Our governance

by providing them with a wide range of services Board of Drectors 22

across the diverse geographical locations in which gg%m Board 32

they operate Corporats Governancs report 27
Remunerabion report 32

Revenue £6770m Directors’ responsibilites 40
Independent auditors’ report 41

Undertying profit £47 3m

Operaiing margin 54%

Operating cash generation £68 4m

Underlyng earmings per share 279D Gonoolited Siamen of comprehensve noame e

Geographical spread (% non-UK) 51%  Consolidated and Company statments of financial postton 44

Breadth of service offerngs Sonsojdlatad stalemerti of changas eguw -

mpany ment of changes in equ

(% non-transactonal income) 60%  Consolidated and Compary staternents of cash flows 47

Assets under management £280n  gores o hefranaal staments s

Property under management (sq fi) 1,305m

Qur people

The best people in the inclustry

Our success has been bult on providing
an environment which attracts and raphic
retans the best people in our ndustry rermoved
We value and reward nnovation and

entrepreneunalism and are proud of a

cutture which encourages our people Graphe Graphe
to continually seek out new markets, Graphic removed s
opportunies and solutons for our clents removed
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Group overview

We operate on a global scale. ..

Through our intemational network of over 200 offices
and associates, we offer a range of expertise which
covers all the key segments of residential, office,
industrial, retall, leisure, healthcare, rural and hotel
property, and mixed use developrment schemes
Through Cordea Savills we also offer specialist

fund and investment management capabilties.

21,688

employees globally

200

intermational offices

Unrted States
Revenue
£3.1m

Officas 6 Total staff 34

...and offer a full range of services

Transacton Advisory Financial Senvices
The Transacton Advisory business strearm Mortgage brokang, financial planning
compnses commercial, resdental, agneultural  and corporate finance advice
agency and Investment advice on purchases Seapaga 13
and sales
Sce page 10 Fund Management
Investrnent management of commencal

and residental property portichos for
Provision of a wide range of professional Insttutonal or p?rofessmgﬁmestors,
property services inciuding valuation, buiding o a pooled or segregated account basis
consultancy, environmental consultancy, See page 13
landiord and tenant, rating, planning, strategic
projects and research
See page 11

Property and Faciiies Management
Management of commercial, residental and
agncultural property for owners Provision of a
comprehensive range of services 1o occupiers
of property, ranging from strategic advice
through project management to all services
relating to a bulding

Sea page 12

Graphic removed

United Kingdom

Revenue

£333.3m

Offices 94 Total staff 3 222

Graphic mmoved
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Continental Europe Asia Pacific
Revenue Revenue
£60.9m £279./m
Offices 51 Total staff 692 Offices 44 Total staff 17640

Graphic removed
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Charrman'’s statement
Resuitts

The Group's undertying profit before tax for the year increased by
88% to £473m (2009 £25 2m), on revenue which improved by 21%
o £8770m 2009 £560 7m) The Group's reportad profit before tax
Increased by 173% to £36 8m (2009 £13 5m)

Graphic removed Overview

The real estats markets in Asia, which had begun to mprove
substantaly in the second half of 2009, culmimnated in a record
performance from our Asia Pacific business in 2010 In addibon,

the London Prme Residential market remained strong for longer
than we anticipated and the London Commercial market contnued
fo attract signficant Nflows of both domestic and mitematonal capital
in Contnental Europea our restructunng actvites of the last 18 months

Havng coped with the downturn of e et our plans. Cordas Sel, e Grous At Manogement
2008/ 09’ 2010 was CharaCtensed, business improved its performanc'e In the first year of Sawils ful
by the record performance of Savills ownership exhibiting significant success In investing core funds despite
Transaction Advisory business in Asia Qompetive marksts.

i Qur non-fransactional businesses performed as anticipated aganst
Pacific anq COﬂl'[] nued strengﬂw ln. e the backdrop of contnung pressure on margins in most markets
Prme Residential and Commercial W continued 1 buld the Property Management business, with the
Mmarkets of London. recruitment of senior managers in the UK and France and significant

operational rvestrnent under way In Asia Pacific

The economic mpact of the Chinese real estate markat has been
the subject of much commentary dunng the yeer, alongside the
progressive control measures imposed since March 2010 by the
Chinese Govemment [t 1s too early fo predict the outcome of such
measures but China remains a key focus for Savlls current and future
growth plans To this end, In December 2010, we brought our
established businesses In Hong Kong and Mainland China under the
single leadership of Raymond Lee, who to date has been the head of
our operations In Hong Kong Given the importance of Greater China
to Savlls future prospects, Raymond also pined the Group Executive
Board with effect from January 2011

Dunng the year we made a number of acquisitons to accelerate
Implementation of our strategy or t© IMprove our service offenng to
clients These nchide the acausiion of the minonty nterest in Cordea
Sawvills, the Group's Fund Management business, in order to aid the
development of that business In lIne with our sirategic Intent to grow
fund management. We also acquired Incoll Group Pty Ltd, an
Australian Project Management business, to build on our capabilites
Inthis area Sirce the year end we have acquired Thomas Dawvidson
& Partners, a UK Agency focused on the retall sector in London,

and Stadsmuren A.B, a proparty, project and facilites management
business IN Sweclan, which complements our exising investment
agency actvibes In the region
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Dstribution of profits

Bunng the year, the Board conducted a review of its approach to
dvidends in order to establish a distnbution polcy which might better
stand the test of tme and cyclical real estate markets In so doing we
considered the mpact of anumber of Issues such as the degree of
‘maintainability’ of Samills vanous different profit streams, the Group's
overal exposure to cyclical Transaction Advisory profits and the
reguirement to mantain a certan levet of cash resource for working
capital and corporate development purposes. Added to this, was
our desire to ensure that the total distribusion to shareholders could
be better geared to Transacton Advisory profits Ina way that a
progressive dwvidend policy alone cannct accomplish

In future the Board Intends to recommend a progressive ordinary
dvidend broadly reflectng the growth in profits denved from our less
volatle businesses The ordinary dividend would nomally be pad at
the rate of one third as an intenm dividend and two thirds as a final
dvdend In addibon, when profits from the cyclical Transacton
Adwisory business are strong, the Board will consider and, if
appropnate, declare a 'supplemental’ Intenm dividend alongside the
final ordinary dvidend The value of any such supplementa dwvidend
will not be progressive and will vary depending on the performance of
the Group's Transacton Advisory business and the Group's anticipated
working capital and corporate development requirements through the
cycle Itisintended that, n normal circumstances, the combined value
of the ordinary and any supplemental dvidend payable in respect of
any year 1s covered at least 15 times by statutory eamings per share
ancl/or at least 2 0 tmes by underlying eamings per share

Aninial intenm dvidend of 3p (net) per share amountng to £3 7m
(2009 3p) was pad on 25 October 2010, and an ordinary final
dmdend of 6p (2009 8p) 1s recommended for the year Inadditon,
a supplemental Intenm dividend of 4p (2009 nil} is declared

Taken together, the ordinary and supplermental dvidends compnse
an aggregate distnbuton for the year of 13p per share representing
an increase of 44% on 2009's uncovered aggregate dwdend of 9p
The final ordinary dvidend of Bp per crdinary share will, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the Group's Annual General Meeting

on 4 May 2011, be pad alongside the supplemental intenm dvdend
of 4p per share on 16 May 2011 1o sharsholders on the register at
8 Apnit 2011

Board and management

During the course of the year, we have made a number of changes to
our ntemal govemance structure to help us better deliver our strategy

In January 2010, we announced the restructunng of the Board of
Sauvils ple, which now comprises the Non-Executive Directors, the
CEQ, CFO and myself as Charman The pke Board remans
responsble for the strategy of the Group and, while continuing to hold
management responsible for the delivery of our plans and operatonal
performance, has reshaped its agenda to focus on the achievement
of our strategic prionties

Qur govemance 22-41  Our residts 42-96

The Group Executive Board {GEB), under the Chaimanship of
Jeremy Helshy, the Group CEQ, compnses the Heads of our pnncipal
businessas who report directly to him, the Chief Executve of our
business In Greater China, the Group CFO and the Group Legal
Director & Company Secretary The remit of the GEB 1s to assist the
Board of Savills plc to define the Group Strategy, delver the strategc
pnonties and be accountable for operational performance

The Heads of the principal businesses continue t© meet with the pic
Board on a rotational basis to discuss the strategic development of
therr businesses

Pecple

On behalf of the Board, | wish 1o express my thanks to all our people
worldwide for thesr hard work and continued focus on client service
enabling the Group to deliver a strong set of results In recovenng
markets Overall, staff costs in the year, Including the cost of awards
under cur deferred share schemes, remaned within the range that
we expect for these costs over the cycle, of B08% 1o 65% of revenue

Outiook

in the near term 1t 1s unclear how markets will react in Iight of the recent
catastrophic events In Japan, particularly at a time of unprecedented
global economic and poliical change For the markets of Mainland
China, Hong Kong anc Singapore thess events come on top of
Government measures of the last twelve months 10 address property
specuiaton The longer term potental of cur Astan business remains
compelling, however at this stage, we continue o expect a reduced
volume of fransactions in the region In 2011

At the same tme we anticipate further recovery In the US and parts
of Continental Europe, some growth for the prme London Residental
and Commercial busnesses and contnusd growth in Fund
Management. AlthoLigh itis impassible 1 be certan in curent
crrcumstances, we anticipate that any slowdown in Asia should

be largely offset by improving performances elsewhere

QOur confidence In the longer tarm potenbal of our business is
reflected In the substantal ncrease in annual dvidend and our
new dndend palicy

Peter Smith
Chaiman
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Group Chief Executive’s review

Review of cperations

Graphc removed

We have made good progress in
implementing our strategy, investing

in both our transactional and
non-transactional businesses through
targeted recruitment and selective
acquisiions We are wel placed,
thanks to our core strengths in both
the Commercial and Prime Residential
sectors, to meet the developing needs
of our worldwide client base

Operating hghlights

Strong revenue performance dnven by recovery
of real estate transaction markets

Record performance from Asia Pacffic region

Continued strength N Prime London Residential
and Commercial markets

Signficarty mproved performance from
Continental Europe

Continued investment through recrutment and bott
on acquisiions

In 2010, Savils benefited from the strength of the recovery in
many of the world's real estate markets o register record reverue
of £6770m (2009 £560 7m), 21% ahead of the previous year
Our Asia Pacric business delvered an outstanding performance
and elsewhere the London pnme residential and commercial
markets remaned strong for most of the year The US and
Continental European busnesses performed as planned, with
the latter haling 1ts losses year on year in ine with our expectations
The combination of these performances enabled us to Increase
our undertying profit before tax (underying profit’) by 88% to
£473m (2009 £25 2m) On a statutory basis, profit before

tax increasad 173% to £36 8m (2009 £135m)

Sawills geographic and business diversity were key to achieving this
strong result Bulding on the performance of the previous year over
41% of Group revenue (2009 37%) denved from the dynamic markets
of the Asla Pacrfic region For the first time in our history, the UK market
represented less than half of Savills Group revenues at 48% (2000
51%) Globally, our residential estate agency business represanted

15 3% of reverue (2009 14 7%)

QOur revenue was significantly enhanced by the strength of our Prme
Commercial and Residental Transaction Advsory businesses which,
aken together, represented just under 40% of Group revenues 2000
35%) Property and Faciites Management represented 36% of
revenues (2009 38%) and Consultancy 20% (2009 219%).

This result reflects Sawvils strategy of having the financial strength to
retan the maonty of our capahiity In both the Pnma Residental and
Commercial Transachon Adwvisory marksts through the downitum, in
order 1o capitalise on the eventual recovery Alled to this we continue
o focus onand buid our more steble buaness streams such as consutancy,
property and faciites managemsnt and fund management

People

Dunng the year, we have continued to focus on growth through the
recruitment of teamis and individuals around the word Significant
addibons o our teams have been made across our business sreams
n New York, throughout Asia, In the UK and Continental Europe

It 15 both exciing and refreshing to bring In new talent, however
{am equally proud of the fact that across the workd many of our
businesses are led by senior professionals who have buik their
careers In this ndustry with Samills For those at the beginning of
thewr careers, lam delighted that Savlls UK business was awarded
the Times Graduate Recnuitment Award for Property, for the fourth
COPsacUlive year
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Key Performance Indicators

l-inancial KPls

Graphic rernoved Graphic removed
Graphic rermoved Graphic rermoved
Graphic removed Graphic removed

Non-financial KPls

Graphic removed Graphic removed

Graphic removed Graphic removed
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Group Chief Executive’s review

Segmental reviews

The Savils Group advises on commercial,
rural, residential and lessure property We
also provide corporate finance advics, fund
management and a range of property related
financial services. Operations are conducted
intermationally through five business streams.

Business dversification

Non-ransactorel business represents approxmately 35% of our
underiying profit. The growth of property management income,
now representing 36% of Group revenues, and the relative stability
of both Fund Management and the Consultancy business, together
compnsing 23%, show the benefit of a diversified strategy over

the course of the property cycle

Strong positions In both commercial and
residerttial markets

Wa believe that it isimportant io be a significant force In both
commertcial and residential property in our chosen markets
Expenence across the range of services we provide In both these
disciplines adds to the quality and depth of ouir service to clients
and differentates us from our compettors. By being sirong i both
markets, we can best serve the needs of developers, owners,
occupiers and invastors In the INcreasing gcbal trend toward
mixed use progects

Geographical diversification

Our ohyective I1s to mitggate the nsk of exposuire to any one economy
or market by being market leaders both in our domestic UK markets
and also In our selectad overseas markats In 2010 we saw the benefit
of this as the UK and Asia Pacific markets performed well at a tme
when recovery in the US and many Continental Eurcpean markets
rernaned subdued In 2010, £19% of Group revenues now come

from outside the UK led by Asia Pacific which accounted for 41%

of global revenue

Maintaining financal strength

We seek to mantan our financial srength in order to withstand
volatle market conditons and to take advantage of opporiunites

as they anse In a people business we do not belleve 1tis appropnate
1o take on material amounts of debt over the long term Rather we
mantain adequate banking faclites to meet short- and medium-term
requirements

Commitrment to our clenis

Throughout the cycle, we seek to serve our clents in the pnncipal
locatons Inwhich they operate by providing them with the services
that they require, This means that we have continued to build our
transachon advisory businesses IN Continental Europe and the LS
through the course of the downtum in those markets

Transaction Advisory

Graphics removed

Consuiltancy

Graphics removed
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Property Management Fund Management

Graphics removed Graphics removed

Financial Saivices

Graphics removed

"Underiving profit s calcutated by adjusting

reported pre-iax profit for excephonal tems profit/
less on dsposals, share-basad payment adustment
and mpaimment and amertsation of goodwill and
intangibles (exchuding software).
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Group Chief Executive’s review

Segmental reviews
Transaction Advisory

2010 2009 va
Revenue £m 2707 1975 +37%
Undertying profit before tax £m 308 63 +389%
Sawvills Transacbon businesses continued to recover well

dunng 2010 The lack of debt avalability remaned anissue N many
marksts, but the Group was wel placed o benefit from the
strengthering tquidity of the Residental and Commercial markets
In London and certain Asian ciies

UK Residental

The Pnme Residental market, where Savills 1s a market leader,
performed strongly throughout the year The Residental Transacton
Actvisory business Increased revenue by 22% to £86 8m (2009

£71 3m) pnmanly as a result of a strong performance from the London
and Home Counties markets The level of actvity in L.ondon contnued
to be significantly influsnced by oversaas buyers, for whom London's
market transparency, iquidity and poliscal stability represent an
attractive Investment destination In the broader pnme markst the
avallabiity of mortgage finance remanad a significant cbstacle for
buyers and transacton volumes reflected this With the values of the
best pnme central London properties having regained peak levels, as
anacipatad after strong gains sinca (1 2009, there was a somewhat
slower market in the second hatf of 2010 The pnme London postcodes
continue to be in demand and we aexpect that much of the broader
prime UK market will rernain somewhat slow through the first half of
2011, but should regain momentumn thereafter Although itis too earty
to forecast ther impact with certainty, the current pace of global politcal
and economic change reprasents both opporturity and nsk to this view

Cur New Homes busness had a superb year with revenues more than
doublng on 2009 as landmark Central London developments such
as One Hyde Park and the Lancasters came to market,

The Residental Transacton Advisory business recorded a 13%
Incraase In underlying profit to £13 3m 2008 £11 8m)

UK Commercal

Revenue from UK Commercial transactons increased by approxmately
35% to £48 2m 2009 £35 7m). Trading conditons continued to
Improve for much of the year Curing the first phase of the recovery the
UK market was heavily polansed with London performing well and
attracting significant demand from both domestc and overseas equity
By contrast, outside London, investment demand was more muted
reflecting concems over the economic fundamentals of the cccupier
market and continued lack of debt avallabiity Dunng 2010, the relative
lack of supply of pnme London assets catalysed ranewed interest in
high end regioral retall assets At the lower lot sizes, largely equity
backed investors also focused on well let regional office, hotel and
smaller retall assets.

Property Shanks House, Services Offered

Wincanton, Somerset National and Intemational marketing
Strategic and marketing advice prior

Shanks Housa s an exceptional to and during the sale process

Grade | Listed country manor house 5
As a result of a pint marketing campagn Localns
SomarsatitshireDorsal, South West

between the Saisbury office and Country otfices, London Country Department

Department, In London, considerable '

competton was generatad and confracts
nexcess of the gude pnce

of £5,500 000 withm two months of

coming to the open rmarket

Graphic removed

Dunng the year we were Instructed on a number of portfolio ransactons
coming to market, reflecting a greater genaral willingnsss from the
banks and cther owners 1o release assets Into a strengthening market.

The regional Occupational business in the UK improved over the year
as awhole as rents halted their decining trend of the past two years
The London City and West End offices market continued t© Improve
with significant take up dunng the year Rental values, partcularly

in London centinued 1o stengthen and the relatve lack of

developed supply led 1o a number of mothballed developments

being recommenced

Overall, buoyed by a strong Central London market, the UK
Commercial Transacton Advisory business increased its undertying
profit substantally to £7 7m @009 £1 2m)

Asia Pacffic Commercial

Tha Asia Pacfic Transaction Advisory business increased revenue by
76% to £85 5m (2009 £48 7m) in a record year for Sawills In the region
On a constant curency basis this represented growth of 68% year on
year The Hong Kong market continued to perform very strongly
throughout the year despits the progressive Implementation of
Government measures to dampen short-tarm speculaton Savils
coninued to strengthen its leadership posiion in this market,
increasing Transacton Advisory revenues substantally The high
volume of assets changing hands in the penod, and the comprassion
In capitalisation rates over the last 18 months, indicates that transacton
volumes are Iikaly to be at reduced levels n 2011 However at the start
of 2011 demand has remaned relatively high, but supply has becomne
somewhat tighter as investors in the region Increasingly adopt a ‘core’
strategy of buy and hold in respect of pnme assets Our businessas In
Singapare, Vietnam, Korea and Tawan all performed strongly showing
revenue growth of betwean 35% and 48% Owveral, the Asia Paaific
Transacton Advisory business recormded a 191% mprovernent in
undertying profit to £13 4m (2009 £4 8m). The increasa In undertying
profit N constant cumency was 178%
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Asia Pacfic Residential

The Residental Transacton Acvisory business in Asia 1s focused
prmariy on new developments and secondary sales and leasing of
pnme propertes N the region It excludes mixed use developments,
which represent a signdicant proportion of the region’s development
and are Included within the Commercial Transacton Adwvisory
business The maomy by revenue) of business 1s conducted in China
{including Hong Kong), Singapore, Vietnam and Australia, Overall the
Asia Pacific residental business grew revenues by 519% to £16 9m
(2009 £11 2m), and underiying profit to £4 3m (2009 £2 2m)

Contnental European Commercial

The Continental European Commercial business increased revenue by
appraximately 7% to £30 2m 2009 £28 3m}. In constant cumency

the undertying increase was 10% This was an improved performance
aganst a backdrop of continuaing uncertainty IN many countnes
Transachon Adwsory revenues ncreased IN the pnncipal markets of
Germany and France where we boosted our leasing capability through
recrutment. However we also enjoyed growth in other markests such
as Span, ltaly and Sweden as a result of some sgnificant transactons

The growth In revenues, togather with the beneficial effects of the last
two year's restructunng programme, combined o reduce substantally
our ksses in the Continental Europsan Transaction Advisory business
o €4 3m (2009 £9 6mloss).

US Commercal

The revenue of our New York based Investment Advisory business
Increased by 35% (constant currency' 35%) to £3 1m (2009 £2 3m).
US transaction markets began to recover, partcuarty dunng the
second half of 2010, and the pipeline of Investment advisory mandates
in place for 2011 was considerably mproved over the previous year
The undertying loss for 2010 was £3 8m (2009 loss £3 9m), reflecting
the impact of Increased revenues offset by contimued recrutment

cunng the penod

QOur govemance 22-41

Our reallis 42-56

Chert DekaBank

The W Uruon Square Hotel s a 270-room
huxury hotel located in the fashionable
Union Square area of Mxitown-South

Services Oftered

Savils served a5 exclusive financial
adwisor o DelaBank n the
restruciurng of he Hotel's outstanding
debt and arranged the sdle of

Consuttancy

2010 2005 -
Revenue £m 1342 1194 +12%
Underiying profit before tax £m 106 109 -3%

Our Consultancy businesses continued to face many challenges
related to the planning/development cycle, the nsing costs of
professtonal Indemnity insurance Including the investigation of clams,
and market pressure on fees These factors together wath the breadih
of our sarvices n mary markets ensured that overall consuitancy
profitabiity declned somewhat despite the higher level of reverue

Manhattan DekaBank's nterest In the property

to Host Hotels & Resorts DekaBank
recovarad 100% of its loan na
transaction that represented the highest
value per roorn during 2010 for an
operating holal ih New York City

Geographik: Locations

Savils L1 C provides investment sales,
debt and equity fhanong, advisory
and other refated senvices to clients
throughout the Unlted States, Mexdco
and the Caribbean Basn

Graphic removed

UK Consuttancy

Total revenue from UK consultancy services increased by 11% o
£975m (2009 £88 1m). Our Valuatons team grew Ifs revenue although
it continued to suffer from fee pressure Our Housing Investment
Consultancy and Buldng Consultancy feams continued to grow well
Qur Planning Consuitancy tsam coninued to suffer from lack of
revenue at this stage in the cycle 1o finigh 14% down on the previous
year However, the upturm in devsloper interest during the penod
should lead to improvements in 2011 The UK Constuitancy business
underlying profit n 2010 was £91m (2009 £9 2m)

Asa Paaific Corsuitancy

The Asia Pacific Consuttancy business grew revenue by 17% to

£26 3m (2009 £22 5m). This growth was pnmarlly associated with
Australia, Sngapore, Vietnarm and increéases in valuation business
outside Maniand China. In China the cost base of our Valuation
business Increased as we set up the Beijing office and revenue
remaned consistent with the previous year in a weakened IPO markst.

The effect of the abhove was to reduce underlying profit by 20% to
£16m (2009 £20m)

Continental European Consuttancy

Cur Continental European Consutancy business principally compnses
valuation senices, and accordingy faced similar challenges to its UK
counterpart. Revanue mproved 18% to £10 4m 2009 £8 8m),
however the spread of operations amongst the diffanng Continental
Buropean markets meant that profits in the more active markets such
as Gemmany, were outweighed by losses In the less actve markets
where we continue to mantain the strength of our valuaton presence
COverall this resuted In a boss of £0 1m (2009 loss £0 3m).
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Group Chief Executive’s review

Segmental reviews

Property” Grand Sorvos Chterod
Millernrium Plaza Private treaty

An Investrment sale transaction situeted  GeOgrREphIc Location
in Hong Kong s CBO dsstrict, the hote! Ceniral Hong Kong
benefits from its excellent accessibilty

1o &l modes of transport Shoppng,
restaurant and entertainment faciities
are within a few minutes’ walk.

Graphic removed

Property and Faciliies Management

Asia Pacific Property Management

Overall the business grew revenue by 18% to £151 Om 2000 £1276m)
which represanted a 13% increase on a constant currency basts, The
Property and Facilibes Management business 1s a significant strength
for Saviis in Asia, compiementing our Transachon Advisory businesses
in tha regron. The total square footage under management in the
region 1S approximately 877m sq ft (2009 775m sqg ft). Incoll Group Pty
Lid, the Australian project management business we acquired in
March 2010 contmbuted approximately £12m in revenue dunng the
nine months since ¢ was acqured and our Property Management
operatons in China Hong Kong, Thalland, Japan and Vietnam afl grew
therr businesses during the year Undertying profit grew by 27% o
£104m (2009 £8 2m).

Continental ELropean Property Management

In Continental Europe revenue declined by 12% to £20 3m 2000

£23 Om) which reprasented an 8% decrease In constant curency
Unprofitable business was not renewed and we made some strategic
recruitment, most notably In France The combination of these factors
reduced the underying loss for the year th £18m 2009 loss £2 7m)
By the year end the total area under management had increased to
49m sq ft {2000 47m sq ff)

Financial Services

2010 2009 e 2010 2000 +A-
Reverue €m 2437 27152 +13%  Revenua fm 94 12 ~16%
Undertying profit before tax £m 14 4 128 +14%  Underlyng loss before tax €m 19 29 +34%

Cur Property Management businesses continued to perform strongly,
growing revenue by 13% to £243 7m (2009 £215 2}in a competiive
market worldwide This business represented 36% of cur worldwide
revenues (2009 38%) and continued to provide us with a strong
revenue stream with refatively low volatiity

UK Property Management

Overall our UK Property Management teams, compnsing Commercial,
Residential and Rural, grew revenue by 12% to £72 4m (2009 £84 6m).
The core UK Commercial Property Management business made a
number of expansionary moves dunng the year Some 28 indmduals
including 5 directors were recruted, significantly improving our posiion
In both retall and business space property management; thisis
expecied to mprove revenue N 2011 In addibon, we made matenal
Investments in our IT systems The UK Commercial business grew Its
area under managamaeant by 5% 1o approximately 78m sq ft @009

74m sqft) Qur Residential and Rural Estate Management business
marginally increased revenues year on year Overall the short-term
effect of iInvestment and recrutment In the UK business reduced
undertying profit by 18% to £5 8m (2009 £71m)

Cwerall reverue from the Financial Services business declined by 16%
to £9 4m {2009 £11 2m) pnmanly reflecting the continuaton of &
suppressed UK mortgage market. In addibon Savlls Capital Adwisors,
acommercial advisory business, was restructured dunng the penod
to focus on dabt achisory work as part of the UK Commercial eam
The combination of reciuced revenue, and the net benefit of
restructunng over the previous perod, reduced the overalllosses -
of the business to £198m (2009 loss £2 3m.
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Qur govemance

Property: Manulfe Tower Servico Offered

A Private treaty
Agrade ‘A office bulkding stuated a few
steps fromthe Fortress Hil MTR Staton  Geographic Location

along the Victona Harbour coasthne North Ponit Hong Kong

The property compitees a gross area
of 395 839 sq % with 10 passenger Ifts
serving 41 floors

Graphic removed
Fund Management
2010 2000 e
Revenue £m 180 174 +3%
Undertying prefit before tax £m 34 29 A7%

Cordsa Savills revenue increased by 9% to £19 0m 2009 £174m)
pnmaniy as a result of Increased fes income from fransactions
reflecting the previous year's significant inflows of capital The future
ownership of the business was successfully resolved in March 2010
through Savills acquisiion of Cordea Sawvills management's 40%
interest. Dunng the year, Cordea Savills successfuly invested
approximately €500m in real estate assets across a number of pooled
funds and segregated mandates Investment nflows contnued wel,
partculary into the flagship funds (the UK Chanties Property Fund and
the Euro Commercial Fund for German investors) Indeed the Chantes
Property Furd marked its tenth anniversary with a latest annual return
of 19196 compared with tts IPD bench mark of 18 9% and finished the
year with a fund value of just under £400m and a running disinbution
yeld to Investors of 6 9%

Funds under management grew 129 organically to £2 8bn from
£2 5bn (13% on constant currency} and undertying profit Increased
by 17% to £3 4m (2009 £2 9m).

Property One Hyde Park Service Offerad

This development has created the ulbmate Markeing and Sales
London address for global biltonaresand ~ Geographi Location
cons:sts of 86 apartments ftcombines  London Hyde Park
world class apartrrents with an on-site

concierge service provided by the five star

hotel, Mandann Onental setting a new oty

standard in private amenties and leisure

taciites Completed sales so far fotal

over £900 millon and are expected to top

£1 bition by 31 March 2011

Graphic removed

Summary

Dunng 2010, | am pleased 1o report a strong performance by Savils,
dnven by a resurgence of Investment actkwty in pnme global marksets,
rmost notably N London and a number of Asian capitals 1t was also
encouraging to ses condiions improve In the US and the key French
and German markets, although the trend was not consistent across
all of Continental Europe

We have made good progress in mplementng our strategy, iInvestng
N both our transactional and non-ransactonal businessas through
targeted recrutment and selective acquisitions We are well placed,
thanks to our core strengths in both the Commercial and Prme
Residental sectors, to meet the developing needs of our workdwide
clent base

Jeremy Helsby
Croup Chief Executive
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Group Chief Financial Officer’s report

Financial review

Graphic removed

The continued strength of the

Group's Transaction Advisory
business, particularly in the UK and
Asia resulted in revenue for the year
increasing by approximately 21%

to £6770m (2009. £560.7m) which
represented growth of 19% in constant
currency. Undertying profit grew

by 88% to £47.3m (2009. £25.2m).

Financial highlights

Revenue of £6770 (2009 £5607m)

Undertying profit before tax £47 3m 2009 £25 2m)
Undertying basic eamings per share 27 9p (2009 14 5p)
Year end net cash £86 9m (2009 £66 3m)

Underyng profit margn

Undertying profit margin ncreased to 70% (2009 4 5%) reflecting
prncipally the effect of Increased Transacton Advisory profits and

a reduchon inlosses from owr Comtinental European business, offset
In part by contnued fee prassure in the Consultancy business and

Property Management.

Net interest

Net finance cost In the year was £10m (2009 £ni) Dunng a penod
of histoncally low Interest rates and expanded credit spreads this
pnmarily reflects the signficant differential between nterest recened
on surplus cash depoesits and interest paid on borrowings

Taxaton

The tax charge for the year ncreased to £11 7m 2009 £4.3m), largely
reflecting the ncrease In profits. The effective tax rate was 31 8%
{2009 319%). This 1s greater than the standard UK rate of corporation
tax primanly as & resut of the effect of non-deductible expenses and
mparment charges The underlying effective tax rate was 27 7%
(2009 28 6%).

Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share weare 20 50 (2009 73p). Adusting ona
consistent Basis for profits/losses on disposals, share-based payments
and amorisaton of ntangbie assets, undertying basic eamings per
share increased 92% to 279p (2008 145p)

Fully diuted earmings per share were 19 8p (2009 8 9p) The underiying
fully diuted eamings per share Increased by 96% to 270p 2009 13 8p)

Cash resources, bormrowings and liquidity

Year end gross cash and cash equivalents increased 19% to £97 2m
2009 £81 6m) reflecting improved profits and an Increase in capital
expenditure dunng the peniod

Gross borrowings at year end reciuced to £10 3m (2009 £153m)
These included £9 Om in respect of the US Dollar term loan, taken
out to finance the acguisiion of Samlls US in 2007, €0 7m in overdrafis
and £0 4m inloan notes In respect of previous acquisiions.

Cash is typicaly retained 1 a number of subsidarnes i order to
meet the requrements of commercial contracts or capital adequacy
In additon cash in certain temtones s retained o meet future
Investment requirements where to remit t, would necessitate the
Group sufferng withholding taxes
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The Group's cash flow profile 1s biased towards the second half of the
year This 1s as a result of seasonality trading and the major cash
outflows associated with dvidends, profit related bonus payments
and related payroll taxes in the first haff The Group cash inflow for the
year from operating actvties was £68 4m {2009 £39 7m), pnmarty
as a result of mproved trading In the Transachon Advisory business

As much of the Group's revenue s transactonal in nature and itisa
people busness, the Board's strategy s to mantan ow levels of
geanng, but retan sufficient crecit faclites to enable 1t to meet cash
requirements dunng the year and business development opportunites
as they anse After the ysar end the Group's £50m revoving credit
facility which was set to exprre this year was renewed for a further
three years to 31 March 2014 At the year end the Group had
undrawn facites, including overdrafts of £65 6m

Capital and shareholders' interests

Non-controlling irtarests representad aloss of £1.3m (2009 profit
£0 6m) reflecting losses i Burope and the LS which were no longer
coffset by the positive impact of the 40% nterest in Cordea Savills
LLP follewing its acquisition by the Group n March 2010

Durng the year ended 31 Decernber 2010, O 3 milion rew shares
were allotted to partcipants exercising therr options under the
Sawvlls Sharesave Scheme and no shares were repurchased for
cancelaton 2009 ). The total number of ordinary shares in
ssue at 31 December 2010 was 1321m (2009 131 8m).

Savils pension scheme

The funding level of the Sawills pension scheme IMproved dunng
the year through the nse In asset values, and as a consequence
of the Increased contnbutions and revaluahon of the abilibes Lpon
the closure of the schems o future service acerual n Apal 2010
The Plan defiat at ysar end amounted 1 £22 3m (2009 €37 7m).

Net assets

Net assets as at 31 December 2010 were £2091m (2008 £197 7m)
Goodwill and intangble assets remained in ine with the previous year
save for the acquisiton of Incoll, the Australian Project Management
business which increased goodwill by £76m less a £4 4m provision
for impaiment of the value of goodwil and ntangible assets relating
o the Group’s Investment N Theodors Schone Gmbh, a resdential
property management business N Hamburg The goodwill ansing

on the acquisition of the 40% minonty interest in Cordea Sawills,

2 business already controlled by the Group, was taken 0 reserves

Business development

Dunng the year the Group increased its shareholding in a number
of existing subsidianes such as our businesses In Singapore and
Cordea Savills, the Fund Management business Also, n March,
Sawlls Australia acquired Incoll Management Pty Lid, a Project
Management business in the region. The Group paid total
consideraton of £174m (2009 £72m) n the year
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Key perfomance ndicators

The Group uses a number of key performance indicators (KPls)

o measure its perfomance and review the Impact of management
strategies. These KPIs are detaled under the Key Performance
Indicators section of the Operating Review on page 7 The Group
continues to review the mix of KPls to ensure that these best measure
our perfomance aganst our strategic objectives, In both financial and
non-financial areas.

Firancal polices and nsk management

The Group has financial nsk management policies which cover
financial nsks considenad material to the Group's operatons and
results. These policies are subject to continuous review In hight of
developing regulation, accounting standards and practce
Compliance with these policies is mandatory for all Group
companies and is reviewed reguiarly by the Board

Treasury polices and objecives

The Group Treasury policy 1s designed to reduce the financial nsks
faced by the Group, which pnmanly relate to funding and bquadity,
interest rate exposure and cuency rate exposures The Group does
not engage In rades of a speculative nature and only uses denvative
financial Instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures

The Group's financial nstruments comprise bormowings, cash and
fiquid resources and vanous other tems such as trade recevables
and trade payables that anse directly from its operations

Interest rate nsk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained
profits and bank borrowings, at both fixed and floabng Interest raes
Borrowings 1ssued at vanable rates expose the Group cash flow to
nterest rate nsk, which s partally offset by cash held at vanable rates.
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the Group o far value
intargst rate nsk. Group policy s b mantain at least 70% of its
borrowings in fixed rate Instrurments.

Liquadity nsk

The Group prepares an annual funding plan approved by the Board
which sets out the Group’s expected financing requirements for the
next 12 months These requirements are expected to be met through
exsting cash balances, loan faclites and expected cash flows ior
the year

Forexgn cumency

The Group operates Intematonally and 1s exposed to foreign
exchange nsks. As both revenue and costs In each location are
generaly denominated In the same curmency, ransacton related nsks
are relatively low and generally assoctated with intra group actvities
Consequently, the ovemding foregn curmency nsk relates o the
translation of overseas profits and losses into sterling on consolidation
The Group does not actvely seek 1 hedge nsks ansing from foregn
currency translations due 10 ther non-cash natune and the high costs
associated with such hedging The net impact of foreign exchange
rate movements in 2010 was a £11 1m increase in revernue and a
£11m increasa in underying profit.

Simon Shaw
Group Chisf Financial Officer
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Corporate responsibilites

Key highiights in 2010
Pecple

- Contnued o embed the Sawills Values through the appratsal process
and integration into promotion and reward cniena

- ‘Savilis training forum’ was established to provide a cross-business
forum for Indnduals wath responsibility for people development.

Clierts

- We mantaned our focus on continuously improving client service,
for exarmnple by further developing our cross border service capacity
by bstter inking the investment agency teams across the Group o
meet our cllents global and regional Investment requirements.

- We have developed a client care traning programme, which was
ploted in our UK Property Management business, and will be
progressively extended across the wider business from 2011

Ervironment

- We continued our programme of environmental initiatives 1o secure
significant reductions In energy consumpton, paper usage and
travel One of our technology based paper saving initatives saved
the equivalent of 1,680 frees and 180,000 kgs of COp n 2010

Community

— Savils Guardian, our Facilties Management business In Hong Kong,
was awarded the '5 Years Plus Canng Company Logo’ dunng the
yeéar In recognition of its commitment t good corporate ciizenship,
reflecting the more than 11,000 hours of work logged by the
volunteer ®am in 2010

— QOur UK graduate programme was extended to include the
mentonng of students 1o help them develop emplovability skills.

We have retaned our membership of FTSE4Good, evdencing
our commitment 1o meeting globally recognised corporate
rasponsibility standards

Our stewardship of corporate responsibilty

Our definiton of corporate responsibiity (CR) remains unchanged — it s
our commitment to the positive Impact that our business, through our
pecpte, canmake on the stakeholders and communiies with whom
we interface

Our CR programme has further evolved through 2010, with cbjectives
being selected following analysis of the appropnate stakeholder
needs and prograrmmes being developed to support the achievernent
of our goals

The Board as a whole Is responsible for determining our CR strategy
The Group Executive Board (GEB’) 1s responsible for delivenng tona
day to day basis The GEB 1s also responsible for ensunng compliance
with our corporate values and stardaras. The framework for delivenng
our CR objectives is focused by a CR Workang Group which 1s chaired
by the Group Chief Executive and compnses senior reprasentatives
from a range of business and central teams In this capacity, the CR
Working Group 15 responsible for co-ordinating actvity t delver our
agreed goals and for monitonng Group-wde progress and
performanca Operational forums, reporting to the CR Working Group,
are established as necessary 1o develop and deliver Inatives at
business level n the four eriscal areas of CR, namely People, Clients,
Environment and Community

We continue io maintan our focus on ensunng that our people
worldwide work to within our specified financral, operational and
compliance framework, and that these are standards consistenty
appled We demand the highest professional standards from all of our
pecple al of the tme  However, gven the breadth of actvites and the
rurmber of people we employ there may be occasions when we do not
meet the high standards we aspire to Where we fail to reach these
high standards, we treat any breach with the utmost senousness.

We contnue to include the consideration of CR related issies inour
Key Fisk Registers ensunng that we can reachly idenify emerging
1ssues and respond fo these on a timely basis
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People

Qur vision to be the real estate advisor of choice iInour selected
markets and deliver supenor financial performance can only be
achieved through the dedication, commiiment and excellence of
our people

Qur people strategy remans focused on supporting delivery of the
highest standards of client service through motvated and engaged
people We beleve that a positve cuiture 15 essental to high quality
chent service This positive cultre 1s encapsulated inour Values, which
are reflected In all our practices and procadures Our reputation has
been built on our people and we believe that employeas whose
behaviours reflect our Values dsliver the excellent chent service that
we stnve to provide Our Values are

Pnde in everything we do

We

- take great pnde In delivenng services of the highest quality,

- always go ‘the extra mile' o meet our chents’ obiectives, and

~ seak to employ only the best people

Aweys act with integnty

We

— behave responsibly;

- act with honesty and respect for other pecple, and

- adnere o te highest standards of professional ethics.

Take an enfreprensunal approach o business

We

- seek out new markets and oppertunites for clients, and take
acreatve and entrepreneunal approach to delivenng value,

- are forward thinking, and always am to buid long term
clent relatonships,

— am to be a leader in every market we enter, and commit
ourselves with passion, energy and expertise, and

- approach problems with a proactive, practcal athtude,
delivenng robust solutions

Help cur people fulfil their tue potental

We

- encourage an open and supportive company culture in
which every ndmidual 1s respectad,

- help our pecple to excel through appropnate training
and development;

- share success and reward achisvement; and

- recogrise that our people’s diverse strengths combined
with geod teamwork produces the best results

We continue to work to ba an employer of choice and to provide an
envionment In which our people can flounsh and succeed We
support the Core Principles of the Intemational Labeour Organisation.
We engage with our people to communicate our vision and strategy
through weli established intemal channels Most of our businesses
have an infranet through which key messages are commurvcated,
while all major corporate announcements are communicated across
the Group as they are released extsrmally, along with a senior
managemenit briefing to allow full detalls to be cascaded though

the businesses Individual businessss use a vanety of methods to
communicate, Including regular face to face brefings led by senior
management, which also provide us with 2 mechanism for recaving
employee feedback.

To enhance operatonal efficency and allow us to deliver a high quality
service 1o our employess, we have continued to extend the HR and
Payroll System that we launched dunng 2009 This s now ve 1n our
UK businesses and will be progressively implementsd across our
BEuropean businesses dunng 2011 This system allows our pecple o
take thelead N administenng ther personal informaton and enables
line managers to manage and administer changes which occur dunng
e course of their peoples’ employment and supports the business
through real tme management reporing

We continue 1o Invest In training and have further developed the Sawvills
leadership programme by broadening membership and increasing the
soope of the programme  This 1s fundamental © our talent management
and development strategy, and supports the development of high
potental Indmdusels so that they are equipped to become the next
generation of leaders in the Group Its core elements include strategic
leadership traning, provided by external as well as intemal mentors,
and exposure to business and sector leaders We dso continus

fo focus on attractng and recruiting the best graduates
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Corporate responsibilities

continued

Health and safety

Savils1s commitied to the health, safety and welfare of our employees,
contractors and members of the public We actively promote a safety
culture and are strongly committad to key mprovements in health and
safety To this end our Safety Stratagy 1s focused on prionties such as
reducing significant cccupatonal exposure to workplace hazards and
maintainmg regulatry compliance Qur ‘positive safety’ programme
has continued to be dewsloped in 2010 t© actvely promots a safety
cultiure within the business  Key achisvements were further raising
hazard awareness and improving our intemal safety management
systemn to reflect the ackditional controls Implemented to protect our
employeas and clients Thus has been rolled out In the form of a manual
which codifies and brngs together what we already had in place ©
prevent harm to the health of employees, contractors and the public

Dunng 2010 we contnued to focus on addressing key nsk areas
through use of our health and safety champon network, Health and
safaty champions are sanor lsaders appointsd in each country and
service hine and are rasponsible for the delivery of specific health and
safety nsk agenda. We have n place systerns, processes and metrics
for reporang personal and process safety performance that support
intemal performance management, promote lkeaming and enable
public reportng

Cur health and safety framework meets the requirements of HSGE5
and we have continued our iImplementation of mora ngorous
standards Durng 2010 an audit of our health and safety performance
was underialen by Crowe Clark Whitehill and they confirmed our
health and safety framework meets the requirements of HSG65 and
IS 1N ine with our intemational peers

To enhance the management of health and safety nsks across the
Group further, we contnue the systematic reporting of recordable
occupatonal accidents 1o executve level management. Governance
of health and safety has been further mproved by changes in the
membership and terms of reference of the Health and Safety
Cormmittae Further training was conducted within the businesses
to raise hazard awareness and health and safety standards by way
of seminars, brefings and leadership forums throughout the UK

We aim to roll out further health and safety training progressively
across our businesses dunng 2011

Cierts

We stnve to encourage our people 1o deliver the highest stardards of
chentcare Wa measure the standards we achieve by seeking regular
feedback from our chents This s augrnentad by independent markat
research, whch along with other measures, provides a rating combining
brand reccgniton and client servics levels. Supporting this commitment
and to prowck iIndepeandent endorsement of the quality of service that
wa delver for our clients, we continue 1o work towards accreditaton
under ISC 9001 2000 Qualty Management) across our UK office
network. This accreditation also makes us more competive when
terdenng for work, paricUarty when bidding for publiic sector contracts
At the end of 2010, 49 UK locatons were 1SO 8001 2000 accredited

The green agencla continlies 1o be encouraged by Govemments and
puble opinion and influences thinking N our area of adviang clents
We have long established and highly regarded teams which advse
both Govemments and clients on sustainability 1ssues across the bult
enwonment. For exampie, our UK Energy team has been operating

In the renewable and conventional energy sectors for 15 years, and 1s
row & leading adwisor on renewel energy projects, working with clents
1o delver wird, solar and other clean energy proects.

In Asia, Savlls Guardian was agan awarded the ‘Class of Excellence’
Wastewibe Label in Hong Kong's 2010 Awards for Ervironmenta
Excellence s sister company in Hong Kong, Savills Property
Management, mantained its focus on fostenng ervironmental
awareness with clients by producing an annual ervironment report
and irmting them to participate in the annual Sawlls Green Gathenng
event to share Ideas and understand the latest developrents for
energy efficiency and water saving Dunng 2010, more than 80
buildings managed by Sawvils N Hong Kong collectied more than
184,000 kgs of paper, 11,000 kgs of plastc and aimost 6,900 kg

of metal for recyciing Similarty, 28 buldings managed by Sawills
partcipated in promoting low carbon emissions and energy efficency
of buldings faciites N 2010 Our efforts were recognised wath

the award of three certiicates for Exceflence and Ceriificates

of Ermronmental Good The reduction In emissions achieved
amounted to over 2 8 million kgs of carbon




Savills ple RBeport and Accounis 2010 Our business m-21

Ervronment

The direct impagct of our operations on the environment is low
compared to many other iIndusines. The most significant contnbution
we can maka Is through prowding quality adwce to our clients,
incorporating the pnnciples of sustanability wherever appropnate
However, we also recognise the value of reducing the direct impact
of our actwties on the environment to as low a level as Is reasonably
pracicable By seeking to reduce our environmental impact we are
able 10 achieve iIncreased operabonal efficencies and savings.

It also improves our atfractveness as an employer of choce

Cur Group Environmental Policy 1s based on these pnnciples which are
implementad wa our operating companies through toth ther serces
and day o day actions As an example of our focus on mnmising

our drectimpact, we have adopted an ongoing programme of office
based ermronmental inisatives which inchude reduced printed paper
wastage, sourcing recycled or sustanable papear products, powenng
down idle desktop equpment and encouraging a wide range of
recycling initatves We are also ncreasingly using the intemet for the
disseminaton of marketing matenals and brochures (such as a well
received IPhone ‘app’ launched In the UK as a residenbal property
locainn) to reduce paper usage as well as enhance cllent sarvices

and encouraging the use ¢f online and telephione conferencing

1o reduce travel

Qur cross-compary UK ‘Green Group' co-ordinates our intemal
achons and communicates the resuits and good practice to our staff
Bulkding on the progress made over the last few years, more than 80%
of our UK locaticns now have their energy needs satisfied by one
supplier Likewss, our German offices now source therr elecincaity from
asingle supplier with savings beng generated both in costs and
emissions A key selecton cntenon 1s the use of renewable energy
resources 1o reduce further our environmental impact

As part of our dnve to control our environmental mpact and toactas a
halimark of quality for our clents we have continued to encourage our
offices to adopt BS EN iSO 14001 2004 {Enwronmental Management)
This 1s designed to achieve sound emvaronmental performance by
using a proactive range of practical office management measures
consistent with our am of carbon reducton As an example of the
aclditonal measures we continue 1o Impiement, video corferencing
facilites were ncreased to provide 17 instaliations across four countnes
in Asia and three locations in the UK We intend o expand this capacity
further in 2011 Erergy savings, in terms of reduced emissions from
travel, have been realised especially within China For the third year we
have also camed out a greenhouse gas emssions assessment of our
three main London offices  Linked to this was our paricipabon n the
2010 Carbon Disclosurs Project. Two further offices in the UK operations
and two teams operating across offices have gained accreditation
under BS EN ISO 140012004 Environmental Management) dunng
2010 Batwean 2008 and 2010 overall Becineity consumption in our
three principal UK offices reduced by 225 283 KWh, which 1s the
aquvalent to saving 169 tonnes of CO Overall energy consumption

In these prmary locatons has been reduced each year since 2007

In Agia Pacffic, propertes managed by Savils Guardian contnued o
gan awards from the Environmental Protection Department for its
performance N protecting the enmvironment via promotion of wasie
separaton faciibes for fachties management clients. In additon the
Property Management ieam in Hong Kong also receved a number
of awards and certficatons, ncluding SO 14001 (energy efficiency,
waste reduction, indoor ar quality and water quality) in recogniton
of its commitment to Improving ervironmental performance
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UK Environmental Reporing 200810 GHG Emissions'

2010 2009 =
Unit t/CCea Unit t0Cke Change %
Business mileage 6,514 22172 61/7 20138 +101

1 {bushess milsage increased during the yeer rellecting Increesed volumes N our UK
Residential Agency business)

Community

Giobally, we have contnued to support chantable causes At country
level our teams across our businesses continue to support local
nisatves In the UK we focused on raising money and awareness for
vanous causes or through events in support of our two man corporate
chanties, Honeypot and LandAxd For a Cambridge 1o London bike
nde we managed o ervol the support of one of our rade magazines
Property Week which, in assising in promoting the event through its
website, made this event a 'must’ nthe UK property calendar

Buring 2010, around one third of our Insh team ined the Pedormeter
Challenge where money was raisad for the Irish Heart Foundaton

In 2010 Savils UK graduates contnued to support | CAN, a chanty
assisting children with speech, language and communication neads
by camrying out projects at the Meath School In Surrey raising money
and spending a day per person at the school to work on a project

o buld an outdoor classroom

In Asia, Savills Guardian launched tts first Educaton Fund Scheme in
2000 and has since then consecutively run this programme every year
The scheme extends 1o all children residing In our managed propertes
and the purpose 1s 1o reward students with good results and to refieve
burdens on families with financial hardship In recognition of these
efforts, Savils Guardian, which was first awarded the Canng Compary
logo in 2002/03, was awarded the ‘Canng Compary 5 consecutive
years' logo, In recogrition of its contnual efforts in this area. Savills
Hong Kong was also awarded the Canng Company award dunng

the year

Ateam at Savills Property Management in Hong Kong collaborated
n 2010 with the Boys' & Girlg” Ciubs of Hong Kong 1 organise
programmes to help children Iving below the poverty ine Dunng
the year, mambers of the team held prvate tutonal sessions with
youngsters as well as helping with an outdoor actvity field tnp

Atan intematonal level, Sawlls contributed to the relief effort following
the Haib earthquake in January 2010 and 1o the Australian floods at
the end of December 2010

Future plarns

We continued to make progress dunng 2010 on our CR development,
bulding on the work done In previous years, we reman committed

o continuous mprovement In 1S area. Dunng 2011 and subsequent
years we will saek to further develop our CR approach, focusing

on those acivites whers we are best placed to make a significant
contribution
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Risks and uncertainties facing the business

Gven the scale and diversity of our busnesses, the Board of Directors The Corporate Governance repeort on pages 27 10 31 descnbes the
recogrises that the nature, scope and potental impact of our key systems and processes through which the Board manages and
business and strategic nsks are subject to constant changs The mibgates nsks.
Board has mplemented an appropnate framework 1o ensure that it has Our consxleration of the key nisks and Lncertanties relatng i the
sufficient visibiity of the Group's key nsks and the opporunty reqularly 5, v operations, aJongkev}\(nm thexr potental mpact andm?xa mitgating
fo review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Controls and STAIABS s 1n piace, 1S setout below It s not possible to mibgats futy al
for managing and mitgating these nsks of our nsks and there may be other risks and uncertantes besides
those histed below which may also adversely affect the Group

Key nsk Descnption Mitgatng factors

Volatlity n the - Market cordiions globally remain volatle There 1S - Qur stratagy of diversity of product and geographic

markats inwhich currently particular uncerianty in China and Hong spread contnues to reduce the Impact on the business of

wa operate Kong due to certan government inbatives in the real weak market conditons, but these factors cannot entrely
estate sector The resincticns facing our clients on mitgate the overall nsk to eamings To offset these nsks,
credit avalabiity are ongoing Added to these, a we continually focus on our cost base and seek to mprove
continung shortage of quality assets for sale may cperational efficiencies. In line with our strategy of being
constran many of the key global real estate markets the property adwiser of choice, we have continued to
in 2011, and particularty reduce the volume of nvest selectvely In our businass where new opportunites
commercial real estate transactions with the resuitant presant themselves to enhance our services 1o our clients.

adverse Impact on our cepital markets businesses
and overall Group eamings If these conditons
contnue for an extended perod, or detencrate agan,
Group samings and/or our financial conditon could

= Qur conbnual monitonng of market condiions and review
of market changes aganst our Group strategy, supported
by the quarterly reforacasting and mporting undertaken by
all of our businesses, remain key to our atiity to raspond

be adversely affected rapidly to further changes In our operatng emvironment
Achieving the nght — The markets in which we operate remain - To reman competitve in al markets It 1s Imperatve
market positoning highly compettve and we need 1o ensure that we that we continue to provde the quality of clienit care
In response to the continus to reflect the changing needs of our clients and service that our clients expect from us. This need
needs of our clents dnves our strategy to continuously grow the capabilites
and strengthen the services offered by the Group
and actively Invest In the development of client
retationships globally
Reputatonal = Sawvlls 1s a brand with an excellent reputaton in the - Wa recognise that our brand strength is wital to mantaining
and brand nsk pnncipal markets in which we operate We recognise markat share and expanding into new markets To this
the need to maintain our reputation as a quality brand end, we have a brand management programme in place
and ensure the quality of the service we provide to ensure the brand's posiioning, identity and personality
1 clearty and consistently promoted
- Wa recognise that the quality of the service we offer 1s vital
o mantaning the brand and we have In place controls
and processes to ensure qualty assurance
Recrutmeant and — Wa recognise that our ability 1o deliver our strategy 1s - Dunng 2010 we continued our investment In talent
retention of high dependent on us attracting, developing, motvating managsment and extended our development
calibre staff and retaining peopie of the highast quality Thisis prograrnmes across a number of businesses

fundamental to the futurs succeass of our business. — To augment our profit shanng approach to remuneration,

we continue to make selective use of share based and
other longer term ncentives to ensure that our people are
incentvised 1o perform However, we consider itimportant
that an element of our paople’s rewards 1s not based on
financial performance and this 1s reflected in departmental
scoracards and individual apprassals.
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Key nsk Descnpton Mitigating factors
Maintarng - Wa are required 1 meet a broad range of regulatory - Al areas relating to professional, regulatory and statutory
standards of compliance requirements in each of the markets n compliance, and busness conduct have benefited by the
professional, which we cperate For example, in the UK, the continuing review of our Group Policy Framework which
reguiatory Financial Services Authonty (FSA) regulates the defines the compliance standards we expect from our
and statutory conduct of Savills Pnivate Finance, Savlls Capital busiresses. In support of this Framework each of our
compliance Adwisors and Cordea Savils Investment Management, businesses has therr own regulatory and statutory
and the insurance Intermediary services we provide to compliance resources In place and they mantan the
clients in our UK commercial businesses In addison, intermal procasses and controls required to fulfll our
the UK Office of Farr Trading reguiates our Residental compiiance obligatons Our compliance ervironment,
business in the UK A number of the services we at al levels, s subyect to regular review by ntemal audit

providde through our UK businesses are also regulated and other assurarce providers
by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
and a number of our employees are qualfied
members. Failure 10 satisfy regulatory compliance
requirements may resutt in fines being mposad,
adverse publicity and brand reputational damage
and ulimately the withdrawal of regulatory approvals
— We also have a number of key statutory obligatons

inciuding the protection of the health, safety and welfare
of our employeas and others affectad by our actvites.

Legal nsk — Fallure to fulfif our regulatory obligations or contractual - The Group has Legal and Regulatory Complances Policies
obligatons to clents could subject the Group o which are designed to mimgate aganst the sk of such
regulatory acton and/or clams from chents. The action/claims being made and where such claims occur,
acverse outcome of such acton/claims coud to imiit kability, par teulary in relation to consuttancy
negatively iImpact our repusation, financial conditon sarvices such as vahuatons.

and/or the resuits of our businesses For example - The Group maintans approprate levels of professional
- In accepting client engagements, group companes ndemnity Nsurance © respond to such clams and
may be subject to standard of care obligatons mibgate the Group's financial exposure to such clams.
Falure to fulfil thess obligations could result in clams
beting made aganst the relevant group company
and/or its employess.

- In our Property Management business, we may
assume responsibiity for appontng andor supermsing
third party contractors that provide construction and
engneenng services for our managed properties
Agan, falure to discharge these rasponsitrlives In
accordance with our obligabons could resutt inclams
berg made against the group compantes

= Inour valuatons consultancy businessas, we can
be subsect 1o clams alleging the over-valuation of

a property
Managing our — For all areas of financial nsk we have an established - The key finarcial nsks and uncertainties are covered
financial nels financial control framework with clear responsibilites In the Fnancial revew on pages 14 and 15

for operational and finance teams at &l levels of
the Group
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Board of Directors
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Top row {left to nght)
Peter Srith, Jerermy Helsby,
Sirnon Shaw Martin Angle

Bottorm row (left to nght)
Timothy ingram, Charles McVeigh

Graphic removed Graphic rermoved Graphic remaved Graphuc removed
Graphic removed Graphic removed

Peter Smith Martm Angle

Charman of Sauiis plc and Charman independent Non-Becutve Director

of the Normination Committee T and Charman of the Audit Cormmittee "

Aged 64, was appainted to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on
24 May 2004 and was elected Chairman with effect from 1 November
2004 Hs other non-execUiive appontments are N M Rothschid

& Sons Limited, Rothschild Bank AG, Associated Briish Foods ple
and Charman of Templeton Emerging Markets Investment Trust plc
Formerly, Peter was Serwor Partner of PrcewaterhouseCoopers
{PwC) and served for two years as Chaman of Coopers & Lybrand
Intematonal and as a mamber of the global kadership team of PwC
He sarved as Charman of RAC pic and was a Non-Executive Director
of Safeway plc and the Equitable Lfe Assurance Society

Jeremy Helsby

Group Chief Executve #

Aged 55, pined Samlls in 1980 and was appointad to the Board in
1999 He was Charrman and Cheef Executive Officer of Savills
Commercial and Sawvills Europe for seven years untl he was appointed
as Group Chief Executve on 7 May 2008 He remains a Dector of
Savils Asia Pacific

Smon Shaw
Group Chef Financsal Officer *

Aged 46, ined Savils as Group Chief Financial Officer in March 2009
Simon Is a Chartered Accountant He 1s one of the two Authonsed
Reprasentatves of Sawvills on the Members’ Committes of Cordaa
Savils He s Non-Executive Chairman of Synargen ple and was
Chief Financial Officer of Gyrus Group PLC from 2003 untl its sale

to Oympus Corporation in 2008, having previousty been Chief
Operating Officer of Profile Therapeutics plc between 1998 and 2003
Between 1991 and 1997 he was a corporate financier, latterly at
Hambros Bank Limitad

* Audit Commiliea

T Rermunerstion Commities
# Nommnation Comimitios

* Group Executhve Board

Aged 60, was appointad to the Board on 2 January 2007 He s a
Non-Executve Director of CAQ Severstal, Pennon Groug plc,
Chaurrman of The National Exhibxtion Group, and Shuaa Gapial psc
Formerty he was Group Finance Director of Tt Group pic and held
varous exascutve rolas with Terra Firma Capital Partners and its
portfolio companies, including The Waste Recycling Group {Executive
Chaiman) and Le Meridien Hotel Group (Deputy Charman). He 1s also
amamber of the Advisory Board of the Warwack Business Sehool and
15 a Trustes of the FIA Foundation

Timothy Ingram .

Senor Independent Non-Executve Director ™1

Aged B3, was appointad 1o the Board on 27 June 2002 He was Chiet
Executive of Caledonia Investments pic from 2002 untl his retrement in
July 2030 He 1s now Chairman of Collins Stewart plc and1s a
Non-Executve Director of Aliance Trust ple, The Sage Group plc and
Alok Industnes mited He was formerly Chisf Executive of First
National Finance Corporation, a man Board Director of Abbey Natonal
pic and a Non-Executive Director of Hogg Robinson plc

Charles Moveigh
Independert Non-Executive Director and
Chaimnan of the Remuneration Commitiee “#

Aged 68, was apponted 10 the Board as a Non-Executive Director
on 1 August 2000 He s currently Charman of Citgroup's Corporate
and Investment Banking - Global Wealth Management Partnership
He serves onthe Board of EFG-Hermes, Petropaosk pic formerly
Peter Hambro Mining plc) and has recently been appointed to
Landmark Trust. Forrnerly he was Co-Chairman of Crigroup's
European Investment Bank and served on the Boards of Witan
Investmant Compary plc, Clearstream, the London Stock Exchange,
LIFFE, Brash Amencan Business Inc and was a member of both

the Development Board and Advisory Council of the Prince’s Trust.
He was also appointed by the Bank of England to serve on the City
Capital Markets Committes and the Lagal Risk Review Committoe
and was a member of the Fulbnght Commisston
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Top row (eft to nght) Bottomrow {left to
Group Executive Board Ruperi Sebag-Montsfiore Mark Rdley,  Simnon }-bpe(%lor}ansgn;nra,
Rebert McKelar, Raymond Lee John Lyons Justin O'Connor
Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic removed
Graphic removed Graphic removed Graphic remeoved Graphic removed
Jerermny Helsby Raymond Lee
Group Chef Executve ™ Chuef Executve — Savils Greater Chira ®
For photograph and full biography see opposite page Aged 49, joined Savils In 1989 and was appainted to the Group
Executve Board in January 2011 Raymond took over the Hong Kong
Simon Shaw office n 2003 in 2009 Raymond was made the Chief Executve of
Group Chef Fnancal Officer ® Savils Group in Hong Kong and Macau and n 2010 was appointed
raphy see 0ppos Chief Executive of Greater China. Raymond 1s a Fellow of the Hong
For photograph and ful brog see © page Kong Instriute of Directors and holds an honorary feflowship at the
Chns Lee Quangx Acadermy of Socd Sciences.
Group Legal Drector & Compary Secretary Srnon Hope

Not photographed

Aged 45, joined Savils In June 2008 and was appointed to the Group
Exacutive Board n August 2008 He has responsibility for legal and
compliance issues globally He 1s one of the two Authonsed
Representatves of Savils on the Members' Committee of Cordea
Savills. He held equivalent roles with Alfred McAlpine ple, Courts ple
and Scholl pic between 1997 and 2008, pnor to which he was Deputy
Group Secretary of Delta plc from 1990 1o 1997

Rupert Sebag-Morteficre
Chamnan and Chief Executve — L8P ©

Aged 57, joned Savlls In 1980 and was appointad © the Group
Executve Board when it was formed in February 2008 On 26 October
2004, he bocame Charman and Chief Executive of Savills (L&P)
Limited, having served as 1ts Managing Dvector since May 2000

He Is rasponsible for the UK Residental and general prachice surveying
business He is also appontad to the Winchester College Investment
Comrmittee and Charman of The Regent's Park Open Arr Theatre
Development Council

Mark Ridley
Charman and Chef BExecutve — UK Commercial *

Aged 49, joined Savlls n July 1996 and was appointed to the Group
Executive Board when it was formed in February 2008 He was
appointed Charman and Chief Executive of Savils Commercial Limited
in January 2008 and prior to this appointment was head of the
Manchester office, which he setup In 1996

Robert McKelar
Chief Bxecutve — Asa Pacffic *

Aged 51, was appointed 1o the Group Executive Board when it was
formed in February 2008 He was appointed Chief Executve of Asia
Pacific on 31 March 2005 having served as the Group Finance
Director snce June 2000 and pnor to ts snce December 1994 acted
as Finance Director of Savills Commercial Limited

Charman — Continental Europe *

Aged 46, joined Savills in September 1986 and was appointad to
the Group Executive Board when it was formed in February 2008
He 1s rasponsitle for our Capital Markets team and Head of Sawills
Commercial [vestment. He s also Chairmman of the Management
Board of our European businesses and a member of the Chantes
Fund Property Board

Bona Sera .

Chief Executve — Continental Eurcpe *

Aged 42, joined Sawvills In 1998 and was appointed to the Group
Executive Board n January 2011 He is responsible for Savils
Continental European offices. Fomerly he was Haad of Sawilts In
Spain for ten years, and In February 2008 he was apponted as
Executve Managing Director of Savills New York office, where he
assumed responsibility for Savills cross-bordear business.

John Lyons

Chief Executnve — Amenca*

Aged 53, was appointed to the Group Execttive Board in January
2009 He s President and Cheef Executive of Sawills LG, whch
encompasses the New York and Mexico City offices Formerdy, he was
a Prncipal and Managing Dwector of Eastdil Realty from 1885 and in
1996 founded and became Chief Executive of Granite Partners LLC,
until it was acquired by Savills in 2007 He s an acive member of the
Wharton-Zell Lune Real Estate Institute, Urbban Land Institute and the
Mortgage Bankers Associabon.

Justn O'Connor
Chief Bxecutve ~ Cordea Savills *

Aged 51, pined Cordea Savills in January 2004 as Head of Business
Developrment, he was subsequently appointed CEQ of Cordea Savills
n January 2006 and was appointed to the Group Executive Board n
September 2010 Justin also sits on the Boards of Cordea Sawlls
Buropean subsidianes, Cordea Savils SGR and Cordea Savills GmbH
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal actvity

Sawills ple {the ‘Company’) Is a holding company The actvites of its
principal subsidianes are to provide transactonal advice, consultancy
and management services N connection with commercial, residental
and agncuitural property, property related financial serces and fund
management

Operations

The Compary and its subsidianes (together the ‘Group') operates
through a network of offices and associatss in the Amencas, the UK,
Continental Europe, Asia Pacffic, Afnca and the Middle East.

Dwvidend

The profit atinbutable to shareholders 1s £25 Om (2009 £8 9m)
Anintenm dividend of 3p (nef) per share amounting to £3 7m (2009
£3 7rm) was pad on 25 October 2010 Itis recormmended that a final
dwdend of Bp (net) per ordinary share (amounting to £7 4m), 1s paid,
alongside the supplemeantal ntenm dvdend of 4p per ordinary share
declared by the Board on 16 March 2011, on 16 May 2011 to
shareholders on the register at 8 April 2011

Principal developments

The development of the business 1s detalled In the sectiong entitied
Rawaw of oparatons and Financial review onpages 6 ta 15

The pnncipal nsks and uncertainbes are detalled on pages 20 and 21

Directors

Short biographical details of the current Directors are shown on
pages 22 and 23 Dunng the year the Board was restructured to
strearnine the management of the Group and provde an mproved
focus on deciston making As a result of this restructunng, three
Execuive Directors, Rupert Sebag-Montsfiore, Simon Hope and
Robert MciKelar stood down from the Board on 18 January 2010
All three remain members of the Group Executive Board At the
conclusion of the Annual General Mesting on 5§ May 2010, Fiekds
Wicker-Minn, who joined the Board In 2002, retired from the Board
Following these changes the Board compnseas the Non-Executive
Charman, two Executve Directors and three Independent Non-
Exacutive Directors (full detalls are provided on page 22)

Qur governaie 72-1 Qur resuis 4206

In accordance with the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code {which applies to financial years starting on or after
29 June 2010), the Board has resolved, that all Directors should stand
for annual re-glection The Board 1s satisfied that each Director who s
standing for re-slection continues 1o show the necessary commitment
and 1o be an effactive member of the Board due 1o ther skills,
expertise and business acumen Notwithstanding his appointment

in 2000, the Board considers that Charles McVeigh continues to be
entirely indepandent In character and udgement.

Interests In the issued share capital of the Company hekd at the
beginning and end of the year under review by those who were
Dwectors at 31 December 2010 or ther families are set out on page 36
of the Remuneration report Details of share options held by the
Directors pursuant to the Company's share option schemes are

gven In the Remuneration report on pages 36 t0 38 It is the Board's
palicy that the Executive Drectors should retain at least 105,000
shares (valued at 31 12 10 £4065,510) in the Company and that the
Group Chief Executive retain at least 150,000 shares (valued at
311210 £578,300)

In accordance with DTR4, the Directors’ responsibiibies statement 1s
set out on page 40 of this Annual Report.

Enhanced Business Review

In accordance with Section 417, Companies Act 2006, the Company
15 required to sat out In this report a far review of the business of

the Group dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 and of the
posiion of the Group at the end of that financial year, together with
adescnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the

Group The nformation can be found in the following sectons of this
Annual Report.

Review of operations page 6
Key performance indicators page 7
Hnancial review page 14
Corporate responsibiibes page 16
Risks and uncertaintes page 20

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors

In accordance with Section 418, Companies Act 2006 each Director
at the date of approval of this report confirms that

— so far as the Drector 1s awars, there is no informaton, which would
be needad by the Company's auditors in connecton with prepanng
therr audit report, of which the auditors are not aware, and

— each Dyrector has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken
as a Director to make himseff awars of any such information and
to estabiish that the audiors are aware of It
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Takeover Directive

Pursuant to regulatons rmade under the Comparves Act 2006 the
Company 15 required to disclose certan addiional nformation
Those disclostres not covered elsewhere within this Annual Report
are as follows,

Share capital and major shareholdings
The share capiia of the Company 1s detalled on page 88

The Company has only one class of share capital formed of ordinary
shares Al shares forming part of the ordinary share capital have the
sams nghts and each cames one vote There are no unusual
restnctions on the transfer of ordinary shares. The Drrectors may also
refuse to register a transfer of a certificated share unless the instrument
of transfer 1s. {j) lodged at the registered office of the Company or any
other place as the Board may decide accompaned by the certificate
for the shares to be transferred and such other evdence as the
Dwectors may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor

o make the transfer; or (i) n respect of only one ¢lass of shares

The Drrectors may also refuse to register a transfer of a share whether
certificated or uncertificated), whether fuly pad or not, in favour of
more than four persons intly The Board may also close the register
of sharsholders for up to 30 days effectvely suspending the
registration of all transfers, however, in respect of uncertificated shares,
consent from CREST would be requrred for such a dosure

As at 16 March 2011, the latest pracbcable date bafore the
publication of this Annual Report, the Compary had been notified
of the following interests i the Company’s ordinary share capital n
accordance with Chapter 5 of the UK Listng Authonty’s Crsclosure

and Transparency Rules

Shareholders o treres %
Artisan Partners Lmited Partnership 14,464,091 1083
Frankin Templeton Institutonal, LLC 7,038,217 532
AL Lmited 6,540,524 495
Majedie Asset Management Lmited 6,489,019 490
Artarmis Investment Management Umited 6,472,808 4
BlackRock, Inc 5,463,712 413
lgnis Investment Senices Limited 5,262,038 398
Legal & General Group Plc 5,230,378 395

As at 31 December 2010, the Sawvills plc 1992 Employee Benefit Trust
(the 'EBT") held 9,613,393 shares Any voting or other smilar decisions
relating to these shares are taken by the trustees of the EBT, who may
take account of any recommendaton of the Company The EBT
warves all but 0 01p per share of its dividend entitement. For further
catals of the EBT please refer to Note 2 to the financial statements.

Our results 42-66

Purchase of own shares

In accordance with the Listing Rules at the Annual General Mesting
on 5 May 2010, sharsholders gave authonty for a imited purchase of
Sawvlls shares for cancellabon of up to 109 of the 1ssued share capital
Dunng the year, no shares were purchased for cancellajion under
the programme

The Board propases to seek shareholder approval at the Annual
General Meeting on 4 May 2011 to renew the Company’s atthonty

to purchase its own crdinary shares of 2 5p each for cancellation or

to be held In treasury Details of the proposed resoluton are outlined

In the Notice of Annual General Mesting circulated to shareholders with
this Annual Report and Accounts ('the AGM Circular’)

Change of control

There are no significant agreements which take effect, alter or
taminate in the event of change of control of the Cornpany except
that under its banking arangements, a changs of control may tngger
an early repayment requirement,

Arcles of Assocaton (‘Articles’)

The Compary's Articles are govemed by relevant statutes and
may be amended by special resolution of the sharsholders ina
general meeting

The Company's ndes about the apponimernt and replacement of
Drectors are contaned in the Articles. The powers of the Directors are
determined by UK legislation, and the Articles of the Company In force
from time to tme

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meating ( AGM') 1s to be held at 20 Grosvenor Hill,
Barkelay Square, London WK 3HQ at 12 noonon 4 May 2011, the
details of which are contained in the AGM Circular creuated to
shareholders with this Annual Report and Accounts In additon to

the normal business to be considered at the AGM, a resofution will

be proposed to Introduce a new Performance Share Plan, detals of
which are set out In the Remuneration report on pages 32 and 33

and in the AGM Gireular

Creditors’ payment policy

The Group dees not follow any specified code or standard on payment
practice However, the Group ams to settle supplier accounts in
accordance with the Indivdual terms of business agreed with each
supplier There were 35 4 days’ purchases outstanding at the end of
the year for the Company (2009 32 0 days)
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Directors’ report

continued
Charntable donations and poltical contnbutions Auditors
The amount pad to chantable organisations dunng the year was In accordance with Section 489, Companies Act 2006, a resaluton for
£370,242 (2009 £195,042) |In additon to the donations above, the the re-appontment of PncewaterhcuseCoopers LLP as auditors of the
Group also operates a ‘Give As You Eary’ scheme which allows Company wil be propoged at the forthcoming AGM

employeas to donate a portion of their monthly salary to a registerad
chanty The Group also operates a profit share bonus warver scheme
whereby empioyeas can elect to wanve an element of any annual profit ~ Chins Lee
share bonus In favour of reqyistered chanties of their choice upon which  Group Leg
tha Group augments the denaton to the chasen chanty by 10%
These additional Group contnbutions totalled £195,140 (2008 £5,081)
dunng the year There were no politcal contnbutions (2009 £ni)
Berkeley Square

Comorate governance
London W1K 3HQ

The Corporate Governance report, the Remunerationreport and the
Drrectors responsibilites are set out on pages 27 to 40 and form part of
this report

Employees
The Directors recognise that the quality, commitment and motvation

of Sawils staff 1s a key element n the success of the Group, ses pages
16 to 19 for more information

Employees are able to share In this success through profit share bonus
schemes and share pians, see pages 35 and 36 for more nformnation
The Group encourages its employees to develop therr skills through
fraining and continued professional development.

it1s the policy of the Group to prowide employment on an equal basis
rrespectve of gender, sexual onentation, mantal or evil partner status,
gender reassignment, race, colour, nationalty, ethnic or national ongin,
religion or belief, disabiity or age

Insurance cover

The Company purchases nslrance to cover its Directors and Officers
agamst ther costs N defending themsehves In cwvil legal procsedings
taken aganst them in that capacity and in respect of damages
resulbng from the unsuccessful defence of any proceedings

The insurance doss not provide cover whers the Director has acted
fraudulenty or dishonestly

In accordance with the Aricles, the Directors and the Group Company
Secretary have been granted an indemnity 1ssued by the Company to
the extent permitted by law in respect of liabiities incured as a result
of ther office The indemnity would not provide any coverage to the
extent that a Director or the Group Company Secretary 1s proved o
have acted fraudulently or dishcnestly The Company also mantans
appropnate INsurance cover i raspect of legal acton aganst its
Directors and Cfficers
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Cormporate Governance report

The Board is responsible to shareholders for the management and
contral of the Comparny’s actmbes and 1s committed to the highest
standards of Corporate Governance, as set out in the UK Corporate
Govermnance Code ('the Code') published by the Financial Reporing
Council in June 2010 1t 1s the Board's view that the Company was fuly
compliant with the provisions of the Code or Its predecessor in force
dunng the year, save In the bef penod to 18 January 2010 before the
Board was restructured

The following section together with the Owactors” report on pages 24
to 26 and the Direciors’ Remuneration report on pages 32 10 39
provdes detals of how the Company applies the pnneiples and
complies with the provisions of the Code

Board composition and balance

Following the restructunng of the Board effective 18 January 2010,
the Board compnsed a Non-Bxecutive Charman, four Indeperdent
Non-Executve Directors and two Executive Directors

The restructunng of the Board was designed to streamiine
maragement of the Group and provide an Improved focus on
dectsion making As a resutt of this restructunng, three Executive
Directors (Rupert Sebag-Mortefiore, Simon Hope and Robert
McKelar) stood down from the Board on 18 January 2010, atthough
al three continue to be members of the Group Executive Board with
unchanged responsibites The Board 15 satisfiec! that this restructunng
has delivered the targeted benefits of streaminng decision making
and allowing the Board to focus on strategy, nsk management and
governance

Foliowing the retrament of Felds Wicker-Munn, who was appointed
to the Board n 2002, from the Board effectve 5 May 2010, the
Board has compnsed a Non-Bxecutve Charman, three Independent
Non-Execuive Directors and two Executive Directors

Since the restructunng of the Board effectve 18 January 2010, the
Company s in full compitance with the Code which requrres that at
least half the Board, excluding the Chaiman, are independent
Non-Executve Directors

The posts of Chairman and Group Chief Executive are separated

The Charman is rasponsble for the worlangs and leadership of the
Board and for the balance of its membership The Group Chief
Executive 1s responsible for leading and managng the busness within
the authontes delegated by the Board

Martin Angie, Timothy Ingram and Charles McVexgh are Independent
Non-Executive Directors The Board considers that the Non-Executve
Drrectors are independent of management and have no business or
other relatonship which could nterfere matenally with the exercise of
therr udgement

Since 1 November 2004, Timothy Ingrarn has been the Seror
Independent Drector He s available to sharehokders If they have
concems which have not been addressed by contact with the
Charman and/or Group Chief Executive

The brographies of the current Board members appear on pages 22
and 23

Functioning of the Board

The Directors recenve maragement Informaton, including financial,
operating and strategic reports, in advanca of Board meetings

From tme 1o tme the Board receves presentations from non-Board
members on matters of signficance The Non-Executive Directors
penodically viait different Group companies to gan greater insight
Into the business. The Group Company Secratary provides the

Board vath ongoing reports that cover legal and regulatory changes
and developmants

The Board has adopted a forma schedute of matters specrfically
reserved to it for decision makang, although its prmary role 1s to prowde
leadership and to review the overal strategic development of the
Group as awhole In additon, the Board sets the Group’s values

and standards and ensures that it acts ettweally and that its oblgatons
to its shareholders are understood and met The Board s specifically
responsible for

- approval of Group strategy and its budgetary and business plans,

— approval of significant iInvestments, any decision to divest or close
any Group business and capital expenditure,

- teview of performance, assessed against the Group's strategy,
objectves, business plans and budgets,

— approval of annual and half year results and ntenm managerment
statements, accountng policies and the appoaintment and, subyect
to sharsholder approval, remuneration of the extemal auditors,

— approval of the dvidend policy and intenm dvdends and the
recornmendation of final dwdends,

- changes to the Group's capital structure and the issue of
any secuntes,

— establishing the Group’s nsk appetite, system of intemal control,
govemnance and approval authonties,

— executive performance and succassion planning, Includng the
appontment of new Cirectors, and

— determining standard of sthics and policy In relation to business
pracice, health, safety, environment, social and community
responsbilites,

At its meetings dunng the year, the Board discharged the dutes
above and received updates on the followang financial performarcs,
key management changes, matenal new projects, financial plans, legal
and regulatory updates, and in partcuar

— concluded its own restructunng effective 18 January 2010,

— reviewed the growth strategy and optmum ownership structure for
the Group's Fund Management business, Cordea Sawills, resulting
In the Group, with shareholder approval, acquinng the 40% of the
voting nghts In Cordea Sawils not previously owned by the Group,

— reviewed the strategies and poicies being pursued to miigate nsks,
particularty those In relation to financial senvices, and

— mantained the Directors’ conficts of interests register

One of the Board's meetings dunng the year was specifically devoted
to the review and approval of the Group's strategy Members of the
Group Executive Board joined this meeting to present the proposed
strategy of the business for which they were responsible The delivery
of strategic plans 1s continually monitored and reviewed by the Board
and penodic updates on progress and market developments are
presented by the heads of the Group's businesses

As wel as planned bnefings, Directors are also expected to take
rasponsibity for identiying their own individual neads and 1o take
appropnate sieps to ensure that they are property nformed about
the Group and ther respongbiiites as a Drector

The Board nas celegated authonty to certain committees to carry out
spacied obyectves as defined by therr terms of reference  Adclitonal
nfarrnation an the responsibifity of each of the Board Committees
appears on pages 29 and 30
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Board performance and evaluaton

The Board engaged Linstock Limited {‘Lnstock’) to undertake

an independent evauaton of Board and Board Committiee
performance and to identify areas where performance and procedures
might be furthern improved  In particular the review conaidered the
following 1ssues

— Board composition, expertise and dynamics,

— Board suppart, tme management and Board Commitiee
parformance,

— strategic, operational and nsk cversight,
— succession planning and human resource management, and
— pnonbes for change

Cn completion of the review process, Linstock presented a report,
considenng the key themes and issues raised, and formulated a
number of recommendatons to further enhance Board effectivensss
The programme of regular presentations by the heads of the Group's
businesses to the Board was mantaned to ensure that the Board,
following its restructunng, continued to have full visibility over the
perforrnance of each business and to have exposure o management
below Group Executive Board level, n particular to support succession
planning

A performance assassment of the Non-Executive Directors and the
Group Chuef Exacutive was undertaken by the Chairman dunng the
year In additon, the Group Chief Executive conducted a performance
review of the Group Chief Financial Cfficer and the Senior Independent
Director lect a review of the Charrman's petformance, with input from
al Drectors.

Board meetings

The indradua assessments of each Director confimed that
performancs was effective, and the Board subsequently endorsed
these assessments and confirmad that the contnbutions made by
oach Drector, each of whom, in accordance with the Code, offers
themselves for re-election at the AGM on 4 May 2011, continued to
be effectve and that the Company should support ther re-election
The detalls of the Directors, are set out on page 22

Linstock have been engaged on a three year programme, so that the
review content for each subsaquent evaluation 1s designed to buld
upon leaming gained N the previous year and to allow measurement
of year on year progress

Drectors’ conflicts of interest

From 1 Octeber 2008, Directors have had a statutory duty to avoid
situations N which they have, or could have, an interest that confiicts
or possibly may conflict with the interests of the Company A Director
will not be n breach of that duty € the relevant matter has been
authonsad In accordance with the Articles by the other Directors

The Board has adopted a set of guiding pnnciples on managing
conflicts and approved a process for identfying current and future
actual and patental conflicts of nterest. it was also agreed that the
Nominations Committee would review authonsed conficts at least
annually or if and when a new potential corfiict situation was dentfied
or a potential confiict aituation matenalised Dunng 2010, actual and
potental conficts of Nterest that were entified by each Director were
subsequently authonsed by the Committee, subject to appropnate
conditions N accordances with the guiding pnnciples

Dunng the year the Board held seven scheduled meetings and a separate strategic review to confimm Group strategy Directors” attendance at
schedued Board and Committee mestings convened in the year ended 31 December 2010 was as folows

Audit  Remuneration Nominaton
Board Committae Committee Coimimsttee
Number of meetings in year 7 5 4 4
Attended Altended Altended Attendad

Non-Executive Directors
Peter Smith 7 - 4 2
Martin Angle 7 5 4 2
Timothy Ingram 7 4 3 2
Charles McVeigh 7 5 3 2
Felds Wicker-Murin {retired 5 May 201Q) 3 2 2 1

Executive Directors

Jeremy Helsby”

~
!
|
136

Simon Shaw”

Simon Hope™ (resigned 18 January 2010)

Robert McKellar” (resigned 18 January 2010)

Rupert Sebag-Montefiore” (resigned 18 January 2010)

* Members of the Group Executive Board

The Board and Committee meetings are structured to allow open
discussion Al Directors recerve detalled papers In advance of Board
meetings When unable to be present in person, Directors may attend
by audio or video conference When Directors are not able to attend
Board or Committee mestings, therr comments on the papers to be
considered at that meeting are relayed in advance to the Charman of
that meeting

The Non-Executive Directors meet separately at least twice each year
without the presence of the Executive Directors and also meet at least
once a year without the Chairman, at which ime the Charman’s
performance i appraised
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The Group Company Secretary, who was appointad by the Board,
15 responsible for advising and supporing the Chamman and the
Board on company law and corporate govemance matters and for
ensunng that Board procedures are folowed, as well as ensunng
that there 18 a smooth flow of Informaiion to enable effective decision
making All the Direciors have access 10 the advice and services

of the Group Company Secretary and through him have access

to independent professional acvice In respect of ther dutes at the
Company’s expense

Board committees

The Board has delegated certan authonties to committees each with
formal terms of reference, which are available on request or on the
Company’s website (www savills com) The membership of sach
committee 1s detalled on page 22 The pnncipal commiitees of the
Board are as folows

Nominaton Committee

Following the retirement of Felds Wicker-Miunn from the Board

with effect from 5 May 2010, the Committee compnses the three
Independent Non-Execuitive Directors, together with the Chamman
and Group Chief Executve The Committee 1s chaired by the Group
Chayman, Peter Smith (save n arcumstances where the Charman’s
succession 1S consdered) The Committee meets at lsast once a year
and met twice dunng 2010

The Committee provickas a forum to consider Board succession
planning, whether to recommend the re-election of a Director and to
make recommendatons to the Board on certan matters including its
composition, structure, sze and balance

The Articles prowde that Directors must submit themselves for re-
elacton every three years and that newly apponted Drrectors must
submit themselves for reappointment at the first AGM after ther
appointment Notwithstanding the requirements proviced by the
Ariicles, the Beoard has resolved, consistent with the recommendations
of the Code (which applies 1o financtal years starting on or after

29 June 2010), that all Drectors should stand for annual re-electon

In making recommendations to shareholders for the reappontment/re-
elaction of any Director, the Nominaton Committee considers the
Drractor’s performance and therr ongoing coninbution to the success
of the Company and makes its relevant recommendation to the Bcard

Audit Committee

Following the retirement of Fiefcdls Wicker-Munn from the Board with
effect from 5 May 2010, the Committee has consisted of the three
independent Non-Executve Directors and has been chared by
Martn Angle The Committes met five times durnng the year

The meetings are also attended by the Group Charman (Non-
Exacutive), Group Chef Executive, Group Chief Financial Officer,
Group Financial Controller, representatives from the mtemal and the
extarnal auditors, Group Drector of Audit and Risk, Group Legal
Dwector & Company Secretary and other senior executves of the
Group by invitation Martn Angle has recent relevant financial
expenence ard the Board conaiders that the members of the Audit
Committee collectvely have sufficient recent and retevant financial
axpenence to cany out the funchons of the Committee
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The Committee s authonsed to Investigate any matter within its terms
of reference and, where necessary, to obtain extemal legal or other
ndependent professional advice The Committee's actviies dunng
the year have inctuded

- reviewing the half yvear and annual financial statements with
particular reference to accounting pobices, together with signdficant
estimatas and financial reporting jJudgements and the disclosures
made therein,

— monitonng the financial reporting process,

- reviewing management representations made to the external
auditors,

- reviewing the Group's proceduras to ensure that afl relevant
nformation I1s disclosed,

- discussing any 1ssues arising out of the half year review or the full
year audit with the external auditors (in the absence of management
where appropriate),

— making recommendatons to the Board with regard to contnuing
the appointment and remuneration of the external auditor;

— overseeng the Group's relations with the extemal auditor and the
effectivenass of the audit process,

-~ reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s intemal
financial controls,

- moritonng and reviewing the efflectiveness of the intemal audit
function and revewing all reports prepared by the internal auditors
and assassing management’s esponsveness to such reports, and

- reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group's intermal
control and nsk management systems (see pages 20 and 21)

Over the last 12 months the Committee In parhicular consiciered s
annual work plan to ensure that this was appropnately focused,
oversaw the satisfactory closure of the FSA's 'Arrow-Lite’ review of
Savills Private Finance Umited's processes and procedures which
focused on the surtability of mortgage and other regulated products
soid to clients, and its ‘Treating Customers Farly’ protocols) and
revewed the arrangements for the quality assurance of professional
work. The Committee also conskdered the implications of the UK
Bribery Act 2010 and the controls designed to prevent the Group,
and/or its associates, pint venture partners and agents, breaching the
Act The Committee will further consider these when the Government's
gudance on the ‘adequate proceduras’ reciured to mitigate this nsk
are published

The Committee also considers on an ongoing basts the independence
of the extemal audhtors and has established policies to consider the
appropnateness or otherwise of appoining the extermal auditors to
perform non-audit services including consideration as to whether the
auditors are the most suntable supplier of such servces

As detaled on page 26 the exdemal auditors are
PrcewaternouseCoopers LLP The external auditors are responable
for the annual audit and have also provided certan non-audit services
1o the Company, pnncipally acvos on taxation maiters The approval
of the Committee 1 required pror to awarding contracts to the external
auditors for non-audit services in excess of £100k. Below this level
the Chaiman is kept appraised of new nstructons gven to the
extenal auditors for the delivery of non-audit services The Audit
Committes is satisfied that such work was best undertaken by
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the ohyectty of the extemal
auditors has not been mparred by reason of this further work,

The Audit Committes considers that the relatonship with the auditors
I1s working well and remains satisfied with therr effectiveness and
contnued ndependence Accordingly, it has not considered it
necessary to tender the audit work since the audit was last tendered
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continued

in 2000 The external auditors are required to rotate the audtt partner
responsibie for the Group audit every five years. Thefe are no
contractual obiigations restncting the Company’s chace of

extermal auditor The Auditors’ report appears on page 41

The provision of Internal audit services dunng 2010 was ontty
delverad by the Group's intemal audit team and KPMG {(KPMG having
premously prowded intermal audit senaces on an outsourced basis)
The Board's responghbiity for intemal control and nskis detalled on
pages 20 and 21

Globally, all of our businesses have established whistie-blowing
procedures to enable employeas to raise concems about possible
mpropneties N financial reporting and other matters on a
confidental basis

Remuneraton Committee

Following the retrement of Fields Wicker-Miunn from the Board with
effect from 5 May 2010, the Committee has consisted of the three
Independant Non-Executive Directors and the Charman {who was
appointed as a Committee member in March 2010) Itis chared by
Charles McVeigh and meets at least three tmes ayear The Group
Cormpany Secretary I1s secretary to the Committee and also provides
advice {o 1t

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to determine Company
policy on senior executve remuneration and to agree the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors The Committee (excluding the
Charman) also determines the level of fees payable to the Chairman

In additon to the above responsibilities, the Committes in partcular
considered the renawal of the Group's longer term incentives To date,
the longer term ncentive has been provided through the Exacutve
Share Option Scheme 2001 This Scheme reaches the end of its
agreed tan year fe span n May 2011 {although options granted
pursuant ©its tefms up to and ncluding May 2011 wall contnue to
be exercisable subject to the satsfaction of the performance
conditrons attaching to them) After review, and having considered
the altematives, It 1s proposed that the Scheme is replaced by a
Performance Share Plan, details of which are set out in the
Remuneration report and in the AGM Circular

Given the central part that remuneraton plays in the success of the
Group, In terms of recruitment, motvation and ratention of high
qualty employees, the Group Chief Executive 1 consulted on the
remuneration packages of the Group Chief Financial Officer and
Group Exscutve Board members and attends Committse meestings
by Invitaton

The Committes is adwvisad by Towers Watson and the Group
Company Secretary The Committes does not deal with the fees paid
1o the Nen-Execuitve Directors, which are decided by the Exacutive
Drrectors and the Chaiman (except whan his own fee I1s being
discussad)

The report of the Remuneration Committee 1s set out on pages 32 to
39 The Ramuneration report will be put to shareholders at the AGM on
4 May 2011

Group Executive Board (‘GEB')

The GEB compnses the Group Chisf Executive, the Group Chief
Anancial Officer, the heads of the Group's businesses and the Group
Legal Director & Company Secretary Under the leadership of the
Group Chief Exacutive, the GEB s responsible for overseeing the
development and implementaton of strategy, the operatonal
performance of the Group and other specfic matters delegated

to it by the Board

Members of the GEB are detailed on page 23

Relations with shareholders

The Group recogrisas the importance of mantaning regular dialogue
with ts sharehoiders. The Group Chief Executive and Group Chief
Financial Officer have a regular programme of meetings and
presentations with analysts and investors, including presentations
following the publication of the Company’s full and half year resuits
This programme maintans the ongoing two-way dialogue between
the Company and sharehoiders, and heips 1o ensure that the Board
is aware of shareholders’ views on a tmely basis The Board also
recenves feedback at least twice each year from its corporats brokers
on investors’ and the market's percaptions of the Company

The AGM provides the Board with a valuable opportunity to
communicate with private sharehoiders and is generally attended by all
the Directors Shareholders are gven the opportunity to ask questions
dunng the meeting and to meet Directors following the conclusion of
the formal past of the meetng In accordance with the Code, the level
and manner of voting of proxies lotiged on each resolution at the AGM
1s declared at the meeting and published on the Company’s website
The Directors am to give as much notice of the AGM as possible
which will be atleast 21 clear days, as requred by ihe Articles

In accordance with the Artickss, electronic and paper proxy
appointments and voling instructions must be receved not later than
48 hours before a general meeting

The Company has taken advantage of the provisians within the
Companies Act 2006 which allow communications with shareholders

to be made electronically where shareholders have not requested hard
copy documentation Detalls of the information avallable for shareholders
can be found on page 96 Information about the Company is also
availabie on the Comparty's website fwww savils com)

Internal control and nsk management

The Board has ovarall responsibiity for establishing and maintaring the
Group's system of nsk management and intemal contral to safeguard
shareholders’ nvestments and the Group's assats, and for reviewing
the effectiveness of this systern However, such a system Is designed
o manage rather than eliminate the nek of falure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reascnable and not absolute
assurance aganst matenal misstatement or loss

Key elements of the Group's system of nsk management and intermial
control are

— acomprehensive system for planning and reporting the
performance of each operating subsidiary The GEB and the Board
meet regulerly and review the Group’s results against plan and the
previous year The Group regularly reviews performance forecasts
Clear responsibilites are gven to operational and financial managers
for the maintenance of effective financial controls and the production
of accurate and tmely financial management mformaton,

- the regular review and assessment of the performance of the
business including In relation ta nsk management and ntemal
control by the Board and its subcommittees, Including the GEB,
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— atftendance at operating subadiary and associate boards by
the Group Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial Cfficer
These boards and therr associated committises also meet regulary
and have formal reporing structures. Directors of operating
subsiclianes are also closely nvolved in the day to day business of
ther respective operations and are tasked with identifying key nsks
and ensunng that appropnate acton IS taken to mitgata and
manage these,

- a Group Risk Management Policy which sets out the process for
entifying, evalualing, assessing and managing the key nsks to
the Group's busness objectives, supported by an appropnate
organisational structure and clearly defined management
responsbilibes;

— a Group Risk Committee which reports to the GEB and 1s tasked
with the review, discussion and challenge of key nsks reported,
the ongaing Group-wide development of intermal control and
the monitonng of ntemal audits and cther sources of assurance
on the effectiveness of ntermal controls. The Committee consists
of the Group Chief Financial Officer, servor subsidiary business
management and Group function heads including the Group
Dwector of Audit and Risk, Group Legal Director & Company
Secretary and Group T Director;

— whistie-blowing procedures available to employees who are
concemed about possible impropnsty, financial or otherwise,
and who may wish to ensure that action is taken without fear
of victmisation or repnsal,

- a programme of assurance actmbes which assesses the
effectiveness of our ntemal controls in respect of our key nsks
which includes

— aprogramme of Intemal audits undertaken in accordance with
an annual nsk based plan approved by the Audit Committee
The plan s desigred to ensure that ntemal audit reviews are
focused on pnonty contrals across the Group 1o prowde both
ndependent review and challenge on the effectiveness of these
controls, ang the promotion of good practice and consistency
in thesr development,

— compliance programmes within our regulated businesses in
support of the Group’s commitment to conduct its business
responsibly and n accordance with all laws and regulations to
which iis business acivibes are subject, and

— an annual seif assessment and certificaton by management of
the exstence and effectiveness of the controls within each of our
operang subsidianes The resulis are collated for revew and
challenge by the Group Risik Committee and onward reporting
to the GEB and Audit Committee

The Audit Committes, on behalf of the Board, has revewed the
effectivenass of the systam of nsk management and intermal control
In performing its review of effectivenass, the Audit Committes
conadered the following raports and actmbes.

- mtemal audit reports on the revew of pnonty controls across the
Group and the monitonng of management actons ansing,

- management’s own assessrent of te parformance of the system
of nsk management and intemal control dunng 2010,

— invitabon of key financial and operational managers to present on the

operation of the system of nsk management and niemal control
within thewr businesses,

— reports from the Group Risk Committee including reporting on

Group-wide key nsk assessment activity and annual seff assessment

findings, and

G i 2%

- reports from the extemal auditors on any 1ssues dentified dunng the

oourse of thesr work.

The Board, havng reviewed the effectiveness of the system of intemal
control, can confirm that necessary actons have been, or are being,
taken to remedy any significant falings or weaknesses identified

Going concem

The Group's business actvities, together with the factors Iikely to affect
Its future developrment, performance and posiion are set out in the
Business review on pages 6 to 13 The financial position of the Group,
its cash flows, iquidity position and bomowing faciiies are descnbed in
the Financial review on pages 14 and 15 In addiion, Nete 3 to the
financial staterments includes the Group's objectives, policies and
processas for managing its capial, its financial nsk management
objectves, detalls of its financial instruments and hedging actvites,
and its expasures 1o credit nsk and liquidity nsk

The Group has considerable financial resources, including a £50m
committad revolving credit faciity that matures on 31 March 2014,
together with a broad spread of busimessas across different
geographic areas and sectors some of which enjoy stable revenue
under contract with a number of customers As a conseguence, the
Directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to manage its business
nsks successfully despite the curent uncertain economic outiook.

After making enquines, the: Directors have a reasonabie expectaton
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources

1o continue In operational existence for the foresesabls future
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concem basis in
prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts

By order of the Board

Peter Smith
Charman

16 March 2011
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Remuneration report

Remuneration Committee

The Board presents its Remuneration report, which has been
preparad on the recommendaton of the Remuneration Commities
and in accordance with the Comparsas Act 2006 Shareholders wil
be invited to approve the report at the AGM on 4 May 2011

The Committee is responsible for the broad policy goverming senior
employses’ pay and remunerabon It sets the actual levels of all
elements of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and reviews
that of the members of the GEB The Committee also oversees the
administration of Sawvills employee share schemes The Commitise’s
terms of reference are avalable at the Company’s websita

v savills com)

The Committee ams to ensure that seror employess (ncluding
Executive Drectors and GEB members) are rewarded for therr
contnbution to Savils and are motvated to enhance retums o
shareholders It advises the Board on the remuneration framework
and policy for such senior executives and, once formally endorsed by
the full Board, it apples the policy The Committee members are the
Independent Non-Exacutive Directors and the Chairman Dunng

the year the Committee cormpnsad the followang

Charles McVeigh {Committee Chaimar),
Martn Angle,

Timetny ingram,
Peter Smith, and

Flelds Wicker-Munn (untl retrement as a Director and a Committee
member on 5 May 2010}

Biographical detalls of the current Committes members are set out
onpage 22 The Committee met cn four occasions dunng the year
Attendance detals are shown on page 28

Adwice

Dunng the year Towers Watson advised the Commuittee on
appropnate salary and incentive arrangements for the Executive
Drectors and GEB members The Committee was also advised
and supported by the Group Company Secretary

Remuneration policy

It 1s essental that the Group provides remuneration packages which
attract, retan and motvate Executive Directors, GEB members and
employees of the highest quality Benefit packages awarded 1o
Executive Directors and GEB members are structured to prowde
acompettive mix of performance and non-performance related
remuneragon The arrangements are reviewed on a regular basis

In sating the remuneration of the Exaecutive Directors and GEB
mermbers the Committes 1s able to consider comporate performance
on environmental, social and govermnance Issues

The Board accepted all of the recommendations relaang to the
Executive Directors’ and GEB members’ remuneration made by
the Remuneration Committee dunng the financial year endect

31 December 2010

The remuneration for each of the Directors 1s shown on page 34
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Base salary

Savils’ business phiosophy 1s founded on the premise that employees
should be motvated through highty incentive-based (and therefore
vanabie) remuneraton Salanes for fee-eamers, paricularly more senior
ones, are genesally below market medians for smilar busnesses and

a greater emphasis 1s placed on the performance related elements

of either profit share bonus or commigsion N the total remuneration
package These lower salary levels help to Iimit related costs

e g pension) and also have the effect of reducing the fixed element

of the Group’s cost base For support staff, salanes are generally st
closer 1o market median levels Salanes for all employees are reviewed
annually (although not necessarily Increased) by each Group business

Jeremy Melsty's salary which was held at £195,000 p a, throughout
2009 In Ine with the cost reducton Intatives iImplemented across the
Group in Tesponse 10 e giobal financial cnsis, reveried o £210,000
p &, the level as onginally proposad with effect from 1 January 2010
Simon Shaw's salary was not increased dunng 2010 Salanes will be
reviewed, athough not necessanly Increased, In 2011 as part of the
broader review of salanes across the Group's businesses

Performance related profit share bonus

In general, sach Group business has a fee-eamer discretiorary profit
share bonus scheme where the annual profit share bonus pool
avallable for distbution is drrectly related to the profit of that Group
busness after chargng all costs {pre-profit share bonus) Including
central overheads and finance charges The profit share bonus pool
for each subsdiary company is generated by a formula. In the UK and
Europe, the amounis avalable for distnbution within these profit share
bonus pools are calculated in bands between 30% of the pre-tax and
pre-prefit share bonus profits through to B5% for excellent
performance, based on the achievernent of predstérmined targets
These bands are reviewed regularly

The Committes expects, over the cycke, profit share bonuses and
COMMISSIONS, Inaggregate, to be in the order of 55% to 65% of each
Group business' pre-tax profits excluding charges for such payments
Awards 1o fee-earming employees are assessed by reference 1o fee
eaming achievements, the profitabilty of the ndvidual’s area of
responability, contnbution to business development and managenal
respongabiliies

Equvalent arangements are in place N the US and Asia Pacrfic,
talored to the particular requirements of each indvidual market

A portion of the profit share bonus of senior employses, GEB
members and Executive Directors may be deferred for a panod of not
less than threa years and awarded In shares under the Savills Deferred
Shara Bonus Han, detalls of which can be found on page 35

Senior employees, GEB members and Executive Directors may
partcipate in the Savlls Deferred Share Bonus Plan, the Savils
Executve Share Option Schamae (2001), the Savills Share Incentive
Plan and the Sawlls Sharesave Scheme, detalls of which are given
on pages 35 and 36 Detals of any awards made to Executive
Drectors under these schemes are gven on pages 36 to 38

Senior employees and GEB members, but not the Executve Directors,
may also parteopate N the Savils Deferred Share Plan, detals of which
are given on page 35

Longer term Incentves

To dats, longer term incentives have been prowded through the grant
of options pursuant 1o the Savils Executive Share Option Scheme
{2001) ('the Scheme') The Scheme reaches the end of Its agresd ten
year Ife span n May 2011 {athough options granted pursuant to its
terms up to and Including May 2011 will continue to be exercisable
subject to the satisfaction of performance cntena attaching to them)
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Dunng the year, the Committes, adused by Towers Watson,
undertook a remew of long temm incentves and concluded that these
would be better provided through a Performance Share Plan (PSP},
rather than an opbon scheme, as this would be better aligned {0 the
Group's strategic obxectives and would better ink reward with
shareholder value creaton

It 1s therefore proposed that a PSP is introduced, effective May 2011,
and aresolution to ths effect s Induded for shareholder consideration
in the AGM businass Under the proposed PSP, Executive Directors,
GEB members and certan cther serior executives will be granted nil
cost optons or condiional shares (or CSOP optors) which wil
become exercisable/vest dependent on performance measured
aganst two distinct metncs over at least a three year penod

it 1s mtended, subject 1o sharehalders approving the implementation
of the PSP, that the first awards under the PSP are granted in 2011

For the Executve Directors and GEB members awands granted in
2011 will be subject to the following performance conditions

{a) 50% of the Iniuat value of an award wil be subject to Total
Sharehdlder Retun (TSR} performance measured agamst the
TSR of the FTSE Md 250 Inclex (excluding iInvestment trusts)
providing alignment with shareholder value creation,

() the other $0% of the inigal value of an award will be subject to
real (e growth In excess of RPI) Group Eamings per Share ('EPS')
growth performance, to provide a close focus on eamings growth
over the performance penod

Awards would vest as follows.

{a) for the TSR Inked part of an award, 25% (e threshold) will vest
the Company’s TSR matches Index performancs, nsing to 100%
{ie maxmum)if the Company's TSR outperforms the Index by 8%
p a., compound with sliding scale vestng between the two ponts,
and

{b) for the EPS growth Iinked part of an award, 25% (e thrashold) wil
vest if the Company’s real EPS growth (& growth in excess of RPI)
153% p a, compound nsrg to 100% e maxmumy if the
Company’s real { e growth In excess of RP) EPS growth 1s 8%

p a, compound with siding scale vesting between the two pomnts.

Ful details of the proposed PSP, including a summary of its key rles
and the perfarmance cntena which would apply to the first awards
granted pursuant fo tt, are included in the separate AGM Circular

Pension

The Pension Plan of Savils ('the Plan'’), which provided final salary
pension benefits to employees whe joined the Group before 2000
(including Jeremy Helsby) closed te future benefit accrual with effect
from 31 March 2010 (full detalls of the pension benefits provided by
the Plan for Executive Drectors are on page 34) From 1 Aprl 2010
pension benefits for former members of the Plan were instead
prowded through the Group's defined contnbution Personal Pengion
Ptan ['GPP), or for those indwduals (including the Group Chief
Exacutive) who were preciuded from poining another Registered
Pensicn Scheme due 10 A-Day nules, through a separate non-
pensionable salary supplement {equal In value to the confributions
that would otherwise have been paid on therr behalf into the GPP)
As a trangiional arangemient, employsr contributions in relation to all
former Plan members, nduding Jeremy Helsby, were set at 20% of
pensionable salary for the penod untl March 2015, thereafter employer
contnbutons for former Plan members, including Jeremy Helsby, wil

reduce 1o 14% of pensionable salary

Ol govemnancs:
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Benefits

Executive Directors, GEB members and senior employees are
provided with a company car (or car alowance) and they and therr
immediate famiies are members of the Group's private medical or
hospital nsurance schemes

External drectorships

The Executive Directors and GEB members are allowed {0 accept
extemal non-executive directorships, subject to approval by the
Board and any conditons that it might impose  For non-executve
directorships which are considered 1o anse by wirtue of an Executive
Dwector's or GEB member's poaton within Sawls, the fees are pad
drrectly to Savils. Dunng 2010 and urvelated to his employment wath
the Group, Simon Shaw received a fee of £30,000 In relaton to his
continuing appaintment as Non-Executive Chaman of Synargen pic

Non-Executive Directors' remuneration
The fees for the Charman are determined by the Board

The fees for the other Non-Executve Directors are set by the Board,
excluding the Non-Exacuive Directors, within the Imits set in the
Articies. The Non-Executive Directors do not recaive any share
options, profit share bonuses or any other performance related
payments nor do they recerve any pension entitement The fees
payable to the Non-Exaecutive Drectors were not increased dunng
2010 but will ncrease from 1 Jduly 2011 to align fees more clossly to
market levels reflecting therr responsibiibes and commitment Peter
Smith's fee as Group Charman was also not increased dunng 2010

Executive Directors’ remuneration

Salary and profit share bonus

The salary and profit share bonus arangements of the Executive
Drrectors are structured by reference to ther prmary role within the
Group The base salanes for all Executive Drectors are set at levels
which are signficantly below market medians

The profit share bonusas for Exacutive Directors in respect of the 2010
financial year reflect, firstly, the Group's financial performance and
secondly an objectves-based eement reflecting indmvidual
performance/contnbution dunng the course of the year measured
against cntena pre-set by the Committee

The maximum profit share bonus potential for the Group Chief
Executive 1s £2m in any year and for the Group Chief Financial Officer
1S E1 5m Part of the profit share bonus is delivered in the form of
deferred shares with the proporion that 1s delivered In the torm of
deferred shares nang as profit share bonus Increases

The above arangements also apply for the 2011 financial year

Pension

Jerermy Helsby parbeipated in the Plan unil the closure of the Plan to

futtire accrual with effect from 31 March 2010 Thereafter, asan

indwvdual subject to A-Day penson limits, he recaived a non-pensionable

salary supplement (which at 209 of pensionable salary was ecud In

value to the contributions that would otherwisa have been pad on his |
behalf into the GPP) For Simon Shaw, the Company contributes 18%

of pensionable salary to his persona pension plan {equal In value to the

connbutions that would otherwse have been pad on hs behalf into

the GPP)

Under the Plan and the GPP only base salary 1s pensionable

The curent normal retirement ags under the Plan is B0 although
as a result of Age Discnminaton legidlaton the Company’s normal
retrement age has Increased to 65 The current nomal retrement
age under the GPP 1s age 65




Savilis plc Report and Aoocounts 2010 Qur husiness 01-21 Qur gevenans: Qur results 42-96

Remuneration report
continued

Analysis of Directors’ remuneration (audited)

Employer
pension
contribubon
(ncluding
fined satary,
GPP and profit
share bonus
Satary/fees Profit share boruss Benefits waved) Total
Year to Yaar to
Yearto 31 Decemnber 31 Ducermber Year to Year to Year to Yaar to
31 Dacember 210 2010 31 Decembar 31 December 31 December 31 Decernber
210 Cash# Defermud Shares® 2010 2010 2010 2009
Executive Directors £ £ £ £ E £ g
Jeremy Helsby 210,000 632,100 276,900 10,675 48485 1,178,160 771,283
Simon Shaw++ 175,000 523,600 232,400 9,000 31,500 971,500 580,929
Former Executive Directors
Simon Hope
{resgred 18 January 2010)+ 5,081 - - 518 - 5,599 500,450
Robert McKellar
{resigned 18 January 2010)+ 8,937 - - 4,348 47 13,732 754,032
Rupert Sebag-Montefiors
resigned 18 January 2010)+ 4,839 - - 515 - 5,354 706,189

Non-Executive Directors

Martn Angle (Charman —

Audt Committea) 44,490 - - - - 44,490 40,000
Timothy Ingram™ 40,000 - - - - 40,000 40,000
Charles McVeigh

{Chairman — Bemuneration Committee)™ 47,500 - - - - 47,500 47,500
Peter Smith 150,000 - - - - 150,000 150,000
Felds Wicker-Miunn (retired 5 May 2010) 16,399 - - — - 16,389 47,500

*  Fordetals of the Deferred Share Bonus Pn piease refer to page 35

* Payment of £22,258 was made to Caledana Invesiments pic for the period from 1 January 2010 10 21 July 2010, when he tatred a5 Crvef Executive of the cornpany

- The Charrmen of the Audit and Remunemicn Committess each recelve £7,500 for undertaking these addiflord responsibiiies. Marth Angle bocame Chanman of the Audt Commitiee
with affect from 5 May 2010 on the retrerment of Flekls Wicker-Mum,

+ Todate of resignation trom the Board

+t+ Simen Shaw was appohited to the Board on 16 Magch 2009

#  Excluded from the cash profit share bonus figures for 2010 for Jerermy Heksby and Simon Shew are the amounis of £14,000 and £25,000 which were wanved In favour of contrbutions to
registered charities (2008 Jerermy Helsby wahved £10,000%

Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors were not ncreased dunng 2010 but wall iIncrease from 1 July 2011 to £46,000 p a. From the same
date, the Charman of the Audit Committee will receve an addinonal fee of £10,000 p a., the Charman of the Rermuneration Commuttee an
additional fee of £7,500 p a, and the Senior Independent Drrector an additional fee of £5,000 p a, In recognition of the additonal servces
provided by them to the Company In therr respectve roles

Pensions disclosure (audited)

Increasefdecreasa) m Increasa/{decrease) In
accrued Transfer value of the Total incroase wansfer
penson dunng the ncreasef{decraane) Accumulated total n accruad Transter value of total value over tha year,
yOar N oxcass less Directors  accrued pension at the pension dunng pension &t start and less Diroctor's
of infiation’ contribubons? end of the year® tha year' end of the year’ contnbuons®
H 31 3 31 3 31 3 31 )l 3 a 3
Dacotrber Docamber December  Decavber Decermber Decambes Docembal  Decarnber Dacember Decombor  December  Uecenrber
Executve 2010 2009 2010 2000 2010 2000 2010 2000 00 2000 2010 2009
Drrectors £ £ £ ¢ £ £ £ £ £ g £ ¢
Joremy Helsby  (1,080) 2,692 (26,374) 40910 49,958 49504 454 2,602 1,046450 983404 61,049 165,407

Notes

1 The table shows the nareasedecrease) n accrued pension dumng the vear excluding any harease for nflation The transter vale of this noreasevdecreasd) n pansion s also shown less
the contrbutions made by the Drector during the year

The acaurnuiated acerued pension entidement shown 1S that which would be paid annualy on retrement based on senvioe 1o the year end The actual ncrease n pension ovet heyear s

a0 shawn fwih no gowencs for e noresee nnflaton)

The transfer valua of the total pension accrued at the year end detemined at the year end is set aut along with e cormparative amcunts at the end of the pravious year

The nareasa(decreasd n the amount of e fransfer value less the contributions made by the Dwector dumg the penad, has also bean determned

The trensfer valseo represents the amount payable by the pansicn pian should the Diector Tansfer hes penacn fights to another provider However, the Plan s underfundad at present and

tharelore ary transfer values paid would be reducad from the amount shown to reflect the underfunded percentage

The transfer value represents the amount payable by the pension plan should the Director transfer his pension nghts to another provider
Al transier values quoted are calcuiated on the basis of actuanal advce In accordance wih The Oocupationa) Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
{Armendment) Regulations 2008

b N
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Share related ncentives

Drectors’ Deferred Share Bonuses and other schemes

The Group operates five employee share schemes, detals of which
are below The Committee keeps these schernes under review to
ensure their continued effectiveness and compliance with best practice
and contribution to shareholder value

The Savills Deferred Share Bonus Plan {'the DSBF') and the Savills
Defarred Share Plan {the DSP)

The DSBP was adopted by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee in 2001 The DSBP reaches the end of its ten
year life span in May 2011, when it will be renewed for a further ten year
term without any change of substance except for the niroducton of
claw-back provsions — sea paragraph below) The DSBP (as amended)
will prowvde for the award of ril cost options or condlibonal shares based
on parformance achievernents measured over the mmediately
preceding financial year The performance targets are specfic to each
indvcual and erther relate to Group thrasholds, business und targets or
acombinabon of both In order o stpport retenton of key fee-camears, a
proporbon of any profit share bonus 1s requred to be taken in the form of
deferred shares. The DSBP remains closely aligned to Savills successiul
executve remunerabon strategry, which 1s to iInclude a meaningful
performance related pay element and to control the level of base annual
salanes at genor levels significantly below market comparables.

The deferred element provides an added incentive In the form of
potental share pnce growth over the deferred penod together with an
Important retention aspect N that awards normally lapse In the event of
exacuives leaving servwce before the vesting date

Awards of nil cost opiong/conditonal shares normally vest after a
deferral penod of not less than three years although a longer deferral
penod may apply The shares are subject to forfeiture If the executive
leaves service prior to the vesting dats other than in defined ‘good
eaver’ stuatons (e g redundancy or il-health} The shares to satsfy
awards are acqurred by purchase in the market through an
ndependent employee benefit rust (‘the EBT') wath funds provided by
the relevant employing company For awards made from 2006
omwards, the number of shares awarded 1s increased on the vesting
date to reflect final and intenm dividends paxd to ordinary shareholders
throughout the deferral penod There are No powers to Issue new
shares (or to resssue existing reasury shares) under either the DSBP
or the EBT and therefore there 1s no dilution of exssting shareholdings
The EBT can hold up to 16% of the Company’s 1ssued share

capital This Iimit was agreed after fult consuitaton with mstitutonal
sharsholders n 2002-2003 and approved by ordinary resolution of
shareholders at the AGM In 2003

In surnrnary, the combination of a profit share bonus award system
wiich is highly geared to reward performance together with a deferred
glernent in the form of Savills shares provides a key element in Savils
remuneration strategy both as an incentve and as a retenon tool

The DSP provdes for the grant of awards of deferred shares which
nomally vest not earlier than three years from the award date (the
deferral penod may be longer) The DSP prowdes the scope for the
Board to make such awards to key executives where the Board
consders that there are partcular busness reasons, N the nterests
of the Company, for appiying a retention elerment to remuneraton {for
example on the acguisiion of & busness) Awards under the DSP are
forfestad if the exective leaves the employrment of the Group before

CHIE GOver NAanGe

Our results 42-06

the end of the deferralloption penod (with exceptions for ‘good
ieavers’) The shares required to satisfy DSP awards are furndad
through the EBT in the same manner as DSBP awards are funced
(996 paragraph two of the previous sacton) There are no powers 1o
133U8 New shares or 10 reissue existing treasury shares under the DSP
and therefora there 1s ne diution of existing shareholdings

The Executive Directors are not eigible to receive awards under

the DSP

In accordance with cument best coporate govemance practce
introduced in 2010, both the DSBP and DSP wall now Include claw-
back prowsions which can be applied in excepional crcumstances
of the misstatement of performance or misconduct.

The Savils Bxecutve Share Option Scheme (2001) (‘the 2001 Scheme')
The 2001 Scheme was authonsed by shareholders at the AGM in
2001 and compnses a scheme approved by HM Revenue and
Customs {HMRC") and a schedue under which options which do
not fall within the HMRC approval imits may be granted The 2001
Scheme reaches the end of its ten year agreed Ife span in May 2011,
although options granted up o and iIncluding May 2011 will continue
10 be exercisable n the nomal fashion, subject to the sasfacton of
performance condiions attaching to them, 1@ options granted under
the 2001 Scheme are nomally exercisable not eartier than three years
following the date of grant and not later than ten years from the date of
grant fwith exceptons for ‘good leavers’) Grants are normally made
annually on a phased basis and the exercise of opbons 1s subject 10
the achievement of a performance target related to the increase in the
Company's eamings per share compared with a stated percentage
above nflaton over a fixed three year penod The ability 1o re-measure
performance over a later penod if not met within the inital three year
penod was removed In 2004 subect to one transsional grant whereby
the performance coud, if necessary, be re-measured over an
extended penod of four yaars, Options are currently satisfied by the
1ssue of new shares within the ABI's dilution lirmits

The performance target that applies to options grantad between 2001
and 2006 requrres that the Company’s eamings per share must
increassa over the penod of thres consecutive financial years by an
average of at lsast 3% p a., above nflaton {as measured by the Retad
Pnces Index (@l tems) ('RPI} Options granted from 2006 onwards are
subject to a tered approach whereby, In respect of any grant, the first
one-third of the number of shares under option 1s subect to the above
RPI+ 3% p a,, targst with an escalaiing performance requerernent In
respact of the remaning two-thirds as follows

Second one-third of the number of shares - RPl + 4% pa
Final one-third of the number of shares - RPl + 5% p a.

As explained above and on pages 32 and 33, and more fully In the
AGM Qrredar, 1t 1s propesed that the 2001 Scheme 1s replaced when
It reaches the end of its agreed ten year Ifespan in May 2011 by a
Performance Shars Plan
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Remuneration report

continued
The Sawvils Sharesave Scheme (‘the Sharesave Scheme’) The Sawills Share Incenive Plan {'SIP")
Exacutive Directors are eligible to partcipate in the Sharesave Scheme, At the AGM on 7 May 2003, shareholders approved the ntroducton of
which 1s an HMRC approved scheme opan to al employees of the SIP Thisis a share purchase plan approved by HMRC avaiable to
nominated partcipatng companies who have a minimum of three all employees iIncluding the Executive Directors The scheme 1s amed
months' service at the date of invitation The Sharesave Scheme was at encouragng employee share ownership and an Interest I the
adopted by shareholders in 1988 with a ten year Ife and, following Company’s performance Employees invest in Savills plc shares by
shareholder approval, replaced in 2008 with an updated scheme making contnbutions from therr gross salary subyect to a curent
The Sharesave Scheme 1s linked to a monthly savngs contract and statutory annual imit of £1,500 (£125 per month) If the shares are
ophons are granted at a maximum 20% discount to market price hekd In the SIP for five years no income tax or NICs are payable

The most recent invitation was limited to three year savngs contracts, The scheme was launched in May 2004 There are other slements of
although the rules currently allow thres or five year savings contracts the SIP authonsed by shareholders but it is not the present iIntenton

1o be oifered to offer these elements
Ordinary shares (audited)
Interests In the share capital of the Company beneficially held by the Directors as at 31 Dacember 2010 are detaled below
At3t
December 2010
or data of
31 Decernbor
retrement 2009
Martin Angle - -
Jeremy Helsby 604,849 604,849
Simon Hope {resigned 18 January 2010) 105,555 105,516
Timothy Ingram 24,000 24,000
Robert McKellar (resigned 18 January 2010) 132,048 132,048
Charles McVegh - -
Rupert Sebag-Montefiore (resigned 18 January 2010) 263,994 263,955
Simon Shaw €55 192
Peter Smith 20,000 20,000
Felds Wicker-Miunn (retired & May 2010) 1,360 1,360

No Directors have bought or sold shares since 31 December 2010, with the exception of Simon Shaw who 1s 2 member of the SIP and as such
has acquired 103 shares trough the SIP

Itis the Board's policy that each Executive Director should aim to hold at least 105,000 sheras fvalued at 31 12 10 £405,510) In the Company
(except for the Group Chief Exacutve whio should own at least 150,000 shares {valued at 31 12 10 £579,300) Directors are expected to buid
holdings to this level over time, principalty through the retention of shares released to them (after setting any tax due) following the vesting of share
awards Above these limits the Board takes the view that the Directors may retain or sell shares as they see fit

The Savills Sharesave Scheme (audited)

Nunbar of shares
At Kil Deoan'&::g.fl Market orioa Exaxcisa Exarasabla
31 Dacomber Granted Exercisad Lapsed 2010 ardate of andatoot prica withn six
Owrectors 2009 durng year durng year dung year resignatan exercse pershare  months from
Jeremy Healsby 1,098 — — 1,098 — - 5105p 010708
Simon Hope
resigned 18 January 2010) 3,018 - - - 3,018 - 318p 011210
Rupert Sebag-Montefiore
{resigned 18 January 2010} 3,398 - - - 3,388 - 267p 011212

Simon Shaw 3,368 - - - 3,398 - 267p 011212
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The Sawills Executive Share Option Scheme (2001) (audited)
Number of shares
At Markei
Al HMRC 31 Devermber pree Exgrose Date
31 Decamber Granted Approvedt Exercsed Lapsed 2010a dateof ondaled price  nomally frst
Drectors 2000 dungyewr  Unepprowd  dungyesr  duiigyoar | resgnatn execse  persare  exercsable  BXpry dale
Jeremy Helsby 9,338 - Approved - - 9,338 - 32125 140308 140315
23,662 - Unapproved - - 23,662 - 32125p 140308 140315
50,000 —  Unapproved - - 50,000 - 300125 160411 160418
135,084 —  Unapproved - - 135064 - 28875p 170412 170419
- 114,386 Unapproved - - 114,386 - 34095 190413 190420
Smon Hope
{resigned 18 January 2010) 9,338 - Approved - - 9,338 - 32125 140308 140315
22,662 —  Unapproved - - 22,662 - 32126p 140308 140315
36,666 -~ Unapproved - - 36,666 - 300125p 160411 160418
72,727 —  Unapproved - - 72,727 - 28875 170412 170419
Robert McKsllar
{resigned 18 January 2010) 9,338 - Approved - - 9,338 - 32126p 140308 140315
20,662 - Unapproved - - 20,662 - 32125p 140808 140315
35,666 —  Unapproved - - 36,666 - 300125p 160411 160418
72,727 —  Unapproved - - 72,727 — 28875p 170412 170419
Rupert Sebag-Montsfiore
resigned 18 January 2010) 46,000 - Unapproved - - 46,000 - 21775 300307 300314
9,338 - Approved - - 9,338 — 32125p 140308 1403145
23,662 - Unapproved - - 23,662 - 32125p 140308 140315
36,666 - Unapproved - - 36,366 - 300125 160411 160418
72,727 - Unapproved - - 72,727 — 28875p 170412 170419
Simon Shaw 10,389 - Approved - - 10,389 ~ 28875p 170412 170419
114,286 - Unapproved - - 114,286 - 28875p 170412 170419
- 61,502 Unapproved - - 61592 - 34085p 190413 180420
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Remuneration report
continued

The Sawvilis Deferred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP) (audited)

Number of shares
Closng md-
A imarket price
At 31 Decomber o aSavils pi Market valio
31 Decerbe Auraded Vestd 2010orcated  sham haday aldats  MNomalvesing
Directors 2000 auring year during year reSgation before grant* of vesting date
Jeremy Helsby 11,284 - 11,284 - 642 5p FESp 140310
26,676 - 26,676 - 656p 356 5p 180310
60,929 - - 60,529 328 25p - 1703114
72,727 - - 72,727 288 75p - 1704 12
- 34,538 - 34,538 340 2p - 130413
Smon Hepe
{resigned 18 January 2010) 113618 - - 113,618 642 5p - 140310
57,164 - - 57,164 656p - 190310
45,696 - - 45,6086 328 25p - 1703 11
51,848 - - 51,948 288 75p - 170412
Robert McKellar
{resigned 18 January 2010} 15,564 - - 15,564 842 5p - 1403 10
11,432 - - 11,432 856p - 1903 10
30,464 - - 30,464 328 25p - 1703 11
25,974 - - 25974 288 75p - 170412
Rupert Sebag-Montefiore
{resigned 18 January 2010) 30,487 - - 30,487 656p - 190310
80929 - - 60,929 328 25p - 1703 14
10,389 - - 10,389 288 75p - 170412
Simon Shaw - 42,621 - 42621 340 2p - 130413

* Mid markat proes for awards phor to 11 May 2006 have not been adjusted to accaunt for the 2 1 share subdiision on that date

No options granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme (2001) were exercised by Directors dunng the year Under the DSBP 37,960
shares vested dunng the year, no DSBP awards lapsed Under the Executive Share Opton Scheme (2001) options no ordinary shares lapsed
dunng the year Tha mid-market pnce of the shares at 31 December 2010 was 386 2p and the range dunng the year was 273 1p to 339p

Directors’ service contracts

The Group Chief Execuiive and Group Chief Financial Cificer both have service agreemients with Savils pie These agreerments can be
terminated by the Company on provision of 12 months’ notice The Chairman's letter of engagement allows for six months’ notice Other Non-
Executve Directors are appointed for an inial penod of three years. These appontments may also be renewed for subsequent terms Detalls are
as follows

End date of curent

Data apponied to Board letter of appohiment Notice paricd
Marin Angle 2 January 2007 1 January 2013 Terminable at wil
Jeremy Helsby 1 May 1999 rva" 12 months
Timothy Ingram 27 June 2002 26 June 2011 Terminable at will
Charles McVeigh 1 Aligust 2000 31 July 2012 Terminabie at wil
Simon Shaw 16 March 2009 war 12 months
Peter Smith 24 May 2004 25 May 2013 6 months

*  Butsubject to the Artdes of Assocation

The Compary may, If it chooses, terminate an Executive Director's senvice contract by making a payment in leu of rotice to him No Executive
Drrector, except for the Group Chief Executive, 1s entiled to receve any unpaxd profit share bonus on termination of employment unless he is
employed by the Compary on the first day of the month in which such profit share bonus is payable and has not previously given notce

The Group Chisf Executive is enfitied to receive a pro rata profit share bonus on terminaton of employment in respact of the penod up 1o the date
of expiry of his contractual notice pencd provided he Is a ‘good leaver’ fwhich expression does not include dismissal due 1o poor performance)
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Performance graph

The total shareholder retum delivered by the Comparty over the last five years i1s shown in the chart below Over thus penod the Company has
delivered total sharsholder retum of -2% (FTSE 250 (excluding irvestment trusts) 9%) Sawvils was ranked 126" by performance in the FTSE 250
(excluding Investment trusts) over the five years to 31 December 2010

The Directors bebeve that the FTSE 2580 (excluding investment trusts) is the most appropnate index aganst which 1o compare total shareholder
retum as it s an index of companes of simiar size to Savilis plc

Below 1s a graph showing total shareholder retum for Sawvills pic against the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) Index over the last five years

Graphic removed

By order of the Board

Charles McVeigh
Chaiman of the Remuneration Committee

16 March 2011
Regsterad Office 20 Grosvenor Hil, Berkeley Square, London WK 3HQ
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Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are rasponsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Rernuneration report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Compary law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with
Intermatonal Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted by the
European Unien Under company law the Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a frue
and far view of the stats of affarrs of the Group and the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Company and Group for that penod In
prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select sutable accountng policies ard then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prucdlent,

— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Europsan Union
have been folowed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned in the financial staterments,

The Directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accountng
records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positon of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the Drectors’ Remuneraton
report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventon and
detection of fraud and other Imegulantes

The Directors are responaible for the maintenance and integnty of the
Company's website Legisiation in the United Kingdom goveming the
preparaton and dissemination of financial statements may difer from
legisiation in other junsdictions

Directors' responsibllity staterment

The Directors confim that pursuant to OTR4, to the best of each

persan's knowledge

~ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, gve a

true and far view of the assets, labilives, financial positon and profit
of the Group, and

— the Directors’ report contained on pages 24 to 26 iIncludss a far
remew of the development and performance of the business and
the posttion of the Group, together with a descnption of the
pnncipal nsks and uncertaintes that it faces

By order of the Board

Jeremy Helsby
Group Chief Executive

Chns Lee
Group Legal Drector & Company Secretary

16 March 2011
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Sawvills plc

We have audited the financial statements of Savills ple for the year
endad 31 Decamber 2010 which compnse the Consolidated income
staternent, the Consoldated statesnent of comprehensive incoms,
the Consobdated and Company statements of financial posion, the
Consolidated statement of changes In equity and Company statement
of changes in equity, the Consolidated and Company statements of
cash flows and the related notes. The financial reportng framework
that has been applied N ther preparation 1s appicable law and
Intermational Rnancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as appied in accordance with the prowsions of the
Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibiiies of directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Drectors’ Responsibiibes Statement
set out on page 40, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they gve a true
and far wew Our responsibiity 1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial staternents N accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Audiing {UK and Ireland) Those standards
reqilre us o comply with the Audiing Practices Beard's Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

This report, iIncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for
the Company’s members as a bedy In accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other pumpose We do
rot, In gving these opinions, accept or assume responsibiity for ary
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
inte whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
pror consent in witing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and
disclesures in the financial staternents sufficient to give reascnable
assurance that the financial staternents are free from matenal
misstatsment, whether caused by fraud or error This inciudes an
assassment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Group's and the parent company’s creumstances and have been
consstently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
sgniicant accounting estmates mads by the Directors, and the overall
presentaton of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opnion

- the financial statements give a tnue and far view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent company's affars as at 31 December
2010 and of the Group's profit and Group's and parent comparny's
cash flows for the year then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been property prepared In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

— the parent compary financal staterments have been property
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Umion and as apphed in accordanca wath the provsions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

- the financial statemenis have been prepared n accordance with
the requrements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinon

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited has

been property prepared in accordance with the Comparies
Act 20086, and

— the information given in the Diraciors’ report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared s consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
excepton

Woe have nothing to report in respect of the foowing

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are recuuired 10 reporn to you |, n
our opirion

— adequate accountng records have not been kept by the parent
compary, or retums adequats for our audit have not been receved
from branches notviaited by us, or

= the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Drrectors’ Rermuneration report to be audited are not n agreement
with the accounting records and retums, or

~ certan disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

= we have not received alt the inforrmation and explanatons we requre
for our audt

Under the Listng Rules we are required to review'

— the Directors' statement, set out on page 31, in relation to
going concem,

- the pants of the Corporate Govemance Statement relating to the
Company’s complianca with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review; and

— certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
rectors’ remuneration

(.

Waters
ior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

16 March 2011
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Consoldated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes m £m
Revenue 5 6770 5607
Less
Employee benefits expense 8@) {437 6) 357 2
Depreciation 15 66} {70
Amortisation and mparment of goodwil and intangible assats 14 @&n {79
Other operating expenses (188.3) (1779
Other operating Income 6 03 02
Loss on disposal of subsidiary, associate and
avalable-for-sale investments 6 1) -
Opearaiing profit 366 109
Finance Income 10 12 23
Finarce costs 10 22 23
(LR -
Share of post-tax profit from associates and joint ventures 16(a) 1.2 26
Profit before Incorme tax 368 136
Incorne tax expense 11 ma 43
Profit for the year 251 92
Attmbutable to
Owners of the Company 250 89
Non-controlling interests 01 03
251 92
Earrings per share
Basic eamings per share 13(a) 20.5 73p
Diluted samings per share 13(a) 19.8 69p
Undariying eamings per share
Basic samings per share 13(b) 279 145p

Diuted sarmings per share 13() 270 138p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010

Noles £m £m
Profit for the year 251 92
Other comprebensive income
Farr value loss on avallable-for-sale nvestments 16(b) 03 08
Actuanal garv{loss) on defined benefit pension scheme 9 105 (128)
Tax on items relating 1o components of other comprehensive Income 11 {2.1) 52
Currency transiaton differences 48 B8
Other comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year, net of tax 129 (182)
Tota comprehensive Income/foss) for the year 380 e]0)}
Total comprehensive income/{loss) attributalie to
Owmers of the Company 378 ©1)
Non-controling nterests 02 01
38.0 o0
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Consolidated and Company statements of financial position
at 31 December 2010

Group Compary
2010 2009 2010 2000
Notes m £m am om
Assets. Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 156 177 183 13 09
Goodwil 14 1343 1283 - -
intangible assets 14 196 206 15 11
Investments in subsichanes 16(c) - - 126 6 1339
Investments N assocates and joint ventures 16{a) 1t 6 126 - -
Deferred income tax assels 17 255 274 16 17
Avalable-for-sale Investments 16{p) 14.2 140 - 02
2229 2212 1310 1378
Assets, Curent assets
Worlc in progress 36 29 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 1792 1435 145 113
Current ncome tax recevable 24 19 49 i8
Denvatve financial instruments 23 - 01 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 972 816 - 192
2824 2300 194 323
Labilites Current labiites
Borrowangs 22 63 63 6.3 -
Denvative financial Instruments 23 o1 - - -
Tradke and other payables 20 2099 1650 124 147
Current ncome tax labimes 66 25 - -
Employee benefit chikgations 24{) 47 31 - -
Prowisions for other liabilibes and charges 2443) 78 52 02 G3
2354 1821 189 150
Net curment assets 47.0 479 0.5 173
Total assets less curent liabiities 2699 269 1 1315 1551
Liabilibes Non-current liabiliies
Borewings 22 40 90 - -
Derivative financial iInstruments 23 04 o7 - -
Trade and other payables 21 168 111 53 137
Retirernent and employee banefit obligations 9 &24(p) 29.0 426 12 21
Provigions for other labilites and charges 244a) 7.8 44 12 12
Deferred income tax liabilites 17 28 36 - -
60.8 714 77 170
Net assets 2091 1977 1238 138 1
Equity Capital and reserves attnbutable 1o owners of the Comparny
Share capital 25 33 33 33 33
Share premium B40 830 840 830
Other resarves 27 242 196 33 33
Retained eamings 27 989 912 332 485
2104 1971 1238 1381
Non-contraling interests (13 06 - -
Total equity 2091 1977 1238 138 1

The consolidated financial statements of Sawils plc, registered number 2122174, were aporoved by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2011
and signed on its behalf by

JCHelsby SJBShaw
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Atinbutable to owners of the Group

Share Share Other Retained oonuolN?r; Total
capital premum reserves eammgs Total interests equity
Notes om £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2010 a3 830 196 912 1971 06 1977
Profit for the year - - - 250 250 01 251
Other comprebensive incomea/loss)
Fair value loss on avalable-for-sale
investments 16(b) - - (03 - (03 - 0.3)
Actuanal gan on defined benefit
pension scheme 9 - - - 105 105 - 10.5
Tax on items drrecty taken 1o reserves 1 - - 02 2.3 21 - 21)
Curency translation differences - - 47 - 4.7 01 48
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 46 332 378 02 38.0
Transactons with owners.
Employee share option scheme
- Value of services provided 27 - - - 113 113 - 11.3
Purchass of treasury shares 27 - - - 12 1123 - (11.2)
lssie of share capital 26(b) - 10 - - 10 - 1.0
Dvidends 12 - - - {11.0) (110 (11) (12.1)
Transactions with non-controling interests 16(f) - - - {14.6) (14 6) {10) {15.6)
Balance at 31 December 2010 33 84,0 242 98.9 2104 (13) 209.1
Attributable 1o owners of e Group
Nor
Share Share Oer Relaned controfing Total
capital premium reseives eanngs Total nieresls equty
Noles £m m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2009 33 830 295 928 2086 24 2110
Profit for the year - - - 89 89 03 92
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Fair vaue loss on avalable-for-sale
Fvestments 16(b) - - 08 - ©8) - 08
Actuanal loss on defined benefit
penston scheme 9 - - - (12 8) {12 8) - (12 8)
Tax on items directly taken to reserves 11 - - 05 47 52 - 52
Curency transiation differences - - ©6) - ©6) 02 ©8)
Total comprehensve ncome/oss) for
the year - - 09 08 @1) 01 [i210)]
Transactons with owners.
Employee share option scheme
- Value of services prowded 27 - - - 98 98 - 98
Purchase of reasury shares 27 - - - @7 @7 - @n
Disposals {net of tax) - - ~ 01 on - 01
Drvdends 12 - - - 7 4 7 4 (i) B5)
Transactions with non-controling Interests - - - - - ©8g) ©8)

Balance at 31 December 2009 33 830 196 912 197 1 08 197 7
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Attributable T owners of the Company

based  Cumency Capital Total
Share Share payments translaton  redemphon Cther  Ratamed shareholdars’
captal  prermium resene®  resetve reserve  reserves  eamungs' equty
£m £m fm £m £m £m £ £m
Balance at 1 January 2010 33 830 09 - 03 3.0 476 1381
Profit for the year - - - - - - 50 50
Other comprahensive Income
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - 06 06
Tax on items directly taken to reserves - - - - - - ©3 03
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - - - - 53 5.3
Employee share oplion scheme
—Value of services provided - - 06 - - - - 06
- Exercise of share options - - (04) - - - @7 {(10.1)
lssie of share capital - 10 - - - - - 10
Distnbunon for Employee Benefit Trust - - - - - - (©.1) {01)
Owmdends - - - - ~ - {11.0 (110
Balance at 31 December 2010 33 840 11 - 03 30 321 123.8
Alriutable to owners of the Compary
Share
besed  Curmency Capiat Total
Share Shere  peyments translabon  redemption Oter  Retanad shersholders’
captal  premum resene” esang BSave ESANES carungs” equity
£m £m om £m £m £m £m o
Balance at 1 January 2009 33 830 11 26 03 30 556 1489
Profit for the year - - - - - - 31 31
Other comprehensive Income
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - on o7
Tax on tems directly taken to reserves - - - - - - 02 g2
Total comprehensve Income for the year - - - - - - 26 26
Employee share option scheme
— Value of services provided - - Q3 - - - - 03
~ Exercise of optons - - 05) - - - 58) 63
Transfer betwaen equty accounts - - - (2 B6) - - 26 -
Dividendls - - - - - - 7 4 (7 4)
Balance at 31 December 2009 33 830 09 - 03 30 a7 6 1381

nclded within retained eamings on the taoe of the Statement of Financial Position 8 tx on ferms taken directly 1o other comprehiensive income (Note 11), share-based paymments reserve
and relaned eamings as disciosed above
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Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Group Cormpany
2010 2009 2000 2009
Notes fm £m fm £
Cash flows from operating actvties
Cash generated from/fused In) operatons 0 78.2 462 (13.0) 15
Interest received 0.7 25 11 22
Interest pad 13 22 01 1)
Income tax (padyreceved 92 (68) {16) 38
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating actvibes 68.4 397 (13.6) 74
Cash flows from investing actvites
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equpment 03 05 - -
Proceeds from sale of associates and avalable-for-sale invesiments - g2 - -
Drvidends received from joint ventures and associates 30 12 - -
Repayment of loans by associates, joint ventures and subskianes 05 07 8.2 54
Loans to associates, joint veniures and subsidianes 03 {06 (8.4) 21)
Acquisiion of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 16) (8.3 (72) - -
Defermed consideration pad in relation to pror year acqusiions 40 08 - -
Purchase of property, plant and ecuipment 15 (55) 32 09 03
Purchase of intangble assets 14 a7 (14) O 07
Purchase of Investment in associates, joint ventures and
avallable-for-sale Investments (1.3 19 - P2
Net cash {used nygenerated from nvesting actvbes 17.2 (26 (1.8) 21
Cash flows from financing actvbies
Proceads from esue of share capital 10 - 1.0 -
Proceeds from borrowings 260 200 - -
Purchase of own shares for Employes Benefit Trust 27 (112 47 - -
Contnbution to Employee Benefit Trust - - 0.1) -
Purchase of non-controling interests 16(f) (8.9) - - -
Repayments of borrowings (32.1) 31 4) - -
Dradends paid 12 (t2.1) (85 (11 0) 74
Net cash used in financing actvites @73 {24 8) (101) 74
Net ncrease/{decreass) in cash, cash equivalents and bark overdraits 139 125 (25.5) 21
Cash, cash equvalents and bark overdrafts at beginning of year 809 753 192 171
Eifect of exchange rate fluctuatons on cash held 17 €9 -

Cash, cash equvalents and bark overdraits at end of year 19,22 96 5 809 (6.3) 192
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Qur results

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

1 General informaton

Savils plc {the ‘Company’) and its subsidianes (together the ‘Group’)

Is a leading Intermational property advsory Group The Group operates
through a network of offices In the UK, Europe, Asa Pacific and the
US Savils s isted on the London Stock Exchange and employs
21,588 staff wordwide

The Company is a public imited company ncorporated and
domiciled In England and Wales The address of its registered office
18 20 Grosveror Hill, Berkeley Square, London W1K 3HQ

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 16 March 2011

2 Accounting policies

The prncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial staterments are set out below Thess policies
have been consisiently applied 1o all the years presented, urless
otherwise stated, and are also applicable to the parent Compary

Basis of preparaton

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporing Standards (IFRS) and IFRIC
Interpretations as adopted by the European Unicn and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2008 applicable to companes reporting
under IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost
convention, as medified to Include the revaluation of avalable-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financal labihtes (ncluding
denvatve Instruments) at fair value through profit and loss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with (FRS requrres
the use of certain cntical accounting estimates and for management to
exarcise judgement n the process of applying the Group's accounting
polces The areas Involving a higher degree of Judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed In Note 4

Consolidaton

The consohdated accounts nclude the accounts of the Company and
Its subsidiary undertakings, together with the Group's share of results
of its associates and joint ventures

Subsidianes

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlied by the Group, where control 1s
the power to govemn the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than haff of the voting nghts
The exssterce and effect of potential vatng rights that are cumently
exercisable and converitie are conaiderad when assessing whather
the Group controls another entity Subsidianes are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group

The acqusition of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the acquisition
method For the purpose of consolidation, the purchase consideration
I aflocated between the underying net assets acquired, INcluding
contingent liabiites and intangible assets other than goodwill, on the
basis of their far value The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-contraling Interest In the acquiree and the
acquisiton-date fair value of any previous equity Interest n the acquires
over the farr value of the identfiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as
goodwill f this is less than the far value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acqured, the difference 1s recognised directly in the income
statement Acquisition related costs are expensed as incured

On an scquston-by-acqusition basis, the Group recogrises any
ron-controling interest In the acguiree either at fair value or at the non-
controling Interest’s proportionate share of the acqures’s net assets.

The results of subsidiary undertalangs that have been sold dunng the
year are ncluded up to date of disposal The profit or loss 1s cakulated
by reference 1o the net asset value at the date of disposal, adusted for
purchased goodwil previously included on the balancs sheat and
foreign exchange reserve balances on refranslation

Inter-compary fransactions, balances and unrealised gans ansing
between Group companies are eiminated in prepanng the
consolidated financial statements  Accounting policies of subsdianes
have been changed where necessary 1o ensure consistency with the
polcies adopted by the Group

Investments in subscianes held by the Company are held at cost,
less any provsion for Imparment

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group freats transactons with non-controling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases from
non-controling interests, the difference between any conaderation
pad and the relevant share acquired of the camyng value of net assets
of the subsidiary 1s recorded In equity Gains or bsses on dispasals to
non-controling interests are also recorded 1N equity

When the Group ceases o have control or significant influence, any
retaned interest In the entity 1s remeasured to its far value, with the
change In camying armount recognised N profit or koss The farr value 1s
the Inmial carmyng amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained nterest as an associate, joint venture or financial

asset in addion, any amounts previously recegnised in other
comprehensve Income N respect of that entity are accounted for as

if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or habiiies
Thus may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehenave Income are reclassified 1o profit of loss

If the awnership interest IN an associate 1$ reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
1o profit or loss where gppropnate

Associates

Assoclates are all entties over which the Group has significant
INfiuence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the votng nghts Investments n associates
are accounted for using the equity method and are intally recognised
at cost The Group's Investment In associates INcludes goodwill

(net of any accumulated Impaimment loss) identfied on acquision

(see Note 16)

The Group's share of its assoclates’ post-acquisition profits or losses
15 recognised in the Income statement and (s share of post-acauistion
movements In other comprahensive Income s recognised In other
comprehensie Income The cumulative post-acquISIion movements
are adjusted against the camying amount of the Invesiment

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and s
asseoiates are eiminated 1© the extent of the Group's Interest n the
asscclates Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transacbon
provides evidence of an impaiment of the asset transferred

Accountng policies of associates have been aligned to ensure
conaistency wih the policies adopted by the Group Gains and losses
onh diuton of the Group's share of equity In associates are recognised
in the income staternent.
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2 Accounting policies continued

Jont ventues

A point venture 1s a contractual amangement whersby two or more
parties undertake an economic actvity that 1s subject to ot control,
which exists only when the strategic financial and operating decisions
refatng to the actvity require the unanimous consent of the venturers
The Group's joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
intemal reporting provided 1o the chief operating decision maker
The chief operating decision maker, who 15 regponstbile for alocabng
resources and assesang performance of the operating segments,
has been dentified as the Group Execuitive Board

A busness segment 18 a group of assets and operations engaged In
providing products or senices that are subyect to nsks and retums
that are different from those of other business segments
Ageographical segment is engaged in prowiding products or services
within a particular economic environment that is subyect to nsks and
retums that are different from those of segments operating In other
EConomIC envircnments.

As the Group is strongly affected by both differences in the types of
services It provides and the geographical areas in which It operates,
the matrx approach of disclosing both the business and geographical
segments formats is used

Revenues and expenses are allocated to segments on the basis that
they are directly atinbutable or the relevant porion can be allocated on
a reasonable basts

Foreign currency transtation
— Runctional and presentation currency

Iterns ncluded In the financial statements of each of the Group's
entiies are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
ervironment in which the entity operates ('the functional curency’)
The consoldated financial statements are presented in Stering, which
15 also the Company’s functional and presentabon currency

— Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are tranglated into the funchonal
currency using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the
transactons, Foreign exchange gains and losses resuling from the
sattiement of such transactions and from the translation at yvear end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liablibes denominated in
forexgn currencies are recogrnised In the incoms statement, except
when deferred in other comprehensive Income as qualfying net
investment hedges

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and labiites
are reported as part of the farr value gain or ioss and are recogrused In
the iIncome statement, except for avallakble-for-sale equity investments,
which are recognised in other comprehensive income Non-monetary
Items camed at histoncal cost are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction

The differences between retained profits of foraign subsidianes and
assccated underiakngs trandated at average and closing rates of
exchange are taken to reserves, as are differences ansing on the
retrangaton of foreign net assets to Sterling at the end of the year
{using closing rates of axchange) Any differences that have ansen
ance 1 January 2004 are presentsd as a separate component of
equity As pamitted under IFRS 1, any differences pror to that date
are not Included In this separate component of equity

When a foreign operation Is sold, exchange differences that were
recorded In equity are recogrnised in the ncoms staterment as part of
the gain or loss on sale Goodwill and farr value adjusiments ansing on
the acqustion of a foreign entity are freated as assets and habiiites of
the foresgn entity and transiated at the closing rate

Property, plant and equpment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at histoncal cost less
accumuilated depreciation and mparment. Histoncal cost includes
axpenditure directly atinbutable to acquistion Subsequent costs are
included in the assets’ camying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropnate, only when it s probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item wil flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably

Provision for depreciation s made at rates calculated on a straight-ine
basis to wnte off the assats over their estmated useful ves as follows

Freehoid property 50 years
Leasehold property (less than 50 years) over unexpired
term of lsase
Fumiture and office equipment 3-6years
Motor vehicles 3-5vyears
Computer equipment 3years

Useful ves are reviewed and adusted if appropnate, at each balance
sheet date

An asset's camying amount 1$ witten down mmediately to its
recoverable amount f the asset's camying amount 1$ greater than its
estimated recoverable amount

Goodwilt

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acguisition of a
subsidiary or assocate over the Group's share of the fair value of
identiialle net assets acquired

In respect of associates, goedwil is included in the camying value of
the Invesiment

Separatety recogrised goodwil 18 tested annually for mparment and
camed at cost less accumuiated mpaiment losses. Imparment losses
on goodwil are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity Include the carmyng amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold
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2 Accounting policies continued

Goodwill continued

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impaiment testing The allocation ts made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected o benefit
from the business combinaton n which the goodwill arose The Group
dlocates goodwill to each business segment in the geographical
region in which 1t operatas (Note 14)

Intangible assats other than goodwill

Intangile aseets aogquired as part of buaness combinatons and
Incrermental contract costs are valued at far value on acquisiion and
amortisad over the useful ife Farr value on ecquisiton s determined
by third-party valuations where the acquisiton 1s significant

Acqured computer software lcences are capitalised on the bass of
the costs Incured to acqure and bnng to use the specific software
Costs assocated with mantaning computer software programmes
are recognised as an expensg as ncured Developrment costs that are
drrectly atnbutable to the design and testing of dentifiable and urgue
software products controlled by the Croup are recognised as
Intangibie assets when the following cntena are met

- 1t1s technically feasble to complete the software product so that 1t
wiil be avalable for use,

— management intends to complets the software product and use or
sall 1t

~ there 13 an ability to use or sell the software prodict,

— It can be demonstrated how the software product wil generate
probable future economic berefiis,

~ adequate technical, financial and other resources to complste the
development and to use or sell the software product are avalable,
and

— the expenditure atinbutable to the software product dunng its
development can be rehably measured

Measurernent subsecquent 10 INal recognihon is at cost less
accumulated amortisation and Impaxrment.

Intangible assets are tasted for mparment where there s an indication
that an asset may be mpared An imparment koss Is recognised to
the extent that the camying value exceeds the higher of the assat's far
value less cost to self and #ts value-in-use Amortisation charges are
svead on a straght-ine basts over the penod of the assets’ estmated
usefud Ives as follows

Computer software 3-5vyears
Property management confracts 2—-10years
Incremental contract costs 10 years
Business and customer relatonships 8- 10vyears

Brands Syears

Imparmment of non-financial assets

Assets that have indefinite usaful lves ara not subct to armortisaton
and are tested annually for impaiment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impaiment whenever an indicator of
imparment exists An impaiment loss 18 recognised to the extent that
the camying value exceeds the higher of the asset’s farr value lass cost
to sel and its value-n-use

Value-in-usa is determined using the discounted cash flow method,
with an appropnate discount rate to refiect market ratas and specific
nsks associated with the asset

For the purposas of assesaing IMparment, assets are grouped at the
lowest lavels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units) Where 1t 1s not possible 10 estmate the
recoverable amount of an ndvdual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs

Financial nstuments

Financral assets and labilites are recogrised on the Group’s balance
sheet at far vaue when the Group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the Instrument. Subsequent measurement depends on
the classification and is discussad below

Avallable-for-sae Investments

Avallable-for-sale rvestments are stated at far value, with changes
infar value being recognised In other comprahensive INncome
When such investments are disposed or become impared, the
accumutated gains and losses, previously recognised in other
comprehensive INCorme, are recognised in the income statement.

Trade receivables

Tracke recevables are recogrised intally at farr value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost less provision for impament.
Recewvables ars discountad whers the time value of money 1s matenal

A provision for impaiment of trade recevables 1s established when
there is obyective evidence that the Group will not be able o cdllect
all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recevables.
Significant financial difficutbes of the debtor, probabity that the debtor
will enter barknuptey or financial reorganisation, and defauit or
delnguency In payments ara considered indicators that the trade
recevable 1s mpared The amount of the provision 1s the difference
between the asset’s camying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effectve
nterest rate

The carmying amcunt of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the arnount of the loss 1s recogrised in the
income statement within ‘other operating expenses’ When a trade
recevable 13 uncollectible, it is wntten off aganst the allowance account
for tracde receiveblas  Subsequent recovenas of amounts previously
wntten off are credited aganst "other operating expenses’ In the
Income statement.
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2 Accounting policies continued

Castyand cash equvalents

Cash and cash equvalents iInclude cash in hand and deposts held on
call with banks, together with other short-tarm highly igud Irnvestments
with onginal matunties of three months or less and working

capital overdrafts, which are subject to an insignficant nsk of changes
nvaiue Bark overdrafts are inchuded under bomowings in the
statement of financial positon

Bank

Interest-beanng bank koans and overdrafts are nially measured at far
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost usng the effective Nterest rate method

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at far value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
Trade payable are dassified as curent labiiites f payment 1s due within
one year or less If not, they are presented as non-current labiites

Denvative financial instruments and hedging

Denvatives are inbally recognised at farr value on the date a denvative
contract Is entered into and are subsequenty remeasuwred at far valle
The method of recognising the resuling gan or ioss depends on
whether the demvative 1s designated as a hediging iInstrument and if so,
the nature of the Item being hedged

Certan dervalives do not qualiy for hedge accounting In these cases,
changes In the farr value of all denvative Instruments are recognised
immediately In the iIncome statement.

Gans and losses relating to the effectve portion of hedges of

net nvestments in foreign operations are recognised in other
comprehensive ncome  Gans or losses relating o the neffectve
porton are recognised immediately n the ncome staternent.
Gans and losses accumulated In equity are included N the Income
statement when the forexgn operation 1s partially disposed or sokd

Share caputal

Crdinary shares are classfied as equity Incremental costs directly
attrbutable 1o the ssue of new shares or ophons are shown in equity
as a deducton, net of tax, from the proceeds When share capitalis
repurchasad, the amount of congideration pad, including directly
attribuiable costs, 1s recognised as a charge to equity Repurchased
shares which are not cancelled, or shares purchased for the Employee
Share Cwnership Trusts, are classfied as treasury shares and
presented as a deducton from total equity

Taxaton

Taxabon s that chargeable on the profits for the penod, together with
defermed taxaton The curent Income tax charge 1$ calcuiated on the
basts of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date In the countnes where the Group operate and generats
taxabie Income Where appiicable tax reguabons are subyect to
INterpretation, provisions are estabiished where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be pad

Deferred ncome tax Is recognised using the iabiity method, on
terporary differences between the cammyng amount of assets and
habiides for financial reporting purpeses and therr iax base

Deferred income tax 1s provded on temporary differences ansing on
mvestments N subsidianes and associates, except where the tming
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it 1s probabie that it will not reverse n the foresesable future

A deferred income tax asset 1s recogrisad only to the extent that itis
probabile that future taxabie profits will be avalable aganst whch the
asset can be utiised Deferred income tax assets and kabiites are not
discountad Deferred ncoms tax is determined using the ax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s
realised or deferred tax labilty 1s setied Income tax and deferred tax is
recognised in the income statement except 1o the extent that it relates
to tems recognised directly In other comprehensive ncome, In which
case it Is recognised in other comprehenaive Income

Pension obligatons

The Group has both defined benefit and defined contnbution plans
Adefined contnbuition plan 1s a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed connbuons Into a separate entity The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contnbutions § the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay al employees the benefits relating to
employee service In the cument and pnor penods. A defined benefit
plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amournt of pension benefit that
an employee will receve on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors, such as age, years of service and compensation

The habiity recogrnised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pengion plans i1s the present value of the defined benefit
obligaton at the balance shest date less the far value of plan assets
The defined benefit oblgation 1s calculated annually by independent
actuanes usng the projected unit credit method  The present value
of the defined benefit cbligaton is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash cutflows

The defined benefit scheme charge consaists of current semvice costs,
Interest costs, expected retum on plan assets, past service costs and
the impact of any setflements or curtalments and I1s charged as an
expense as they fall due

All actuana gans and losses are recognised Immedciately in
other comprehensive Income in the penod in which they anse

The Group also operates a defined contnbution Group Personal
Pension Plan for new entrants and a number of defined contnbution
Incividual pension plans Contnbutions in respect of defined
contribubon pension schemes are charged to the ncome statement
when they are payable The Group has no further payment obligatons
once the contnbutions have been paid Prepad contmbutions are
recognised as an assst 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
In the future payrents 1$ avalabls

The net defined benefit cost is alocated amongst partaipatng Group
subsicianes on the basis of pensonable salanes

Share-based payments

Tne Group cperates equity-settied share-based compensation plans
The far value of the employee servicas recenved in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense

Non-market vesting conditons are Included in assumptons about

the number of options that are expected to vest The total expense

1S recogrised over the vesting penod, which s the penod over which
all of the specified vesting conditons are to be satsfied At the end

of each reporting panod, the entty revises its estimates of the number
of oplions that are expectad to vest based on the non-market vesing
condiions It recognises the impact of the revision to onginal estmates,
f any, n the ncome statement, with a corresponding adjustment

10 ety
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Share-based payments continued

Equity-settied share-based payments granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested as of 1 January 2005 are measured at far value at
the date of grant. The far value determmned at the grant date of the
equity-sattied share-based payments Is expensad on a straight-line
basis over the vesting pencd, based on the Group's estimats of shares
that will eventualy vest

The farr value of equity-settied share-based payments IS measured by
{he use of Actuanal Binomial oplion pneing model At sach balance
sheet date, the Group rewises Its estimatss of the number of options
that are expéected to become exercisable It recognises the Impact of
the revision of ongmal estimates, if any, i the Incorme statement, and a
comegponding adustment to equity over the remairing vesting penod
The procaads receved net of any dractly atinbutable fransacion costs
are credited to share capital {nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised

Employee Banefit Trust

The Company has estabished the Savils pic 1992 Employee Benefit
Tiust {the EBT), the puposes of which are to grant awards to
employeas, to acqurre shares In the Company pursuarnt to the Savils
Defeired Share Bonus Plan and the Sawils Defermred Share Plan and to
hold shares In the Comparty for subsequent transier to ermployees on
the vesting of the awards granted under the schemes The asssts and
labities of the EBT are included in the Group staternent of financial
positon investrments in the Group's own shares are shown as a
deducton from ecquity

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructve obligaton as a resutt of a past event, 1t probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obiigaton and the amount
has been reliably estmated Prowisions are measured at the Drrectors’
best estmate of the expenditure required to settie the obligation at the
balance shest date and are discounted to present value where the
sffect 1s matenal

Revenue

Revenue compnses the far value of the consideration receved or
receivabile for the provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's actmities Ravenue Is shown net of value-added tax and
amounts due 1o third partes and after elimination of revenus within
the Group

— Resdential transactonal fees

Generally, where contracts are unconditonal, revenue 1s recognised
on exchange of contracts, however, on more complex contracts,
revenue will be recognised on the date of completon On multt-unit
developments, revenue 1s recognised on a staged basis, commencing
when the underiying contracts are exchanged

— Commercial transactional fees

Gererally, revenue is recognised on the date of completion or when
unconditonal contracts have been exchanged

~ Property consuitancy

Revenue In respect of property consultancy represents commissions
and fees recognised on a tme basis, fixed fee or percentage of
completon

— Property and faciites management

Fevenue represents fees eamed for managing properties and
providing faclites and 1s generally recognised in the penod the serices
are provided using a straight-line basis over the term of the contract

— Fund management

Hevenue represents cormmissions and fees receivable, net of
marketing costs In aceordance with the relevant fee agreements

Annual management fees are recogrised, gross of costs, In the period
10 which the service has been provided, N accordance with the
contracted fee agreements Transacton fees are recognisad on the
date of compietion of a purchase or sale fransacton Distnbution fees
are recognised on the compietion of a signed subscnpbon agreement
and performance fees are recognised as eamed and when approved
by the fund

— Financial services

Insurance commission revenue 1s recognised when the insurance
policy soid 15 1n effect and the amount of commission eamed 1s
determinable Indemnity commission ts recognised when the policy
sold is 1n effect Mortgage commission Is racognised on completon

— Work In progress

Work In progress generally relates to consultancy revenue and is
stated at the lower of cost and et realisable value Cost Includes an
appropnats proportion of overheads

— Interest iIncome

Interest iIncome 1s recognised on a time-proportion basis usng the
effective interest method

— Drdend Income

Dradend income 1s recogrised when the nght to receive payment
Is established

— Other ncome

QOther ncome vicludes interest and dvdend income on avallabig-for-
sale Investments plus far value gains and Josses on assets at far value
through profit or loss

Leasas

Leasos of property, plant and equipment whers the Group has
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases

Finance lease assets are Intally recognised at anamount equal to the
tower of therr far value and the present value of the minmum lkease
payments atinception of thelease The assets are then depreciated
over the lower of the lease terms or the estmated useful ives of

the assets.

The capital elemants of future cbiigations under finance kases are
Included as liablites in the balance shest Leasing payments compnse
capital and finance elements and the firence element 8 charged 1o the
Income statement.

The annual payments under all other lease agréements [operating
leasas) are charged to the Incoma staternent on a straight-ine basts
over the lease term  Benefits recenved and recenvable as an ncentive

to enter Into the operaiing lease are also spread on a straght-ine basis
over the jease tarm
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Leases contnued

A lease 1s clasafied as onerous where the unavaidable costs of
meatng the cbligatons under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it

Ordends

Dradend distibutions are recogrised as a liabiity in the Group's
finrancial statements N the penod In which they are approved by the
Comparty's shareholders

Standards, amendments and interpretatons to standards effective
in 2010

The following new standands and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first tme for the financial year begirning

1 January 2010

— IAS 27 (revised) 'Consoldated and separate financial statements’
The revised standard requires the effects of all transactions with
ron-controling interests 1o be recorded in equity If there 15 no
change In control and these transactions will no longer result In
goodwll or gans and losses The standard also specifies the
accountng when control s lost Any remaining interest n the entity
1s remeasured to far value, and a gain or loss 1s recognised in profit
orloss The revised standard was applied to the acquisibon of
further interests in Sawils Sweden AB and Cordea Savils LLP
and the sale and repurchase of a non-controlling share in Savils
Singapore PTE These were accounted for as transactions with
non-contrating equity holders and £14 8m was charged to equity
asaresull. Previously this would have been capitalised to goodwil
See note 16} for further detalls of these transactions The Group
has applied the new policy prospectively 1o transactions occumng
on or after 1 January 2010 As a consequence, no adjustments
were necessary to any of the amounts prevously recognised In
the financial statements.

— IFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business comixnations’ The rewised standard
contnues to apply the acquisiton method to business
combinations, with some aignfficant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a busness are recorded at far value at
the acquisiion date, with contingent payments classtiied as debt
subsequently remeasured through the income staternant. There 1s
a choice on an acquston-by-accasiton basis to measure the
non-controling interest in the acquiree erther at far value or at the
non-controling nterest’s proporionate share of the acquree’s net
assets All acqushon-related costs are expensed The revised
standard was apphed to the acquisition of 100% of the voting share
capital of Incoll Management Pty Umited  Acquisihon costs of £0 2m
have been Included in the Income statement. Previously, these
would have been ncluded in the consideration for the acquisiton
Seo Note 16{e) for further detals of this transacton The changen
accouning policy has been applied prospectvely and consequently
no adjustments were necessary to any of the amounts previously
recognised in the financial staterments

— IFRIC 17, ‘Distnbugon of non-cash assets to owners' [effecive

on or after 1 July 2009) This iInterpretation provices guidancs on
accounting for amangements whereby an entity distnbutes non-
cash assets fo shareholders either as a distnbution of reserves or
as divdends IFRS § has also been amended to require that assets
are classtfied as held for distnbution only when they are available for
distnbution in ther present conditon and the distnbution is highly
probable This does not have a matenal impact on the Group’s
financial statements

IFRIC 18, ‘Hedges of a net investment in a foregn operaton’
effectve 1 July 2009 This amendment states that, in a hedge of a
net Irvestrnent i a foreign operation, qualifiing hedging nstrurments
may be held by ary entity or entites within the Group, inciuding the
forexgn operation itself, as long as the designation, docurnentaton
and effectiveness requirements of IAS 39 that relats to anet
investment hedge are satsfied In partcular, the Group should
dearly docurnent its hedging strategy because of the possibiity

ot different designations at different levels of the Group

This Interpretation does not have a matenal mpact on the Group's
firancial statements

(AS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible assets’ The amendment clanfies
gudance in measunng the farr value of an intangible asset acqurred
Ina business combination and permits the grouping of Intangible
assels as a single asset If each asset has amiar ussful economic
Ives This amendment does not have a matenal mpact on the
Group's financial statements

IAS 1 (amendment), 'Presentation of inancial statements’

The amendment clarfies that the potential setiement of a iability

by the 1ssue of equity 1s not relevant to its classification as current

or norreurrent By amending the defiruton of curent labiity, the
amendment permits a liability to be clasaified as non-curent
{provided that the entity has an unconditenal nght to defer
sattiement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12 months
after the accounting penod) notwithstanding the fact that the entity
could be required by the counterparty to settle in shares at any tme
This amendment does rot have a matenal iImpact on the Group's
financial statements.

AS 36 {amendmeant), ‘impaiment of assets’ The amendment
clanfies that the largest cash-generating unit (or group of units) to
which goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of mpairment
tesiing 1s an operating segment, as defined by paragraph 5 of IFRS
8, '‘Operating segments’ This amendment does not have a matenal
Impact on the Group's financia staternents

IFRS 2 {amendments), ‘Group cash-settled share-based payment
fransactons’ In additon to incorporating IFRIC 8, ‘Scope of IFRS 2,
and IFRIC 11, 'IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactons’, the
amendments exparx] on the gudance n IFRIC 11 to address the
classificaton of group arrangements that wera not covered by that
nterpretaton The new guidance does not have a matena impact
on the Group's finarclal statements
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2 Accounting pohicies contimued

Standards, amendments and Interpretatons to standards effective

irs 2010 continued

— IFRS 8, 'Operating segments’ The amendment changes ‘total
assets’ from a mandatory reporting requirement for reportable
segments to only being required where total assets for segments
are regulanty repertad to the chisf operating decision maker
The Group doss not disclose segrental assets to the chief
operaing decision maker, but voluntanly diecioses non-current
assets on a geographical basis

— |IAS 18, ‘Revenue’ The amendment provides additonal guidance
regarcding the determination as to whether an entity is acting as an
agent or pnncipal The new guidance does not have a matenal
Impact on the Group's financial statements

Other standards, amendments and interpretations effective In 2010
ard rot discussed shove ars not relevant to the Group These includs

- IFRS 1 (amendment), ‘First tme acioption’ — addiional exemptions,
effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

- 1AS 39 famendmaent), ‘Financial instruments Recognition and
measurement’, on ‘Eligible hedged tems’, effective for accounting
penods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

— IFRIC 12, ‘Service concassion arangements', effective for
accounting penods begnning on or after 30 March 2009

— IFRIC 18, ‘Transfer of assets from customers', effective for transfers
of assets from customars recenved on or after 31 Qctober 2009

— IFRS 5 {amendmaent), ‘Non-current assets heid for sale and
discontinued operatiens’, disclosure of non-current assets
{or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations, effective for accounting penods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

— AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’, classification of expenditures on
urrecognised assets, effective for accounting penods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010

— A5 17, ‘Leasss’, classification of leases of land and buicings,
effective for accounting penods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

— IAS 39, ‘Financid Instruments  Recogriton and measurement’,
freating loan prepayment penalties as closely related embedded
denvatives, scope exarnption for business combination contracts,
cash flow hedge accountng, effective for accountng penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010

— IFRIC 8, ‘Reassessment of embecdded denvatves', effective for
accounting penods begnning on or after 1 July 2009

Standards, amendments andt Nterpretations 1© standards that are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to published standards are
mandatory for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January
2011, and have not been early adopted

- IFRS 8, ‘Financial nstruments’ This standard Is the first step in the
process to replace IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments recognition and
measurement’ IFRS 9 infroduces new requirements for classifying
and measunng financial assets and 1s likely to affect the Group’s
accounting for its financial assets, The standard 1s not applicable
untl 1 January 2013 but 1s avalable for early adoption However,
the standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU The Group 1s
yet to assass IFRS 9's full impact However, inibal indications are that
It may affect the Group's accounting for its availalle-for-salke financial
assets, asIFRS 9 only permits the recognition of far value gans and
losses in other comprehensive Income If they relate to equity
nvestments ard tha Group makes an mevocabla electon to
present gans and losses on that Investment in other comprahensive
income In the current reporting penod, the Group recognised
£1 Om of such lossas In other comprehensive ncome

— 1AS 32 (amendment), ‘Classification of nghts 1ssues’
The amendment applies to annual penods beginning on or after
1 February 2010 Earler application 1s permitted The amendment
addresses the accounting for nghts ssues that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional curency of the 1ssuer
Provided certain condiions are met, such nghts Issues are now
classified as equity regardless of the cumency In which the exercise
pnce Is denominated Previously, these Issues had to be accounted
for as denvative habilites The armendment applies retrospectively In
accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estmates and errors’ The Group will apply the amended standard
from 1 January 2041 1t s not expected to have any impact on the
Group's financial statements

— IFRIC 18, ‘Extnguishing firancial liabifihes with equity nstruments’,
sffective 1 July 2010 The interpretation clarfies the accouning by
an entity when the terms of a financial habiity are renegotiated and
result In the entity 1ssuIng equity Instruments to its creditor to
extinguish all or part of the financial labity {debt for equity swap)

It requires a gain or k2ss 10 be recognised In profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carmying amount of the
financial liabiity and the fair value of the equity nstruments 1ssued

If the far value of the equity Instruments jasued cannot be refiably
measured, the equity instruments should be measured to reflect the
far value of the financial iability extinguished The Group will apply
the nterpretation from 1 January 2011 Itis not expected to have
any mpact on the Group or the parent entity’s financial statements
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2 Accounting policies continued

Standards, amendments and interpretations fo standards that are not

yet effective and have not been earty adopted by the Group contnued

— IFRS 3 famendment), ‘Business combinatons’ Firstly, the
amendments danily that the requrements in lAS 39 do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from a business combination
whose acquisiton date preceded the application of IFRS 3 fevised
2008} and to provide gurdance on how to account for such
balances Secondly, it mits the chaios of accounting applied 10 non-
controling interests to those that are present ownership nstuments
and entitle ther halders to a proporticnate share of the entity's net
assets n the event of lquidation Thirdlly, it now provides guidance
on share-based payment transactons of an acquiree that the
acquirer choosas to replace and clanfies that those awards should
be accountad for in the same way as acquree awards that the
acquirer 1s obliged to replace The Group wil apply these
amendments from 1 January 2011 I 1s not expected to
have a matenal Impact on the Group's financial statements.

— IFRS 7 famendment), ‘Financial Instruments. Disclosures’
The amendment clanfies that the disclosure requirement in
respect of maximum exposure to cradit nsk apples only to
financial assets whose camying amounts do not show the reporting
entity’s maximum exposure 10 credit nsk in order to avord repetiion
The requirements to discloss the caying amount of financial assets
that would otherwise be past due or impared whose terms have
been renegotiated and the fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements have been removed The Group will apply these
amendments from 1 January 2011 [tis not expected to have a
matenal mpact on the Group’s financid statements

— IAS 1 famendment), ‘Presentation of financial staterments’
The amendment clanfies that entihes may present required
reconciiabons for each component of other comprehenave
income either 1N the staternent of changes In equity or In the notes
to the financial statements It also reirforces the disclosure of
dmdends per share either in the statement of changes in equity or
the notes to the financial statements The Group will apply these
amendments from 1 January 2011 Itis not expectad to have a
matenal impact on the Group's financial statements

— IAS 34 famendment), 'Intenm Financial Reportng’ The amendment
aigns the disclosures required by IAS 34 with those of other IFRSs
and takes INto account some of the disclosures required by IFRS 7,
‘Financial Instruments. Disclosures” around far value measurement.
The Group will apply these amendments from 1 January 2011
tt1s not expected to have a matena impact on the Group's
financial statements

— ‘Prepayments of a miimurmn funding requirement’ {amendments to
IFRIC 14) The amendmenits comect an unintended consequence
of IFRIC 14, ‘lAS 189 - The limit on a defined banefit asset, mimmum
funding requirements and therr nteraction” Without the
amendments, entites are not permitted 10 recogrise as an asset
some voluntary prepayments for minmum funding contnbutons
This was not Intended when IFRIC 14 was issued, and the
amendments correct this The amendmenits are efiective for annual
penods begnning 1 January 2011 Earler application is permitted
The amendments should be applied refrospectively to the earliest
comparatve penod presented The Group will apply these
amendments for the financial reporting penod commencing on
1 January 2011 itis not expectsd to have a matenal mpact on the
Group's financial statements

Other standards, amendments and interpretatons not yet effectve and
rot discussad ahove are not relevant to the Group These Include

~ IFRS 7 famendment), ‘FAnanca nstruments. Disclosures on
derecognition — transfers of financial assets, effective for accounting
penods beginring on or after 1 July 2011

- IFRS 1 famendment), 'First tme adoptton’ — financial Instrument
disclosures, effectve for accounting penods beginning on or after
1 Juty 2010, accounting policy changes n the year of adoption,
revaluation basis as deemed cost, use of deemed cost for
operations subject to rate reguiation, effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011

- IAS 24 famendment), ‘Related party disclosures’, disclosures for
state-controlled entities, effectve for accounting penods beginning
onor after 1 January 2011

— IFRIC 13, ‘Customer lovalty programmes’, far value of award
crecits, effectve for accounting penods beginning on or after
1 January 2011
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Notes to the financial statements

contnued

3 Financial nsk management

Fnancial nek factors

The Group's aciMties expase it 1o a vanety of financial nsks.

The Group has In place a nsk management programme that seeks
to imit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group
Occasionally, the Group uses financial instruments to manage forexgn
currency and interest rate nsk

The treasury funchon is responsible for mplamenting nsk management
policies applied by the Group and has a palicy and procedures manual
that sets out specific gudelines on financial nsks and the usse of
financial instruments to manage these

Forexgn exchange nsk

The Group operates intemationally and s expased to foreign exchange
nsks prmanly with respect to the Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Australian
dollar and US dollar Foreign exchange nsk ansas from futurs
commercial transactions, recognised assets and labiites and

ret Investments in foreign operations  The Group finances some
overssas INvestments through the use of foraign currency bomrowings

Pnce nsk

The Group s not matenally exposed (o equity secunties pnce nsk
because listed investments hekd on the balance sheet are not
signficant. The Group Is not exposad to commodity price nsk

Interest rate nsk

The Group has both interest-beanng assets and labilites The Group
finances Its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank
borrowings, at both fixed and floating interest rates Bomowings 1ssued
at vanable rtes expose the Giroup cash flow 1o interest rate nsk,
which is partially offset by cash hekd at vanabls rates Bomowings
1ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to far value interest rate nsk.
Group pdlicy 1s to mantan at keast 70% of its borrowings in fixed

rate instruments

For the year endad 31 December 2010, if the average interest rata for
the year had changed with all other vanables held constant, the Group
post tax profit for the year would have Increased or decreased

a3 shown below

Increase in miterest rates

The Group does not actvely seek to hedge nsks ansing from foreign £m +050% +100%  +150%  +200%
curency translatons due to therr non-cash nature and the high costs 2010
associated with such hedging, howeaver when there 1s a matenal
committed foreign currency exposure the foreign exchange nsk wil Estmated impact on post-
be hedged tax profit 02 03 05 07
For the year ended 31 December 2010, if the average curmency 2009
conversion rates aganst Sterling for the year had changed with all Estimated impact on post-
other vanables held constant, the Group post tax profit for the year tax profit 00 00 00 C1
would have ncreased or decreased as shown below Decreasa in nterest rates
Movement of currency agairst Stating £m -050% -100% -150% -200%
om 0% -10%  +10%  +20% 2010
2010 Estmated impact on post-
Estimated impact on post-tax profit lax profit ©2 ©3 03 02
Euro 0.9 05 (0§ (14 2009
Estmated impact on post-
Hong Korg dollar (12 0 6) 08 1.8 tax profit 00 00 00 ©1)
US dollar 07 0.4 05 @1
Estmated impact on components of equity Credit nsk
Euro 59 28 @4) an Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvaive financial
nsiruments and deposits with banks and financial nsttutons, as wel
Hong Kong doltar (16 3) @89 109 245  ascredit exposures to chents, Inciuding outstanding recevabies and
US dollar a0 16 20 @5 committed transactons The Group has policies that requrre
2000 appropnate cradit checks on potental customers before buainess
commenceas Ansk control framework is used to assess the credit
Estmated impact on post-tax profit quality of clients, taking Into account financial pasition, past expenence
Euro 08 04 {05 (12) andother factors
Hong Kong dollar [(0]3) 03 04 08  Indwdual nsk imits for banks and financial institutons are set based
US doltar 17 09 T (25 ©nextemal ratings and n accordance with imits set by the Board
Estmated impact on components of eauty The thiisaton of credit imits s reguiary monitored
Eure 30 21 (2 6) (5 9) As at the balance sheet datﬁ. Mo Slgnlﬁcant cradit nsk existed in relation
T 1o banking counterparties No credit Imits were exceeded dunng the
Hong Kong (1809 @1 86 195 reporting perod, and management doss not expect any losses from
US dollar 37 20 (25) (56) nonperformance by these counterpartes There were no other

agnficant recevables or ndmidual trade receivable balances as at
31 December 2010
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3 Financial risk management continued lossten _Batoen Botween
Credit nsk cont £m 1 yeex ad2yexs 2ad5yoars
The table below shows Group cash balances spit by counterparty 2009

ratngs at the balance sheet date Borrowings 56 49 38
Counterparty rating (provided by S85) om M Denvatve financal

AAA - 51  instrumenis - - 07
AA 122 118  Trade and other payables 1416 108 11
Al 32.2 231 1479 160 56
Ay 0.5 235 Capital nsk management

A 8.3 54  The Group's objectives when maraging capital are

A 76 56 . 1o safeguard the Group's abiity to provide returms for shareholders
BBB+ or below 6.4 71 and benefits for other stakeholders, and

Total 972 816  — tomantan an optimal capita stucture to reduce the cost of capital

Liquidity nsk

The Group mantains appropnate committed facilites to ensure the
Group has sufficent funds available for operations and expansion
The Group prepares an annual funding plan approved by the Board
which sets out the Group's expeciad financing requirements for the
next 12 months

Management monitors rofling forecasts of the Group's iquidity reserve
{compnsing undrawn borrowing faciies (Note 22) and cash and cash
equvalents (Note 19)) on the basis of expected cash flow Thisis
camed out at kocal level in the operating companies of the Group In
accordance with Group practce as well as on a Group consolidated
basis

The table below anaysas the Group's financel fiabiites and net-setiled
denvative financial labilites into relevant matunty groupings based on
the remaming penod from the balance sheet date to the contractual
matunty cate The amounts disclosed In the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows Balances dus within 12 months equal ther
camying balances, as the mpact of discounting 1s not significant.

Less than Between Batween
£m 1year 1and2years 2and Syears
2010
Bormowings 58 39 -
Loan notes 04 - -
Finance leases 01 01 -
Denvative financial
nstruments 01 04 -
Trade and other payables 1857 168 05

1921 212 05

Sawills plc 15 not subject to any externalty Imposed capital
requirements, with the exception of our FSA regulated entities, which
comphed with all capital requirements dunng the year ended

31 December 2010

In order to mantan an optmal capital structurs, the Group may
adjust the amount of dmdends pad to shareholders, retum capital
to shareholders, ssue new shares or sell assets o reduce debt.

The Board has put in place a distnbuton palicy which takes into
account the degres of mantainablity of Savills' different profit streams
and the Group's overal exposure to cyclical Transaction Advisory
profits, as well as the requirement to maintain a certain kevel of cash
resources for working capital and comorate development purnoses
The Board will recommend an ordinary dividend broadly reflecting the
profits denved from our less volatle businesses In addition, when
profits from the cyclical Transacton Advisory business are strong, the
Board will consider and, if appropnate, recommend the payment of a
supplemental dvidend alongside the final ordinary divdend The value
of any such supplemental divdend will vary depending on the
performance of the Group's Transacton Advisory business and the
Group's anticipated working capital and corporate development
requrements through the cycle Itis intended that, In nomal
creumstances, the combined value of the ordinary and supplemental
dvidends declared in respect of any year are covered at least 1 5 times
by statutory retained eamings and/or at least 2 0 tmes by underlying
profits after taxabon
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

3 Financial sk management continued

The Group's policy 1s 1o borrow centrally f required 10 mest anicipated
funding requirements. These borowings, together with cash
generated from operatons, are then on-lent or contnbuted as equity to
certain subsidianes. The Board of Directors monitors a number of debt
measures on a roling forward 12 month basis including gross cash by
location, gross debt by locaton, cash subyect 1o restnctions, total debt
semcing cost to operating profit, gross barrowings as a percentage of
EBITDA (samings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation),
and forecast headroom aganst avalable faciibes These intsmal
measures indicats the levels of debt that the Group has and are closaly
monitored to ensure compliance with banking covenants and that the
Group has sufficient unused faciites

The capital structure I1s as follows

Group Company
£m 2010 2000 2010 2009
Equity 2091 1977 1238 1381
Cash and cash equivalents 97.2 816 - 192
Bank overdrafts on o7 63 -
Borowngs {96} (146 - -
Not cash/{debt) 869 663 €3 192

Fair valug estimation
The following 1able presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are
measured at far value at 31 December 2010

£m Level1 Llovel2 Level3  Total
2010

Assets

Avallable-for-sale investments

-~ Unlisted - 142 - 142
Total assets - 142 - 142
Liabiities

Demvative financial nstruments - 05 - 05
Total liabilities - 05 - 05

The foilowing table prasents the Group's assets and llabiibes that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2008

£m Lo 1 Levd2 Lew3  Totd
2009

Assets

Avalable-for-sale Investrments

- Uniisted 02 138 - 140
Denvatve financial Instrumenis - 01 - 01
Total assets 02 139 - 141
Ligbiltes

Denvatve financial nstruments - 07 - 07

Total iabilites - 07 - 07

The far value of listed avalable-for-sale Investments 1s based on
quoted market pnces at the balance shest date The quoted market
pnce 1s the curent bid price  These instruments are included n Leve! 1

The far value of unlisted avalatle-for-sale Investrments 1s determined
using valuation techniques using observable market data where
avalable and rely as Iitle as possible on entity estmates  The far value
of investrnent funds 1s based on underlying asset values determined by
the Fund Managers audited annual financial statements Farr value of
other uniisted nvestments I1s based on pnce eamings models

These instruments are Included I Level 2

The falr value of denvative financial Instruments is determined by using
valuaton techriques using observable market data. The far value of
denvative financial Instruments 15 based on the market value of similar
Instuments with similar matunties These Instruments are INcluded In
Level 2

if one or more of the signficant INpLEs 15 Mot based on observable
market data, the iInstrument is included In Level 3

4 Cnbcal accounting estimates and management
Judgements

Cntical accounting estmates and assumptions

Estrmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
histoncal expenence, curent market conditons and other factors
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reascnable under the creumstances Actual results may differ from
these estimates Changes in accounting estimates may be necessary i
there are changes in crcumstancas on which the estimate was based,
or as a result of new information or more expenence The estimates
and assumptons that have & significant nsk of causing a matenal
adjustrnent 1o the camying amounts of assets and llabiites within the
rext financial year are discussed below

Pension benefits

The present value of the defined benefit pension obligations depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an actuanal basis using
& number of asslmpbons incduding the discount rate Any changes in
these assumptions will Impact the camying amount of pension
oblgations The Group dstermines the appropnate discount rate at
the end of each year In determinng the appropnate discount rate, the
Group considars the interest rates of high-quality comorate bonds that
are denominated in the cumency N which the beneafits will be pad and
that have terms to matunty approxmating the terms of the related
pension lability Cther key assumptions for pension obligations are
based in part on current market conditons  Additonal information s
chsclosed in Note 9

Income taxes

The Group 1s subject to Income texes IN numerous junsdictons
Judgament is required in determining the proviaion for iIncome taxes
There are transactons and calculations for which the ulimate tax
determination s uncertan Where the final tax outcome of these
matters 1s different from the amounts that were nitally recorded, such
diffierencas will mpact the Income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the penod In which such determination 1s made
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4 Crtical accounting estimates and management
judgements continued

Far vatue of options granted to employees

The Group uses the Binomial Model In determining the far value of
optons granted 1o employses under the Group's vanous schemes as
detated in the Remuneration Report. Informaton on such assumptions
Is contaned In Note 26 The alteration of thase assumptions may
Impact charges to the Income statement over the vesting penod of

the award

Estimated impaiment of assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwaili has suffered any
imparment. All other assets are tested for mpairment where there
are indicators of mpairment

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined basad on vaueHrruse calculations The use of this method
requires the esimate of future cash flows expected to anse from the
continung operation of the cash-generating unit and the chae of a
sutable discount rate In order to calculate the present value

Actual outcomes could vary sgnificanty from these estimates

The estmates used In these financial statements are contained N

Note 14

Valuation of intangble assets and usefut ife

The Group has made assumptons (n relation to the potental future
cash flows to be determined from separable Intangible assets acquired
as part of busness combirations, This assessment Involves
assumptons relating to potental future revenues, appropnate discount
rates and the usafd Ife of such assets These assumptions iImpact the
income statement over the usefut Iife of the INtangible asset

Provisions

The Group and Its subsdianes are party to vanous legal clarms
Provisions made within thesa financlal statements are contained

in Note 24{a) Addibonal clarns could be made which might not be
covered by exsting provisions or by insurance as detaled in Note 28

Cnical judgements in appiying the entity’s accounting policies

The applcation of the Group's accountng polickes may require
management to make judgements, apart from those Involving
estimates, that can affect the amounts recognised N the consolicatsd
financial statements. Such judgements include

Award of options and deferred shares to employeas

The Group applies judgement in deciding the proportion of the
avaiable bonus pool to be awarded to employees under its iong-term
share-basad Incentive scheme The Group's cument policy 1 1o
deduct from the bonus pool an amourt equal to the market value of
the share prce on the date of award Under IFRS, the value of award s
spread over the vesting penod and charged 1o the Income statement.
The charge to the ncome statement 1s currently lower than the market
value of shares 1o be awarded

Ourn 1esulls
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5 Segment analysis

Operating sagments reflect intemal management reporing to the Group's chief operating decision maker, defined as the Group Executive Board
(GEB} The operating segments are determined based on differences In the nature of therr senvces and geographical location as the Group 1S
strongly affected by both factors The reportable operating segments derve therr revenue pnmarily from property related services Refer to the
Group averview on pages 2 andd 3 and the Segmental reviews on pages 8 © 13 for furter informaton on revenue sources

Operations are based in four main geographical areas The UKIs the home of the parent Company with segment operations throughout the
region Asia Pacffic segment operations are based in Hong Kong, Macau, China, Korea, Japan, Tawan, Thaland, Singapore, Vietnam and
Australla, Europe segrment operations are based in Germany, France, Spain, Netherlands, Belgum, Swaden, italy, Ireland and Poland Amenca
segment operations are based in New York The sales location of the client is not matenally different from the location where faes are recenved
and where the segment assets are located

Within the UK, commercial and residential actvbies are managed separately Other gaographical areas, although largely commercial based, also
provida residential services, 1N partcular Hong Kong, Ching, Vietham and Singapore

All operations are continung  The ‘other’ segment INcludes costs and other expenses at both holding company and subsichiary levels, which are
not directly attnbutable o the operating actvities of the Group's business segments

The GEB assesses the performance of operating segmants based on a measure of underiying profit before tax which adusts reported pre-tax
profit by profit on disposals, share-based payments adjustment and imparment and amortisation of goodwill and Intangbles (excluding software)
Segmental assets and labiites are not measured or reported to the GEB, but non-current assets are disclosed geographically below

The segment iformation provided to the GEB for revenue and profits for the year ended 31 December 2010 1s as follows

Property and
Transactonal Facilihes Fund Financial
Advica Consultancy Management  Management Sarvices Other Totd

2010 £m £m £m £m £m fn fm
Revenue
United Kingdom ~ commaercial 48.2 732 562 190 07 - 197 3

- residental 868 243 162 - 8.7 - 138.0
Total United Kingdom 1350 975 724 180 94 - 3333
Congnental Europe 302 104 203 - - - 609
Asia Pacfic —commercial 855 263 151.0 - - - 262.8

— resclental 169 - - - - - 1689
Total Asia Pacffic 1024 26.3 151.0 - - - 27197
Armenca 31 - - - - - aa
Total revenue 2707 134.2 2437 190 94 - 677 0
Underying profit/loss) before tax
United Kingdom ~commaercial 77 6.4 a9 34 (1.1) (80) 123

~ resicdental 133 27 19 - 08 20) 151
Total United Kingdom 210 a1 58 34 19 {100} 274
Continental Europe 4 3) ©1) (18 - - - 6.2
Asia Pacffic —commercial 134 16 104 - - - 254

- residental 43 - - - - - 43
Total Asia Pacific 177 16 104 - - - 237
Amenca (3.6) - - - - - (3.6)
Underying profit/floss) befors tax 308 106 144 34 19 (100) 47 3

Included within the Other UK residential segment ts the Group's share of post tax losses of £2 Om (2009 €nil) from an associated company
Management believes this amount cannot be reasonably allocated to an operatng segment. The associated company provides marketing and
media servces. The losses primanly relate to the impaiment of goodwill

A reconciiation of undertying profit before tax to profit before tax s provided in Note 7
Inter segmental revenue is not matenal
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5 Segment analysis continued

Property and
Transactenal Faclites fund Frencal
Advce  Comsuftancy  Mamagemen!  Management Services Cther Total
2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
United Kingdom - commercial 37 653 B0 1 174 17 - 1702
- residental 713 228 145 - 95 - 1181
Total United Kingdom 1070 881 646 174 12 - 2883
Contnental Europe 283 88 230 - - - 60 1
Asia Paciic -~ commercial a7 225 1276 - - - 1988
— resdental 12 - - - - - 112
Total Asia Pacific 599 225 1276 - - - 2100
Amenca 23 - - - - - 23
Total revenue 1975 1194 2152 174 112 - 5607
Underiying profit/joss) before tax
United Kingdom - commercial 12 69 &1 29 09 {46) 106
~ residental 118 23 20 - 20) - 141
Total United Kingdom 130 92 71 29 29 48) 247
Continental Europe © 6} 03 27 - - - (128
Asia Pacific - commercial 46 20 82 - - - 148
- residental 22 - - - - - 22
Total Asia Pacific 68 20 82 - - - 170
Amenca B9 - - - _ _ (39)
Underiying profit/joss) before tax 63 109 126 29 29 (4 8) 252
Non-current assets by geographty compnse
2010 2000
m £m
Non-current assats
United Kingdom 69.4 737
Continental Europe 46.2 516
Asta Pacific 63.9 809
Amenca 179 176
Total non-current assets 197 4 1938

Non-current assets nclude goodwill and intangible assets, plant, property and egquipment, investments injont ventures and associates and
avaliable-for-sale nvestments Deferred tax assets are not nciuded
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

6(a) Operating profit
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

Group

2010 2000

Other operating expensas Includa £m £m

— Net foreign exchange losses/{gans) 01 10

— Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0z

—Operatng lease rentals — Hire of plant and machnery 22 15

- Property 216 210

Other ncome - dvidend and investment incoms 0.3 2
{Lossyprofit on disposals 1S made up as follows

(Lossyprofit on disposals — Avalable-for-sale iInvestments - 02

- Associate - ©2
— Subsidiary ©1) -

©on -

Bb) Income Statement of the Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the income statement and statement of comprehensive Incoma of the Company s
not presented as part of these accounts The Company has produced its own income statement and statement of comprehensive income for
approval by Its board The Company recefves dividends from subsidianes and charges subsidianes for the provision of Group related senvices
The profit after ncome tax of the Company for the year was £5 Om 2009 £3 1m)

6(c) Fees payable to the Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and its associates

Group
210 2009
fm m
Audit services
Fess payable to Company’s auditor for the audit of parent Company and consoldated accounts 02 02
Other sarvices
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other servces
The audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legisiaton 08 08
Tax services 03 06
13 18
7 Underlying profit before tax
2010 2009
£m £m
Reported profit before tax 368 1356
Adstments.
Amorisation of iIntangibles {excluding software) (Note 14) 2.7 27
Impalment of goodwil and intangible assats (Note 14) 44 43
Share-based payment adjustment 33 47
Loss on disposal of subsidiary, associate and avalable-for-sale investments 01 -
Undsriying profit before tax 473 252

The Drectors regard the above adjustrments necessary to give a far picturs of the undertyng results of the Group for the year

The adjustment for share-based payment relatss to the impact of the accounting standard for share-based compensaton The annual bonus is
pad i a mixture of cash and deferred shares and the proportions can vary from one year to another Under IFRS the deferred share element is
amortised to the income statement over the vesting penod whilst the cash element is expensed in the year The adjustiment above addressss this
by adding to or deducting from profit the difference between the IFRS 2 charge and the effective value of the amnual share award in order better
fo match the underying staff costs In the year wath the ravenue recognised in the same penod
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8(z) Employee benefits expense — Staff and Directors

Group
2010 2000
£m £m
Bagc salanes and wages 258.1 2272
Incentve bonuses and commussions 1223 811
Wages and salares 3804 3083
Socirl secunty costs 310 285
Qther pension costs 149 126
Share-based payments 113 98
437.6 3572
8(b) Staff numbers

The average number of employees (including Crrectors) dunng the year was
Group
2010 2000
Unrted Kingdom 3,222 3,079
Continental Europe 692 73
Agia Pacific 17,640 16,104
Amernca 34 34
21,588 19,048

The average number of UK employees (ncluding Directors) dunng the year ncluded 91 employed under fixed term and temporary contracts
(2009 80) The average number of employees of the Company was 113 (2009 102) who are al located nthe UK.

8(c) Key management compensaton
Group

2010 2009
£m £m

Key management
- Remuneration and fees excluding bonuses 20 14
—Bonuses 38 21
— Natonal Insurance 07 0&
— Share-based payments 14 04
79 44

The ey management of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 compnsed Sawlls pic Board Directors dunng the year and the Group
Executive Board The key management of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 compnsed Savlls pic Board Directors and the
Charman and Chief Executive of Sawvills Commercial Umited Detalls of Directors’ remuneration 1s contained n the Remuneration Report on
pages 32 to 30

Dunng the year five (2009 five) Exacutves made gans totaling £1 1m on the exercise of optons under the DSBP, ESOP, Sharesave and 2001
Opton Schemes (2009 £0 5m)

The pension annuity for the highest paid Executive was £:49,958 with no lump sum accrued {2008 £49,504 with no lump sum accrued)
Retirement benefits under the defined benefit scheme are accruing for three (2009 three) Executves and benefits are accruing under a defined
contribution scheme N Hong Kong for ane (2009 one) Executive
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

9. Penston scheme

Defined contnbution plans

The Group operates the Savills UK Group Personal Pension Plan, a defined contnbuton scheme, a number of defined contnbuton indmdual
pension plans and a Mandgatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, to which it contibutes The total pension charges in respect of these
plans were £14 Om (2009 £8 5m)

Defined benafit plan

The Pension Plan of Sawils {the Plan) provided final salary pension benefits to some employeas, but was closed with regard to future service-
based benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2010 From 1 Apnl 2010, pension benefits for former employees of the Plan are provided
through the Group’s defined connbution Personal Pension Plan

The assets of the scheme are held separataly from those of the Group, and nvested in managed funds units The contnbutions are determined
by an independent qualfied actuary on the basis of tnennial valuatons

A full actuanal valuation 1s cumently being camed out as at 31 March 2010 and has been updated to 31 December 2010 by a qualified
independent actuary The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rmte of retum
on Investments pre-retirement, the rates of Increase N salanes and the post-retrement Investment retum The draft valuation showed that the
market value of the scheme’s assets was £109 6m and that the actuana value of those assets represanted 80% of the benefits that had accrued
to members, after allowing for expected future increases In eamings The scheme has been closed to new joners for pension benefits since

1 Apnl 2000

Group
Pnncipal assumptions at 31 December 200 2009
Expected retum on plan assets
- Equities 810% 8 30%
- Gits 4 00% -
—Bonds 5 20% 530%
- Property 710% 7 30%
— Diversfied growth funds 7 80% 800%
—Other 0 50% 030%
Expected rate of salary increases 4 50% 500%
Raie of ncrease 1o pensons N payment
— accrued before 6 Aprl 1997 3.00% 300%
- accrued after 5 Apnl 1997 3.60% 360%
-~ accrued after 5 Apnl 2005 2.40% 2 40%
Rate of Increase 1 pengions n deferment
- accrued before 8 Aprl 2001 500% 500%
~accrued after 5 Apnl 2001 290% 370%
Discount rate 5.50% 560%

Inflaton assumpton 3.60% 370%
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9 Pension scheme continued
Using post-retirerment mortality assumptbons, the assured life expectations on retirement at age 60 (2009 60)are as follows

Group
2010 2009
Retnng today ~Male 88.1 871
-Female 89.1 837
Retnng Nn20years -Mak 89.5 B2
- Female 90.8 917
Sensitvty aralyais of the discount rate
Change In assumpton Decrease by 0 5% p a. (2009 decrease by 05% p a)
Impact on liabilibes Increase by 12% (2009 Increase by 12%)
The amounts recognised N the balance sheet are as follows
Group Company
210 2009 2010 2008
£m £m £m £m
Far value of plan assets 1195 1035 66 87
Present value of funded obligations {141.8) (141 2) 7 8) {7 8)
Defict (223) B77) (12 @1
Related deforred tax asset 61 107 03 086
Net hatiity (162) 270 {09) {15)
The amounts recognised In the Income statement.
Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Current service cost 09 32
Interest cost 79 70
Expected retum cn plan assets {79) BN
Total ncluded In staff costs 09 41

Al ret actuanal gains or losses for each year are recognised In fll In the year In which they are iIncurred In the statement of comprehenave Income
Change In defined benefit obligation.

Group

2010 2009

fm £m

Prasent value of defined benefit obligation at start of year 141.2 1105
Current sarvice cost 09 32
Interast cost 79 70
Plan paricipants contributions 03 11
Actuanal (ganjloss 72 27

Benefits pad (13 {13)

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of year 1418 1412
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9 Pension scheme continued
Change In plan assets

Group

2010 2009

fm £m

Fair value of plan assets at start of year 103.5 89
Expected retum on plan assets 79 61
Actuanal gan 33 79
Employer conmbuions 58 38
Plan partcpants contnbutions 03 11

Benefits pad a3 13
Farr value of plan assets at end of year 1195 1035

The actual return on plan assets was £11 2m (2009 £14 0m) The overall expected retum on assets is determined as the weighted average of
the expected retums on each separate asset class shown below The expected retum on plan assets 1s determined by the expected rate of
returm over the remaning Ife of the related hakilites held by the scheme The expected rate of retum on equities 1s based on market expectations
of dvidend yields and pnee eamings ratios  Expected retums on bonds are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date

The amounts recogrised In the consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome

Group
2010 2009
fm £m
Actuanal losses brought forward (37.6) 24 8)
Net actuanal ganvfoss) for the vear 105 (128
Accumulated net actuanal losses (27.1) (37 6)
The magor categones of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as folows
2010 2009
Equites 51% 53%
Gilts 4% -
Bonds 23% 23%
Property 3% 3%
Oweraified Growth Funds 19% 20%
Cash - 1%
Total 100% 100%
No plan assets are the Group's own financial INnstrumernts o property occupied or used by the Group
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as folows
2010 2008 2008 2007 2006
fm £m om £m £m
Plan assets 1195 1035 859 1034 96 6
Defined benefit obligation (141 8 (141 2) (110 5) (113 4) (t12 1)
Deficit 223 B77) (24 6) (100) (155)
Expenence gain/{oss) on plan liabiites 2% 2% 1% 5% {39%}
Expenence gan/{oss) on plan assets a% 8% (359} @%) 3%

The Group expects to contnbute £6 Om to its pension plan in the penod to 31 December 2011 (2010 - £5 8m) The Company expescts to
contnbute £0 3m (2010 ~£0 3m)
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10 Finance ncome and costs

Group
2010 2006
£m £m
Bark interest recevable 0.9 19
Far value gain —interest rate swaps 03 04
Finance ncome 1.2 23
Bark interest payable 22 23
Finance costs 2.2 23
Net finance costs (19 -
11 Income tax expense
Group
2010 2009
Anatyas of tax expense for the year £m £m
Current tax
United Kingdom
Corporation tax at 28 0% (2009 28 0%) 101 76
Adjustrnent In respect of previous ysars 1) 29
100 47
Foreign tax 67 35
Adjustment in respect of previous years {04 -
Total current tax 163 82
Deferred tax
Representing
United Kingdom @an {4 4)
Forengn tax (0.3) {0 8)
Adjustment In respect of previous years 0.2) 13
Total deferred tax (Note 17) {4 6) 39
Income tax expense 17 43
The tax (chargedycredited o other comprehensive Income 18 as folows
Group Cotrpary
2010 2000 2010 2009
tm £m £m £m
Current tax credit on employee benefits 26 14 - -
Current tax credit on foregn exchange reserves - 03 - -
Current tax crecit on retrement bensfits 14 - 01 -
Deferred tax [chargeycredit on pension actuanal (gansyiosses A2 36 02 02
Defarred tax on pension additonal contibutions (1.4) - {01} -
Defemed tax charge on employes benefits 0n (1) - -
Deferred tax credit on revaluations of avalable-for-sale investments o1 02 - -
Deferred tax credt on forexn exchange reserves 01 03 - -

Tax on items relating to components of ofher comprehensive INnccme (21) 52 02 02
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11 Income tax expense continued

A2-G6

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
Group profits The tax for the year 1s higher (2009 higher) than the standard rate of comporation tax in the UK (28%) The total tax charge on profit

can be reconciled to the accountng profit as follows

Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit before tax 36.8 135
Profit on ordinary actvities multiphed by standard rate of comoration tax in the UK of 28 0%
{2009 28 0%) 103 38
Effects of
Adjustments 1o tax n respect of previous years 07 (18
Adustments i respect of foraign tax rates (3.0) N
Impact of nsing share pnce compared 1o the farr value of share awards/options at date of grant 06 on
Income not subject to tax - 02
Non-ceductible tax losses 26 23
Expensas and other charges not deductble for tax purooses 3.1 18
Income tax expense on profit 117 43
The effective tax rate of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201015 31 8% {2002 31 9%)
12 Dividends — Group and Company
2010 2000
fm £m
Amounts recognised as disinbution 1o owners in the year:
Second intenm dividend for 2009 of 6p per share 73 _
Intenm dmdend of 3p per share (2009 3p) 37 37
Crdinary final dvidend for 2008 of 3p per share - 3¢
110 74

The Board recommends a final dividend of 8p {net) per ordinary share {amountng to £7 4m) 1s paid, alongsde the supplemental intenm divicdend

of 4p per ordinary share (amounting to £4 9m), to be pad on 16 May 2011 to shareholders on the register at 8 Apnl 2011 Thase financial

staternents do not reflect this dvdendt payable

Under the terms of the Sawills plc 1992 Empiloyee Berefit Trust {the EBT), the Trustee has warved all but 0 01p of any dvidend on each share
held by the Trust Sawlls QUEST Trustees Limited, the frustee of the Qualfying Empicyse Share Trust, waved all dividends on the shares it held
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13(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic eamings per share are based on the profit attributable to owners of the company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
1ssue dunng the year, excluding the sheres held by the EBT, 9,613,393 shares (2009 2,314,386 shares)

For diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of diutve potential
ordinary shares, being the share options granted to employees where the exercise pnoe 1S less than the average market pnce of the Compary’s
ordinary shares dunng the year and where perforrmance conditons have been met.

The eamings and the shares used in the calculatons are as follows

2010 2010 210 2009 2006 2000

Eammngs Shares EPS Eamings Shases S

fm mulion pence £m mitkon perica

Basic samings per share 250 1222 205 89 1227 73
Effect of additional shares 1ssuable under option - 42 () - 58 04
Diluted eamings per share 250 1264 198 89 1285 69

13(b) Underying basic and diuted eamings per share

Excludes profithoss on disposals, shere-based payments adjustment and impaiment and amortisation of goodwill and intangibles (excluding
software)

2010 2010 2010 2000 2009 2000

Eamngs Shares EPS Eamings Shares BPs

£fm mulion pence £m millon pence

Basic eamings per share 25.0 1222 205 8g 1227 73

Amortisation of intangibles {excluding software) after tax 2.1 - 17 22 - 18

Impament of goodwill and intangile assets after tax 44 - a6 43 - 35

Share-based payment adjustment after tax 25 - 21 34 - 28
Loss/{profi) on disposal of subsidliary, associate and

avalable-for-sale Investments after tax 0.1 - - N - 09

Underlying basic eammgs per share 341 1222 279 177 1227 145

Effect of addibonal shares 1ssuable under option - 42 ©9 - 58 ©on

Undertyng dilited eamings per share 341 1264 27.0 177 1285 138

The Directors regard the above adjustments necessary to give a far picture of the underying resuitts of the Group for the year The adustment
for share-based payment relates to the mpact of the accouniing standard for share-based compensation

The annual bonus i1s paid in a mixture of cash and deferred shares and the proportions can vary from one year to another Under IFRS the
deferrad share elament 1 amortsad to the income statement over the vesting period whilst the cash element 1$ expensad in the year

The adjusiment above addressas this by adding to or deducting from profit the difference between the IFRS 2 charge and the effective value
of the annual share award in order better to match the undertying staff costs n the year with the revenue recognsed in the same penod

The gross amounts of the above adjustrnents (Note 7) are loss on disposal £0 1m (2009 €nil), share-based payment adjustment £3 3m
(2009 £4 7m), add back of amortisation of ntangibles {excluding software) £2 7m (2008 £2 7m) and impament of goodwill and intangibles
of £4 4 (2009 £4 3m)
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14 Goodwill and intangible assets
Group Company

Investment and
Customer property
business meanagement Compatter

Goodwill  refatonsteps Brands contracts software Total Total
Acquired goodwill and intang e assets £m £m £m fm m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2010 1694 210 62 105 104 2172 27
Acquisibons (Note 18(g)) 76 13 - - - 89 -
Qther additons 10 - - 01 16 27 07
Disposals @2.0) - - - ©.8) @8) -
Exchange moverment 21 - {01 - 04 24 -
At 31 December 2010 178.1 223 61 106 115 2286 34
Accumulated amortsaton and Impainment
At 1 danuary 2010 411 80 62 50 80 683 16
Amortsaton charge for the year - 25 - 02 10 k¥4 03
Impaiment 43 - - 01 - 44 -
Crsposals 20 - - - (0.6) 26) -
Exchange movement 04 03 (0.1} - 03 09 -
At-31 December 2010 438 108 6.1 53 8.7 747 19
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 14.3 115 - 53 28 1539 15

Al ntangible amortisation charges in the year are disclosed on the face of the Income statement The Company’s Intangible assets consist of
cormpiter software only

Group Company

Imaestrrent and
Custorner/ property
bushess meEnagament Computer

Gooowi relationships Brands conbacts software Total Totd
Acquired goodwill and Intangible assets £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 1734 226 68 87 94 2209 20
Acquisitions 44 - - 19 - 63 -
Other addtions - 02 - - 12 14 07
Oisposals - - - - 02 02 -
Exchange movermnent 84 (18 ©8) o1 03) (112 -
At 31 Decernber 2000 1694 210 62 105 101 2172 27
Accurmutated amortsation and impairment
At 1 January 2000 399 70 68 45 75 657 13
Amortsation charge for the year - 22 - 05 09 36 03
Impament 43 - - - - 43 -
Disposals - - - - 01) o1 -
Exchange movement 1) (12 © 6} - 03 52 -
At 31 Decermnber 2009 411 80 62 50 80 633 16
Net book valua
At 31 December 2009 1283 130 - 55 21 1489 11

At 1 January 2009 1335 156 - 42 19 1552 07




Savills pkc Report and Accounts 2010 Our busness 0121 Qur govemance 2-41

14 Goodwill and intangible assets continued

Dunryy the year, goodwill and iIntangibles were testad for mparment in accordance with 1AS 36 Goodwill and ntangibles are allocated to the
Group's cash-generating units (CGUSs) identfied according 1o country of operation and business segment. In most cases, the CGU s an indivclual
subsidiary or operation and these have been separately assassed and tested A segment-level summary of the allocation 1s presantad below

Proparty and

Transachonal Feclies Fund
Advice Consultancy  Management  Management Total
m £m m £m om
United Kingdom 246 92 5.2 2.2 412
Continental Europe 33.6 14 9.2 - 44 2
Agia Pacfic 118 45 318 - 431
Amenca 176 - - - 176
Totat goodwill and intangibles (excluding software) 876 151 462 2.2 1511

Method of impament testing

All recoverable amounts were determined based on value-in-use calculations Thess calculations use discounted cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covenng a five-year penod Cash flows beyond the five-year penod are extrapelated using a
terminal value

Assumptons
Market recovery
In each case the models used assume that each of the property markets in which the Group operates begn to recover dunng 2011

Drscount rate
The discount rate appled to cash flows of sach CGU 1s based on the Group's Weighted Average Cost of Capital WACC) WACC s the average
cost of sources of financing (debt and equity), each of which 1s weightad by iis respectve use

Key inputs to the WACC cakeulation are the nsk free rate, the equity market nsk premium {the retum that Savils shares provide over the nsk free
rate), beta {reflecting the nsk of the Group relative 1o the market as a whole) and the Group’s borrowing rates

Group WACC was adjusted for nsk relatve to the country in which the assets were kocated The nsk adjustad pre-tax discount range of rates
usad in each reglon for imparmment testing are as follows

210 2009

Pro-tet discount mte range Pre-tax discount rate range

United Kingdom 110% 116%
Continental Europe 110-115% 116-121%
Asia Pacffic 85-22.0% 120-190%
Amenca 12.5% 125%

Long-term growth rate

To forecast beyond the five years covered by detalled forecasts, a terminal value was cakeulated, using an average long-term growth rate
determined at 1 5% This reflects management's expeciatons basad on histoncal growth and current market conditons and does not exceed
the long-term growth rate in any country In which the Group operates.

imparment charge
Folowing impaimaent testrg, a £4 4m charge has been recognised through the income statement (2009 £4 3m) relatng to goodwill and
Intangibles on hustoncal acquisitons whers camyng values are no lorger supported by e discounted cash flow analyss

The mpaiment charge relates to Theodor Schone Gmbh, a German residential property management business, purchased in July 2007
The busiress has performed significantly below our expectations and 1t future prospects have been adversaly affected in 2010 by
management changes This business 1s ncluded under the European property managemsnt segment  Key assumptions inciude a pre-tax
discount rate of 11 0%
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14 Goodwill and intangible assets contnued

Sensitvity to changes In assumptions

The level of mparment Is a reflection of best astimates N amving at value n uss, future growth rates anxd the discount rate applied to cash flow
projectons Nonetheless, there are no CGUs which management consider a reasonable possible change In a key assumption would give nse to
an impament

Future impaimments may be impacted by the following factors

Market condiions — the tming and growth expectations for further recovery are key assumptions In the detemination of the cash flow
projectons For the purposes of the mpaimment tests, management expect the market to improve sightly over 2010 for the next year, but
antcipate a bigger improvement from 2012 onward

Cost base - the cost basa assumptions reflects 2010's costs with imited growth in tha fixed cost base going forward Commissions and
bonuses are correlated to the Group's revenue and profits and the percentage payout. Thess are assumed 1o be consistent with existing rates
15 Property, plant and equipment

Equpment Equiprment
Short atwd motor and motor

Froehold leessehold vehiclas vehicles

property property Owned Leased Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2010 04 197 474 - 67.5
Acquisiions (Note 16(g)} - - 041 03 04
Additons - 06 49 - 55
Transfers 0.3) 03 - - -
Disposals - {©1n (2.3 - 2.4)
Exchange movement - 01 1.0 -~ 1.1
At 31 December 2010 01 206 51.1 03 721
Accumulated depreciaton and mparment
At 1 January 2010 - 117 ars - 492
Charge for the year - 20 4.5 01 66
Disposals - - 21) - 21
BExchange movement - - 07 - 07
At 31 December 2010 - 137 406 01 544
iNet book value
At 31 Decernber 2010 01 69 105 02 17.7

The Directors consider that the fair value of plant, property and equiprnent approximates camying value
Equpment Equpment

Short arvd moter and rmotor

Froohokd leasehokd vehickes vehicks

property property Owred Leased Totsi
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 04 207 482 - 693
Addiions - 08 24 - 32
Disposals - {(16) (10 - 26
Exchange movernent - 02 (22 - 2 4)
At 31 December 2009 04 197 a7 4 - 875
Accumulated depreciation and imparment
At 1 January 2009 - 109 347 - 4586
Charge for the year - 19 51 - 70
Drsposals - (12) 07N - (19
Exchange rmovement - 01 {16) - (15
At 31 December 2009 - 117 375 - 492
Nat book value
At 31 December 2009 04 80 99 - 183

At 1 January 2009 04 98 135 - 237
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15 Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold leasehold and motor
property property velucles Tota
Company £m £m m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2010 01 08 79 88
Addtions - - 09 09
At 31 Decemnber 2010 01 08 88 97
Aocunuated depreciation and impaiment
At 1 January 2010 - 08 71 79
Charge for the year - - 05 05
At 31 December 2010 - 08 76 84
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 01 - 1.2 13
Short Equipment
Freehold kssehold and motor
property property wvehicles Total
Company n £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 01 11 78 88
Addmhons - - 03 03
Drsposals - 03 - 03
At 31 Dacember 2009 01 08 79 88
Accumuated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2008 - 10 69 79
Charge for the year - 01 03 o4
Digposals - 03 1) 04
At 31 December 2009 - 08 71 79
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 o1 - 08 09

At 1 January 2009 01 o1 o7 09
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16(a) Group - Investments N joint ventures and associated undertakings
Jomt ventures Associated undertakngs
Investment Loans Total Investment Goochwill Total
£m £m £m £m oan om
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2010 11 22 33 34 02 a6
Additons 03 - 0.3 - - -
Loans advanced - 01 01 02 - 02
Loans repad - {05 (05) - - -
Exchange movement - 0.1 o1 02 0.2
At 31 December 2010 14 19 33 38 02 4.0
Share of profit
At 1 January 2010 17 - 17 4.0 - 40
Group’s share of retaned profit 10 - 10 02 - 02
Dvidends recenved {03 - 0 3) 27N - 2n
Exchange movement 01 - 01 03 - 0.3
A131 December 2010 25 - 25 18 - 18
Total
At 31 December 2010 39 19 58 56 02 5.8
Jontveniumes Assocated undartakdngs
Ivestment Loars Total Ivestment Gooawll Towl
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost o valuation
At 1 January 2009 i 25 36 23 02 25
Additions 01 - 01 06 - 086
Transfer from avalable-for-sale investments (Note 16(b) - - - 06 - 06
Loans advanced - 06 08 - - -
Loans repad - on 07 - - -
Exchange movement {0 1) 02 03 1) - 01)
At 31 December 2009 11 22 33 34 02 36
Share of profit
At 1 January 2009 14 - 14 34 - 34
Group's share of retamed profit 10 - 10 186 - 16
Disposal - - - ©2) - 02
Dradends recenved 05 - Q5 07N - 07
Exchange movement 02 - 02 o1 - 01
At 31 Decemnber 2000 17 - 17 40 - 40
Total
At 31 December 2002 28 22 50 74 Q2 76
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16(a) Group - Investments in joint ventures and associated undertakings continued
In relation to the Group’s interests In joint ventures, the assets, liabilitles, Income and expenses are shown balow

2010 2009
£m £m
Current assets 72 54
Non-current assets 38 39
Current labilies {6.5) £ 9)
Non-current labilites {06 {0 6)
Net assets 39 28
Revenue 123 103
Bxpenses {11.0) 8 8)
Share of Income tax (0 3) 05)
Share of post-tax profit from goint ventures 10 10
Inrelation to the Group's associated undertakings, the assets, llabilites, Income and expenses are shown below
2010 2009
£m £m
Current assets 95 a0
Non-current assets 5.2 59
Current habilites ®.5) B7)
Non-current liabities 06) ©8)
Net assets 56 74
Revenue 319 224
Expenses (312 (20 1)
Share of Income tax {05) 0N
Share of post-tax profit from associates 02 16

The joint ventures and associates have no significant habilites to which the Group 1s expased to, nor has the Group any signficant contingent
liabilites or capital commitments N relabion to its interests in the joint ventures and associates The market vaue of the Group’s holding In
Adventis Group plc, an associate company, was €1 0m at 31 December 2010 (2009 £2 8m) The carmying value of this nvestment 1s £2 2m
{2009 £4 3m)

16(b) Avalable-for-sale investments

Group Group

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 January 140 162
Additons 09 03
Transfer to Investment i associate (Note 16(&)) - 08
Net far value loss transfered to other comprehensive income 03 08}
Drisposals - 02
Impaiment 03 -
Exchange movement .1} ©g)
At 31 December 142 140

Avallable-for-sale Investments compnse the followng

Unlisted secunties UK - equity secunties - 15

UK ~limited partnership 0.1 01

UK - investment funds 25 25

Buropean — nvestment funds 112 97

Aga Pacific — equity secunbes 04 02

14 2 140
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

16(b) Avalable-for-sale investments continued
Avalable-for-sale investments are denominated In the followng currencies

Group Gioup
200 2009
£m £m
Staring 26 a1
Euro 12 97
Other 04 02
142 140
At31 December 2010, the Group held the following pincipal available-for-sale nvestments
Irvestment Hoking Procipal actity
Cordea Savlls Dawn Syndication (entity registered in England and Wales) 35% Investment property fund
Cordea Savills Student Hall Fund {entity registered in Jersey) 2 0% Student accommodation property fund
Cordea Savils italien Opportunites Fund 1 (entity registered in Luxembourg)” 28% Investment property fund
Cordea Savils Itallan Opportunites Fund 2 (entity registered in Luxermbourg) 13% Investmeant property fund
Serviced Land No 2 {entity registered in England and Wales) 19% UK land investment fund
Cordea Savils German Retall Fund entity registered in Luxembourg) 19% Retal nvestment property fund
Cordea Savils Nordic Retall Fund {entty registered in Luxembourg) 113% Retal nvestrnent property fund
Cordea Savils UK Property Venturas No 1 (registered n England and Wales) 41% UK land investment fund

* Ths hoking miates to Class C ordnany sheres. The Group alse hokds 10096 of Class Al preference Shares and 40%, of Class B prafetence shares nthe R

The Group does not exert significant iInfiuence over these businesses, and therefore does not equity account for these investments
These shareholdings are treated as trade investments and held at far value

The farr value of uniisted secunties 1s based on underlying asset values and pnce eamings models The farr value of Investment funds
15 determined by the Fund Managers annual audited financial statements

At 31 December 2010 the Group held a conditional commitrnent to co-nvest £0 7m (2009 £0 8m) in the Cordea Sawils UK Property Ventures
Fund No 1, £1 0m {2009 £1 3m)in the Cordea Sawils Itallan Cpportunites Fund 2 and £0 4m 2008 £nil) in the Cordea Sawills ltalan
Opportunites Fund 1

The Company made no avalahle-for-sae nvestments dunng the year (2009 £0 2m)
16(c). Company — Investments in subsidiaries

Shares Loans to
n Group Group
undertakings  undertakings Total
£m o am
Cost
At 1 January 2009 224 1170 1394
Addons - 21 21
Repayments - 54) 54
Exchange movement - 22) @2
At 31 December 2000 224 1115 1339
Repayrments - 82 8.2)
Exchange movement - 09 09

At 31 December 2010 224 1042 126.6
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16(d) Investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associated undertakings

The pnncipal subsichanes, joint ventures and associated undertakings of the Group which, In the Directors’ opinion prncipalty affect the figures
shown in the financid statements, are shown below together with detalls of ther main actvites Except where otherwise noted, they are wholly-
ownred, have share capital wholly compnsed of ordinary shares, are registered n England and Wales, operate 1n the UK and are consolidated into
the Group accounts Holding nterests are the same as voling interests

Afull iist of the Group's subsidianes, joint ventures and associated undertakings 1s avallable from the registered office of Sawills pic

Subsidery undertakhgs Hoking Man actibes
Cordea Savills LLP™ 100% Pravision of fund management
Savills Commercial bmited” 100% Commercial surveyors
Savills (L&P) Limited™ 100% General practice surveyors
Prime Purchase bimited™ 100% Property buying company
Cordea Savills Investment Management Limited” 100% Asset manager
Provision of gereral nsurance, mortgage broking and
Savils Prvate Finance Limited” 100% personal financial planning senvices regulated by FSA)
Sawlls LLC*{registered in the US) 75% Property consultants
Sawvills Commercid (Ireland) Limited™ (registered In Irelard) 100% Property consultants
Sawvils Residental (freland) Limited” (registered in Ireland) 100% Property consuftants
Savils Conguitores Inmobilianos SA”™ registered in Spain) 100% Property consutants
Sawvils Immobilen Beratungs GmbH” (registered In Germany) 100% Property consultants
Savils SA” (registered In France) 99 97% Property consuitants
Savils Italy SRL* registered in Italy) 90 50% Property consultants
Sawvils Nederand Holding BV" registered In the Netherlands) 87% Property consultants
Savils Sweden AB" {registered In Sweden) 98 40% Property consuttants
Sawvlls Spoka z Organczona” (registered in Poland) 100% Property consuttants
Sawmlls (Hong Kong) Limited™ registered in Hong Kong) 100% Mixed practice agency, valuation and research
Sawvills Valuation and Professional Senaces Limited”
{registered in Hong Kongy) 100% Valuation and research
Sawlls Property Management Limited” {registered in Hong Kong} 100% Property management
Guardian Property Management Limited” {registered 1n Hong Kong) 100% Property management
Sawlis (Singapore) Pte Lmited” (registered in Singapore) 100% Property management and agency
Savlls Japan KK* {registared n Japan) 100% Property management and agency
Savills Property Services (Shanghai) Co Limited* (registered in China) 100% Property management
Savills Property Senvicas Beyng) Co Limited” fregistered in Ching) 100% Property management
Savlls Korea Asset Management Limited” (registered in Korea) 100%% Property management
Sawvills Korea Co  Limited” (registered in Korea) 100% Froperty agency and consutants
Savlls (Vietnam) Limited” {registered in BVI) 69 10% Property management and agency
Sawvlis (Thailand) Limited* (registered in Thatland) 100% Property agency, consultants and management
Sawlls (Tawan) Umited” registered in Tawan) 100% Property agency and consultants
Savilis (Aust) Pty Lirnited™ (registered in Austrafia) 96 19% Property agency, consultants and management
Jont ventures
GES Holdings Limited* (Macau) 50% Property management
Associated undertakings
Hutton Asia Pte Ltd” (Singapore) 48% Property agency
Adventis Group pic* 30 16% Prowision of marketing and media services

* Shares/mitarests hekd ndrectly by the Companry
+  Linted Liablity Patershn
++ Limited Labiity Company
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

16(e) Acquisitions of subsidianes

On 29 March 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the woting share capital In Incoll Group Pty Limited, an Austraban Project Management
business Cash consideration of £9 Om was paid Goodwil on acquigttion of £7 6m has been determined, and 1s attnbutable to Incoll's strong
position In the market None of tha goodwill Is expected 1o be deductible for tax purposes Other iINtangible assets of £1 3m have been dentified
and relate to project management contracts Incoll has been merged with Sawvils Australia’s established specialist project management business
to create a stronger business, with the am of expanding It further across the Sawvills Asia Pacific network.

Provisions far
value to Group
Tatal
Subadianes acquired fm
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 04
Deferred tax asset 0.2
Current assets
Trade and other recetvables 34
Cash and cash equivalents 07
Current habilites
Trade and other payables 36)
Current tax labilites 02
Borrowings (Nota 31) 029
Employee and retrerment benefit obligatons (Note 24{b) {0.2)
Non-current borrowings {Note 31) {0 1)
Non-current employee and retirement cbiigations (Note 24(b)) o1
Net assets 01
Non-contreling share of net assets -
Other ntangibles (Note 14} 13
Fair value of net assets acquired 14
Goodwil (Note 14) 76
FPurchase consdaration 9.0
Consideraton satisfied by
Cash pad 9.0
Cash acquired 07
83

For the acquisition, there was no difference between the far value and camying value of net assets acquired, except for ntangible assets
The Group acquires businesses intended for use on a continung basis. Goodwill 1s atnbutale to antiepated futre operating synergies from
the combination with existing businessaes and percened future economic benefits that wil be generated from the staft/clent relatonships
acquired There were no significant changes 1o the provisional goodwill that arose In the previous year on acquisitions

IFRS 3 {revised) has been applied to this acquisiion which was accounted for using the acquisiion method  Acquistion related costs of
£0 2m are included N the income statement These would have previcusly bean ncluded in the consideration for the acquisiton

Included in Group operating profit relating to acquisitions is revenus of £12 2m {2009 £0 6my}, staff costs of £8 Om (2009 £0 6m), depreciation
of £0 2m {2009 £nil}, amortisaton of €nil (2009 £nil) and other operating charges of £30m (2009 £0 3m) |f the date for all acouisitons made
dunng the year had been al the baginnng of the year, amaunts relating 1© these acquisibons would have been revenue of £17 7Tm 2008 1 Om),
staff costs of £10 3m (2008 £0 9m), depreciaton of £0 4m (2009 £nil), amortsaton of fnil 2009 £nilfand other operating charges of £59m
(2009 €0 5m)
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16{f) Transactons with non-controlling interests
Dunng the year, the Group had the followmng transactions with non-controling nterests

Total hoiding at

31 Decamber

Name Date  Holding acauwed w010
Savills Sweden AB January 2010 47 4% 984%
Cordea Savils LLP March 2010 400% 100 0%

Under IAS 27 (rewised), ransactions with non-controlling interests must be accounted for as equity transactons, therefore no goodwill has been
recognised Acquisition costs of £0 7m have also been recogrised in equity

In January 2010, the Group acaured 47 4% of shares in Savills Sweden AB for cash conaideration of 20 9m This takes the Group's
shareholding to 98 4% The camying amount of Savils Sweden AB's net assats on the date of acguisiton was £0 3m  The Group recognised a
decrease In non-controling interests of £0 1m The amount charged to equsty in respect of this transaction was £0 8m

In March 2010, the Group acquired 40% of the voting nghts in Cordea Savills LLP that it didd not alreacly own Total consideraton isup to €16 1m
of which £5 3m cash consideration was pad with another £4 Bm payable in equal instalments on the first and second anniversanes, and up to a
further £6 3m on the second annversary subject to eamings performance The canying amount of Cordea Savills LLP's net assets on the date of
acqusiton was £1 7m The Group recognised a decrease in non-controling interests of 20 7m The total amount charged to equity in respect of
this ransaction was £12 Om

In August 2010, the Group disposad of 10% of Savills (Singapore) PTE following the exercise of an opton granted 10 a former executive in 2004
In Decernber 2010 this stake was re-acquired by the Group The purchase consideration was 20 1m and £2 1m respectively Any excess of
purchase consderation over the net assets acquired has been chamed to equity The Group recognised a net decreass in non-controling
interests of £0 2m The total amount charged to equity In respect of these transactons was €1 8m

17 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilies are only offset where there are legaly enforceable nghts to offset curent tax assets aganst current tax
llabiibes and when the deferred ncome tax relates to the same fiscal authonty The deferred tax assets and kabilities are offset when realised
through cumment tax. The deferred Income tax assets and fiablibes at 31 December, without takung Into considaration the offseting balances within
the same junsdicton, are as follows.

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
m £rn fm £m
Deferred tax assets

— Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 184 250 11 12
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered wathin 12 months 71 24 05 05
255 274 16 17

Deferred tax liabiites
- Deferred tax liabilty to be recovered after more than 12 months {2.4) <0 - -
- Deferred tax liabiity to be recovered withun 12 months {0.4) {06) - -
@8 @6) - -

Deferred tax asset — net 227 238 16 17
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17 Deferred income tax continued
The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

Group Corrgpany
2010 2000 2010 2000
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January — asset 238 169 17 16
Amount credited to Income statement (Note 11) 46 39 02 ©1)
Tax charged to other comprehensve Income
— Pension asset on actuanal [ganyoss 3.2 36 02 02
~ Pansion asset on additional contnbutions (14) - {01) -
-~ Employee benefits 7 (11) - -
- Ravaluatons of avalable-for-safe investments 01 02 - -
- Movement on foreign exchange reserves 01 03 - -
Exchange movement 02 - - -
Acquisitions (Note 18(e) Q2 - - -
At 31 December — asset 227 238 16 17

Deferred income tax asssts have been recognised In respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits s probable

As at the balance sheet dats, the Group has unused tax losses of £18 6m (2009 £14 8m) avalzble for offset against future profits Deferred tax
of €6 7m (2009 £4 1mj) has not been recognised on such losses dus to the unpredictaliiity of future ncome streams. Inclucied within
urvecognised losses are losses of 20 7m that expire wiihin three years, £1 2m that expire within three to five years and the remaining £16 7m
being avalable for offset Indefinitely

Acoelerstex) Cther
capital ncuding Retirarment Employee

allowances PrOVSIONS Ta losses benedits benedits Totat
Deferred tax assets — Group £m £m m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2000 09 57 47 70 41 224
Amount {chargedy/credited t© mcome staternent {Note 11) - ©on ©2) o1 34 26
Tax creditecl/{charged) to other comprehenave Income
(Note 11) - - - 36 (11 25
Exchange movement - 01 02 - - ©1
At 31 December 2009 09 51 43 107 64 274
Amount credited/(charged) to Income staterment (Note 11) 01 08 0.2) - 33 4,0
Tax {chargedycredited to other comprehensive Income
{Note 11) - - - {4 6) .n 63
Accuistions (Note 16(e)) - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Exchange movement . - 03 0.1) - - 02

At 31 December 2010 10 64 40 61 8.0 255
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17 Deferred income tax continued

noudng
Accalerated  provisions and

capdal foregn excharge Urrernitted Intangble
TesSenes

allowances profls  Revalstions assets Total
Defarred tax liabibes — Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2000 ©3 (11} 04 04 (33) (5 5)
Amount credited 1o income statement (Note 11) 03 01 04 - 05 13
Tax credited to other comprehensive income (Note 11) - 03 - 02 - 05
Exchange movement - - - - 01 01
At 31 December 2009 - 07 - ©2) 27 (36)
Amount credited to Income statement (Note 11) - - - - 06 06
Tax credited to other comprehensive Income {Note 11) - 01 - 01 - 02
At 31 December 2010 - {0 6) - 01) (2.1) 28}
Net deferred tax asset
At 31 December 2010 227
At 31 December 2000 238

A number of changes 1o the UK Corporation tax system were announced m the June 2010 Budget Statement. The Finance (No 2) Act 2010,
which was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010, includes legislation reducing the main rate of comporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 Aprl
2011 Further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 Apnl 2014 but these later reductions
had not been substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not Included in these financial staterments.

The proposed reductons of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by 1 Apnl 2014 are expected to be enacted separately each
vear The overall effect of the further changes from 27% to 24%, If these applied to the deferved tax balance at 31 December 2010, would be to
reciuce the net deferred tax asset by approximately £0 8m {peing £0 3m recogrised in 201 1, £0 3m recognised in 2012 and £0 2m recognised
N 2013)

Accelerated Other
captal ncliding Retrarment Ermployes

alowances PrOMSIONS beneits benefits Total
Deferred tax assets — Company £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 05 06 04 01 16
Amount (chargedycredited to income staterment ©1) c1h - 01 (AR}
Tax charged to other comprehensive Income (Note 11) - - 02 - 02
As at 31 Decernber 2009 04 05 06 02 17
Amount (charged)y/credited to Income staterment 1) 0.1 - 02 02
Tax credited to other comprehensive Income (Note 11) - - 03 - {0.3)
At 31 December 2010 03 06 03 04 16
Net deferred tax asset
At 31 December 2010 16

At 3 December 2009 17
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

18 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2010 2008 2010 2008

£m £m fm £m

Trade recenvables 1470 1165 - -
Less prowison for mpawment of recevables 91) 94 - -
Trade racavables - net 1379 1071 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertalangs - - 124 105
Other receivables 151 117 14 -
Prepayments and accrued income 262 247 07 08
1792 1435 145 M3

The camyng value of tracle and other recevablas 15 approximats to far value

There 15 no other concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade and other recevables as the Group has a large mumber of clients intematonally
dispersed with no indidual client owing a significant amount,

Amounts owed by subsidiary underiakings to the Company are generally charged intersst at 1 5% (2009 1 5%) above the base rate
Inter-company trade recevables are generally cleared within the month

As at 31 December 2010, trade recewvables of £9 1m (2009 £9 4m) were Impaired and provided for The indmvdually mpared recevables manily
relate 1o receivablas from clients that have been affected by the uncertain econaomic conditons where funaing and completion have been delayed
and cash flow has become uncertan

The ageing of these recevables I1s as follows,

Group

210 2008

£m £m

Upto 3months 0.9 11
306 months 16 16
Cwvor 6 months 86 87
91 94

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of £40 6m (2009 £38 6m) were past due but not impared These relate to trade recevables which
are past due at the reporting date but are not considered mparad as there has not been a signficant change in credit quality and the amounts
are stil considered recoverable

The againg of these recevables Is as follows.

Group

2010 2000

£m £m

Upto 3months 3.0 351
3to & months 58 13
Over 6 months 38 22

406 3B6
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18 Trade and other recenables continued
The camying amounts of the Group's trade and other recervalles are denominated in the following currencies

Group
2010 2008
£m £m
Stering 891 656
Euro 213 229
Hong Kong dollar 275 211
Australian dollar 167 114
Other* 24.6 225
1792 1435
" Oher cumences nebde Chinese renminbi, Singapore doltar, Polsh Zioty and Swedish ona,
Moverment on the provision for impaiment of trade receivables 1s as follows
Group
2010 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 94) (100
Prowisions for recevables impairrment (2.4) 28)
Recenvables wntten off dunng the year as uncoliectble 24 29
Unused provisions released 05 -
Exchange movements 0.2) 05
At 31 December 1) Q4
The creaton and release of the prowison for mpared recevables have bean ncluded in other operating expenses in the Income staternent
The other classas within trade and other recevables do not contain Imparred assels
The Group does not hold any collateral as secunty
19 Cash and cash equvalents
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2000
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand N7 508 - 192
Short-term bank deposits 55 308 - -
972 816 - 192

The effective nterest rate on short-term bank deposits as at 31 Decembser 2010 was 0 87% (2009 O 62%), these deposits have an average
matunty of 25 days (2009 5 days)

Cash subject 10 restnctions in Asia Pacrfic amounis to £17 4m (2009 £16 7m) which 1s cash pledged to banks in relation to property
management contracts and cash remittance resmctions in certan countnes. These amounts are consolidated
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

19 Cash and cash eguivalents continued
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts inciude the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

Group Corrpany

2010 2000 2010 2009

£m am £ £m
Cash and cash equivalents 972 816 - 192
Bank overdraits (Note 22) 0N 07 &3 -
96.5 809 6.3) 192

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following curencies

Sterling 369 298 - 210

Euro 41 64 - (18"
Hong Kong daollar 273 229 - -
Singapore dollar 23 48 - -
Australran dollar 61 36 - -
Chiness renmink 11 a1 - -
South Korean wan 13 10 - -
US dollar 35 05 - -
Cther cumrencies** 46 26 - -
972 816 - 192

* The Company's Stering and BLro accounts are menaged wihin a Group pooling banking arangerment Asal 31 Decernber 2010, no net overdeaits exasted within either pool 2009 - £l
= Other cumances hclide Talwan dollar Maca pataca Thar bahi, Japanese yen, Polish zioty and Swedish krora

20 Trade and other payables — current

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m fm £m
Deferred constterabon 32 42 - -
Trade payables 356 324 48 32
Amounts owad to subsidiary undertalangs - - 15 34
Cther taxaton and socia) secunty 24.3 226 - 43
Other payablos 7.9 30 04 -
Accruals and deferred income 1389 1028 57 38
2099 1650Q 124 147

21 Trade and other payables — non-current
Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
£m £m £m £
Deferred consideration 16.6 110 - -
Other payabies 02 01 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 53 137

16.8 111 53 137
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22 Borrowings
Group Company
200 2000 2010 209
on £m fm o
Cument
Bank overdrafts Q7 o7 63" -
Unsacured bank loans due wathin one year or on demand 51 49 - -
Loan notes 04 o7 - -
Fnancs leases 0.1 - - -
63 63 63 -
Nor-current
Unsecured bank loans 39 87 - -
Loan notes - 03 - -
Finance leases 01 - - _
40 a0 - -

* The Company’s Stering and ELro accounts are managed within a Group pooling banking amangement As at 31 Decermbaer 2010, no nal overdrafis exdsted within edhar pool 2008 i)

In 2007, the Group borrowed £19 8m for the acquisiton of Granite Partrers LLC in the US (now Savills LLC) The borrowings are denominated in
US dolfiers Intarest s fixed at 5 315% via an interest rate swap untl matunty date At 31 Decemnber 2010, at the year end exchange rate, £9 Om
was outstanding (2009 £13 6m) USD8m 1s due within one year

In 2008, £0 6m of the Vanable interest Rate Guaranteed Loan Notes 2006 were 1ssued as pan congderation for the acquistion of the business
and assets of PCA Management Consuttanis Limited As at 31 December 2010, £0 4m (2009 £0 5m) were sl n issue and dus within one year
Interest 1s payable half yearly

Bank loans are denominated in a number of cumencies and bear nterest at LIBOR or foreign equivalents as appropnate to the country in which
the borrowing 1s iIncurred

The exposure of the Group's borowings to Interest rate changes and the contractual repneing dates at the balance sheet date are

Group Caompary
2010 2009 2010 2000
m em £m £m
Less than 1 year 12 14 6.3 -
Between 1 and 2 years 90 03 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 01 136 - -
10.3 153 63 -
Group Cormgany
2010 2000 2010 2008
The matunty of non-current bomowings 1$ as falows fm m £m £m
Between 1 and 2 years 40 53 - -
Between 2 and 5 years - 37 - —
4.0 90 - -

The effectve interest rates at the balance sheet date were as folows.
Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Bank overdraft 2.82% 396%
Bark loans 5 32% 532%
Loan notes 500% 351%
Finance leases 10 26% _

The camying amounis of borowings approxamats to far velue
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22 Borrowings continued
The camying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

Group Cormpany
2010 2000 m0 2008
£m £m £m £m
Sterling 04 10 63 -
US dollar 90 136 - -
Euro 0.6 06 - -
Australian dollar 02 - - -
Hong Kong dollar 01 - - -
Thas baht - 01 - -
103 153 63 -

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing faclites
Floating rate — expinng within 1 year of on demand 156 202 63 -
Floatng rate — expinng between 1 and 5 years 500 800 - -

In Septernber 2010 the £60m muit-currency revolng credit facility was recuced to £50m, by means of a voluntary partial cancelation by Savills
as It was surplus to forecast requirements As at 31 Decembber 2010 this faciity was undrawn This faciity was cancelled on 10 March 2011 and
replaced with 2 new £50m muli-currency revoiving credit facility, which expires on 31 March 2014

23 Dervative financial instruments

Group Company

Assets Lizbithes Assots Liabihes

2010 £m £m fm £m
Interest rate swaps — at far value - 04 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts — at far value - 01 - -
Total - 05 - -
Less non-current portion - 0.4) - -
Current portion - 01 - -
Group Compary

Assels Uabiites Assats Liabfitles

2009 £m £mn em £m
Interest rate swaps ~ at far value - 07 - _
Forward foreign exchange contracts - at far value C1 - - -
Total 01 Q7 - -
Less non-current porton - 07 - -
Current portion 01 - — _

Interest rate swaps
The notional princial amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts I relation to the US borrewing at 31 December 2010 were
£90m (2009 £136m) At 31 Decermber 2010, the fixed interast rate was 5 315% The fioating rate 1s USD LIBCR

Gains and lossas on interest rate swaps are recognised in the ncome statement

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The notional pincipal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2010 were £14 9m (2009 £14 2m)
The non-current portion represents contracts that mature m over one year

Gans and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised in the income statement.

Hedge of net Investments in foreign operations

The Group's USD borowing amounting to USD14m (2009 USD22 Om) s designated as a hedge on the net nvestment In the Group's US
subsidiary The farr value of the USD borrowing at 31 December 2010 was £9 Om (2008 £13 6m) The foreign exchange loss of £0 5m

(2008 gan of £2 1m)on rangaton of the bomowing to cumency at the balance sheet dats 15 recognised in foreign exchangs reserves in other
comprehensive Income The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the fair value of the dernvative assets on the balance sheet
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24(a) Prowisions for other habilities and charges

Professional
indemmty Ddapdation Cnerous Gmoup
clams pProveions lazses Total Cormperry
£m fm £m £m
At 1 January 2010 7.2 1.2 12 96 15
Released dunng the year (1.4) - - (1.4) -
Prowded dunng the year 69 08 11 8.8 -
Utlisad dunng the year 08 ©1) ©7 (16) c1n
Exchange movements 02 - - 0.2 -
Total 121 19 16 156 14
Less non-cument porton 56 14 08 78 12
Current portion 65 05 08 7.8 0.2
Professonal
ndemnity  Diapecation Onerous Group
clams PIOVISIONS leases Total Company
2009 £m £m £m £m £m
Current 42 03 o7 52 03
Non-current 30 09 05 44 12
Total 72 12 12 g6 156

24({b) Employee benefit cbligations
In addibon to the defined benefit obligation pension scheme disciosed In Note 9, the following are included in employee benefit obligatons
Totd

Group £m
At 1 January 2010 8.0
Acquistons (Note 16() 03
Prowded dunng the year 5.0
Utlised dunng the year 2.8
Exchange movernents 0.9
At 31 Becember 2010 14

The above provisions relate to holiday pay and long service leave N Asia Pacfic and Europe and are expected to crystalise within five to seven
years of the balance sheat date Bonusss are included within accruals (Note 20)

The Company had no emplayee benefit obligations at 31 December 2010 or 31 Decemnber 2008
The above employee benefit obligasons have been analysed between current and noncurrant as follows

Group

2010 08

£ m

Cument 4.7 31
Non-cumrent 6.7 49

14 a0
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Notes to the financial statements
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25 Share capital — Group and Company

2010 2006 2010 2009
Authonsed and allotted Number of shares Nurnber of shares fm £m
Ordinary shares of 2 5p each
Authonsed 202,000,000 202,000,000 51 51
Allotted, called up and fully pad 132,152,375 131,841,846 33 33
Moverment in allotted, called up and fully pad share capital
2010 2000
Number of shares £m Number of shares £m
At 1 January 131,841,846 33 131,840,933 33
Allotted to direct participants on exercise of
optons under the Savils Sharesave Scheme 310,529 - 913 -
At 31 December 132,152,375 33 131,841,846 33

Al the Arnual General Meeting held on 5 May 2010, the shareholders gave the Company authenty, subject to stated conditions, to purchase
for canceliaton up to 13,184,184 of its own ordinary shares (AGM held on 6 May 2009 13,184,083) Such authonty remans valid untl the

conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting or 1 July 2011 whichever 1s the earlier

26 Share-based payment
Detals of the terms of the following schemes ara contaned n the Rermuneration report on pages 35 to 36

26(@) Savlls Executive Share Option Scheme (2001)

The following share options have been granted under the Sawvlls Executive Share Option Scheme (2001) and were outstanding at
31 December 2010

2010 20090
Number of Number of
shares shares
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price 000 ‘000
30 March 2004 7 years from 30 March 2007 Unapproved 217 8p 46 46
14 March 2005 7 years from 14 March 2008 Approved 3213p 37 a7
14 March 2005 7 yeers from 14 March 2008 Unapproved 321 3p 91 N
16 Apnl 2008 7 years from 16 Apnl 2011 Unapproved 300 1p 160 180
17 Apnl 2009 7 years from 17 Apni 2012 Approved 288 8p 2 21
17 Apnl 2009 7 years from 17 Apnl 2012 Unapproved 2888p 530 530
19 Apnl 2010 7 years from 19 Apnl 2013 Unapproved 3411 0p 42 -
1,307 235

A reconciliaton of ophon movements over the year to 31 December 2010 1s shown below
2010 2009
Weighted Weghted
Number of average Number of average
shares exercisa shares =2 (e o
'000 phce 00 proe
Qutstanding at 1 January 885 291 8p 471 360 7p
Granted 422 341 0p 551 288 8p
Forfetted - - (137} 5166p
Cutstanding at 31 December 1,307 307.7p 885 201 8p
Exercisable at 31 December 174 293.9p 174 2339p

The weighted average share price on the date of exercise dunng the year was £ril (2009 £nil) and total consideraton of £nil (2009 £ni)
was recenved
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26(b). Savills Sharesave Scheme

Dunng the year 310,529 shares (2008 913 shares) were allotted direct 1o participants on the exercise of optons under the Sawvills Sharesave
Scheme, for consideration of £986,853 The following table shows the options remaning outstanding as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Number of Nurnber of
shares shares
Date of grent Exercise price Exercese pesiod 000 ‘000
5 May 2008 5105p 010709-0101 10 - 194
31 October 2007 3180p 011210-0106 11 467 814
29 October 2009 267 Op 011212-01 0613 1,096 1,210
1,563 2218

A reconciiabon of option movements over the year to 31 December 2010 1s shown balow
2010 2000
Weightad Welghted
Number of averaga Nurmber of average
sharas axercso shares exXercss
‘000 prce ‘000 prioe
Outstanding at 1 January 2,218 307 Op 1,253 35290
Granted - - 1,210 267 0p
Forfeitecaxpired (344) 409.8p {(244) 3438p
Exercised 311} 3178p (1) 3180p
Outstanding at 31 December 1,563 282 2p 2,218 3070p
Exercisable at 31 December 467 3180p 194 5105p

The weighted average share pnoe on the date of exercise dunng the year was 363 8p (2009 334 8p)

26(c) Sawvlls Deferred Share Bonus Plan

The following awards of deferred shares, without exsrcise pice, have been granted under the Savills Deferred Share Bonus Plan (the DSBP) and
were outstanding at 31 Decermnber 2010

200 2009

Nurmber of Number of

shares shares

Date of award Defesred period Vestng date '000 ‘000
14 March 2005 5 years 14 March 2010 - 1,028
13 March 2006 5years 13 March 2011 A 34
19 March 2007 3years 19 March 2010 - 775
19 March 2007 5 years 19 March 2012 560 592
17 March 2008 3years 17 March 2011 2,112 2,289
17 March 2008 5years 17 March 2013 1,245 1.305
17 April 2000 3years 17 Apnl 2012 833 886
17 Apxil 2009 5 years 17 Apnl 2014 535 563
13 April 2010 3years 13 Apnt 2013 497 -
13 Aprit 2010 5years 13 April 2015 57 -
5873 7472

As at 31 December 2010, 423 (2009 439) indwduals held outstanding awards under the DSBP  Awards made under the DSBP from 2006
onwards are subect to rolled-up divwdends whereby the number of shares awarded will be Increased on the vesting date to reflect dvdends
pad to sharehokders throughout the deferred penod
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26(c) Sawvills Deferred Share Bonus Plan continued
A reconciliaton of award movements over the year to 31 December 2010 1s shown below
2010 2000
Wenghted Weighted
average average
Number of share pnca Nurnber of share price
shares atdate shares aldate
'000 of exercisa o0 of exercesn
Quitstanding at 1 January 7,472 - 7,893 -
Granited 574 - 1,498 -
Forfeitec/expired (201) - (303) -
Exercisad {1,972 353.3p (1,616) 288 6p
Qutstanding at 31 December 5,873 - 7472 -
Exercisable at 31 December 10 - B -

The weaighted average exercise pnee for awards granted under this scheme (s £nil 2009 £nl) Awards over 9,998 shares wers exercisable under

this scheme as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2000 8,465)
26(d) Sawvilis Deferred Share Plan

The following awards of deferred shares, withoUt exercise pnce, have been granted under the Savils Deferred Share Plan (the DSP) and

remamned outstanding at 31 December 2010

2010 2009

Number of Nurmber of

shares shares

Date of grant Daferned parkod Vesing date 000 ‘000
10 Qctober 2006 5 years 10 October 2011 9 366
19 March 2007 3ysars 19 March 2010 - 383
19 March 2007 5 years 19 March 2012 37 37
17 September 2007 3years 17 September 2010 - 170
17 September 2007 5 years 17 Septernber 2012 12 12
17 March 2008 3 years 17 March 2011 664 693
17 March 2008 5 years 17 March 2043 30 37
23 September 2008 3years 23 September 2011 124 138
7 October 2008 3 years 7 October 2011 - 42
17 Apal 2009 3vyears 10 April 2012 615 615
10 September 2009 3years 10 September 2012 14 17
10 September 2009 5 years 10 September 2014 23 23
13 Apnl 2010 3 years 13 Apnl 2013 1,337 -
13 Aprlt 2010 4 years 13 Apni 2014 348 -
13 Apnl 2010 5 years 13 Apnl 2015 1,557 -
8 September 2010 3 vears 08 September 2013 394 -
5,164 2,533

As at 31 December 2010, 236 indviduals (2009 102) held cutstanding awards under the DSP Awards made under the DSP are subject to
rolled-up dvdends whereby the number of shares awarded will be increased on the vestng date to reflect dvidends pard to shareholders dunng

the deferred pencd

A reconciliation of award movernents over the year to 31 December 2010 1s shown below
2010 2000
Wenghted Weighted
AVrEN
Number shate price Number of share price
of shares atdate shares at date
000 of axercse 000 of exercise
Cutstanding at 1 January 2,533 - 2,099 -
Granted 3,674 - 656 -
Forferted/expired 7)) - 2 -
Exercised (972) 358 0p {219) 3H17p
Quitstanding at 31 December 5,164 - 2,533 -
Exercisable at 31 December 5 — - ~

The weightad average exercise pnce for awards granted under this scheme 1s £nil 2008 nil) Awards over 5,340 shares were exercisable under

this scheme as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009 nil)
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26(d) Sawvills Deferred Share Plan continued

Fair value of opbons
Optons and awards for the CSBP, Sharesave Scheme and ESOS were valued at far value using the Actuanal Binominal model
of actuanes Lane Clark & Peacock LLP

The key assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

Risk free rate 21% pa -5 0% p a depending on grant date and expectad Ife

Volatlity 28% p a. - 51% p a. depending on grant date

Employes tumover zero for ESOS

Early exercise 50% of employees exercise ealy when options and awards are 20% in the money
Performance cntena All vest after three years {only relevant for ESOS)

The expectad volatlity s measured over the three or five years pror 10 the date of grant to match the vesting penod of the award The nsk free
rate is the yeld on a zero coupon UK Govermment bonds at sach grant date, with term based on the expected Ife of the option or award

Farr value of options and awards at grant dates are

Grant Grantdate Far value paxce
DSBP 2005 15 March 2005 2782
DSBP 2006 13 March 2006 5860
DSBP 2007 19 March 2007 €560
DSBP 2008 17 March 2008 3283
0SBP 2000 17 Apnl 2009 2859
038P 2010 17 Apnl 2010 3402
Sharesave 2006 & May 2006 2320
Sharesave 2007 31 October 2007 960
Sharesave 2009 29 October 2009 1209
DSP 2006 10 October 2006 5605
DSP 2007 19 March 2007 8560
DSP 2007 17 September 2007 4088
DSP 2008 17 March 2008 3283
DSP 2008 23 September 2008 2828
DSP 2008 7 Cctober 2008 2390
DSP 2009 17 Apnl 2009 2889
DSP 2009 10 September 2009 3519
DSP 2010 17 Apnl 2010 3402
DSP 2010 8 September 2010 3170
ESOS 2004 30 March 2004 738
ESOS 2005 30 March 2005 1028
ESCS 2008 16 Apnl 2008 87
ESOS 2009 17 Apnl 2009 1368
ESOS 2010 17 Apni 2010 1603

The total charge for the year relating 10 employee share-based payments plans was £11 3m (2009 £9 8m), all of which related to equity-settied
share-based payment transactons Aftar deferred tax, the charge was €8 6m (2009 £7 Om)
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27. Retained eamings and other reserves
Shara-

besad Profit Total Captal  Foreign
payments  Treasury  and boss retaned redempbon  exchange Revaluaton Total other
reserve shares accont’  eamngs® resatve resqlves  wmsatves resemves
Group £m £m fm fm £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2010 264 (29 2) 940 912 0.3 189 04 196
Proifit atinbutable to owners of the Company - - 250 250 - - - -
Other comprehensive Income - - 82 8.2 - 48 02 46
Employee share option scheme
— Value of services provided 113 - - 113 - - - -
— Exercige of options {141) 101 40 - - - - -
- Lapsa of options 02 - 02 - - - - -
Purchase of treasury shares - (11.2) - {112 - - - -
Dvidends - - {10 (11.0) - - - -~
Transactons with non-controlling interests - - (146) (14.6) - - - -
Balancs at 31 December 2010 234 {303 1058 98.9 0.3 237 02 242
Balance at 1 January 2009 243 (308) 993 928 03 283 09 295
Profit atnbutable to owners of the Company - - 89 89 - - - -
Other comprehensive Income - - B1) B8 1) - B4 05} 09
Employee share option scheme
— Value of services provided 98 - - g8 - - - -
- Exercise of optons 77 63 14 - - - - -
Purchase of reasury shares - 4an - 47 - - - -
Disposals (net of 1ax) - - 1) {1 - - - -
Dmvdends - - (74) 74 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2008 264 (2020 940 2 03 189 04 196

nciuded within Praiit and loes account ks tax on tems taken directly o equity Note 11) as disclossd above

28 Contingent habilities

In common with comparable professional services busnessas, the Group 18 Involved N a number of disputes N the ordinary course of business
Provision 1s made 1N the financial statements for all clams where costs ars fikely to be incured and represents the cost of defending and
concluding clams, The Group cames professional indemnity insuUrance and no separate disclosure Is made of the cost of clams covered by
Insurance as to do so could senously prejudics the posiion of the Group
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29 Operating lease commitments — minimum lease payments

Property keases Other lezses Totad
010 2000 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group om £&m £m £m m £m
Future aggregate murimum lease payments Under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows,
Within 1 year 215 184 23 20 238 204
Betwoen 1 1o 5 years 502 503 24 21 526 524
After 5 years 211 240 - - 211 240
92.8 R7 47 41 97.5 968

Thare are no operaling lease commitments payable by the Company at 31 December 2010 {2009 £ni)

Sgnficant operating leases relats to the vanous property leases for Savills offices in the United Kingdom, Europe and Asia Pacific There are no
sigreficant non-cancellable subleases

30 Cash generated from operations

Group Compary

2010 2008 2010 2009

fm £m £m £m

Profit for the year 251 a2 50 31

Adjustments for

Income tax {Note 11} 117 43 (16) (de)]
Depreciaton (Note 15) 66 70 05 04
Amortisation of ntangibies (Note 14) 37 36 03 03
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 02 - -
Imparment of goodwill and intangble assets (Note 14) 44 43 - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary, associate and avallable-for-sale investments (Note 6{z)) 0.1 - - -
Net finance expense/{income) (Note 10} 1.0 - {10} 20)
Share of post-tax profit from associates and joint ventures (Note 16(a)) {12 (26) - -
Decrease in employee and retirement obligations 3.6} (4 6} {0.3) 02
Exchange movement on operating actviies 01 27 {0.9) 38
Increase/{cecreasea) n provisions 58 12 {0.1) 03}
Charge for defined benefit pension scherme (Note 9) 09 41 01 o2
Impairment of avaiiable-for-sake Mvestments ncluded within operating income 03 - 02 -
Charge for share-based compensaton 1.3 98 06 03
Exercise of share optons - - (10.1) 63}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 66.2 392 (7.3} 27
Increase n work In progress o7 1) - -
(ncrease)decrease n trade and other recevables {29 4) 10 34 {2 6)
Increase/{decrease) n trade and other payables 421 61 (2.3) 68

Cash generated from/{used in) operations 782 462 {130} 15
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31 Analysis of cash net of debt
Non-cash fiow Exchange A
At January movements Cash flows movement Decernber
2010 an Acquisthons fm £m £m £m omn
Cash and cash equivalents 816 - - 139 17 972
Bank overdrafts o7 - - - - ©n
809 - - 139 17 96.5
Bark loans (136) - - 51 05) ©.0)
Loan notes (10) 02 - 09 1) 0.4)
Fnance Leases - 03 - 01 - 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents net of debt 66.3 {05 - 200 11 869
tNon-cash flow Exchange A3
Al 1 January Acqusitions movements Cash flows moverment Docermber
2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 73 - - 132 69 8186
Bank overdrafts - - - 0N - on
753 - - 125 ©9) 809
Bank loans ©09) - - 45 28 (136)
Loan notes 87N - - 69 08 {10
Cash and cash equivalents net of debot 487 - - 239 33 663

32 Related party transactions

The Group 1s controlled by Sawlls plc, a company registered in England and Wales
Marketing services were provided by Advents Group ple, an associate company, to Savils (L&F) Lmited on an am's-length basis to the value of

£2 ¥m (2009 £2 6m)
Loans to related parbes

Loans to associates and joint ventures are disclosed in Note 16(2) All loans to associates and joint ventures are non-interest beanng

Compary transactons

The Company provided corporate function services to its subsdianes at an am's-length value of £10 1m (2009 £9 5m)

Drnadends received from subadianes were £ni (2008 £nil) Amounts outstanding from subsidianes as at 31 Decamber 2010 are disclosed in

Notes 18, 20 and 21
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33 Events after the balance sheet date

Thomas Dawidson

On 31 January 2011 the Group acquired the business and undertalkung of Thomas Davidson & Partners, a London based retal propenty
consultancy business The busmess brings with it specialist expertise and knowledge in the retall sector and the acquisiion will strengthen the
existing Central London retall business

Conasderaton of £2 5m was paid on completon, with a further £2 5m payable in ecqual nstalments on the first, second and third annversanes
subject to seruce condibons. Goodwill and other ntangible assets of £1 7m and £0 8m respeciively have been provisionally determined

Sweden

On 25 February 2011 the Group entered nfo an agreement to acquire 100% of the shares of Stadsmuren AB, a Stockholm based property
and project management firm and 70% of the shares of Loudden AB, a Stockholm based faciites management firm, a related company of
Stadsmuren The acquisiton will provide a new senvice offenng for the Group's Swedish clients and will add to its European property
managarment network.

Total consderaton of up to £5 5m (£3 7m for Stadsmuren and £1 8m for Loudden) will be paid of which £4 1m was paxd on transacton close
with a further €1 4m payable by February 2012 subyect to eamings performance dunrg 2011 Al consideration payments will be settied n cash
out of exsting resources, including debt faciites Goodwill and other ntangible assets of £2 3m and £0 8m respectvely have been provsionally
determined with respect to Stadsmuren and £1 2m and 20 4m respectively with respect to Loudden

Credit faciity agreement
The £60m muiti-currency revoiving credit facilily was cancelled on 10 March 2011 and replaced with a new £50m mulbi-cumency revolving credit
facilty, which expires on 31 March 2014
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Shareholder information
Key dates for 2011
Date
Annual General Mesting 4 May
Fnancial half year end 30 June
Announcement of half year results 18 August
Website Professional advisers and senvice providers
\isit our investor relations website wiww savills com for full up to date Sdlicitors
nvestor relafions information, including the latest share pnce, recant CMS Cameron McKenna LLP
annual and half year reponts, results prasentations and financial news. Mitre House
160 Aldersgate Street
Shareholder enquines London
For shareholder snquines please contact our Registrars, Eguiniy EC1A40D
For general enqunes pleass call our Sharehoider Sennces helpline on Registrars
0871 384 2018 {overseas holders need to nng +44 (0)121 415 7047) Equiniy
Calls to Equinit’'s 0871 numbers are charged at 8p per minute from Aspect House
a BT landine OCther telephony serce providers costs may vary Spencer Road
Lings are open from 8 30am to & 30pm, Monday to Fnday, Lancing
excluding bank holidays West Sussex
For further administrative quenes in respect of your sharehalding BN99 6DA
please access our Reqistrars’ website at www shareview co Uk Audrtors
_ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Electronic communications 1 Embankment Place
If you would prefer to receive sharsholder communicatons London WC2N BRH
glectrorcally in future, INcluding your annual and half yearly reports Joint Stockbrokers
and notices of meetings, please visit our Regstrars’ website, UBS Investment Bank
www shareview co Uk and follow the link to ‘Sign up for paper- 1 Finsbury Avenue
free communicatons’ London EC2M 2PP
Numis Secunbes Ltd
The London Stock
Exchange Buiding
10 Patemoster Square
London EC4AM 7LT
Prncipal Bankers
Barclays Bank Pic
1 Churchill Place
London E14 SHP

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking
statements

Certan statements included in this Annual Report are forward-looking
and are therefore sutyect to nsks, assumptions and uncertanties that
could causs actual rasults to differ matenally from those expressed or
implied because they relate to future events These forward-looking
statements include, but are not Imited to, statements relating 1o the
Company’s expectations Forward-looking statements can be
dentified by the usa of relevant termnology ncluding the words
‘beleves’, ‘estimates’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’, 'Intends’, 'plans’, ‘goal’,
target’, ‘am’, ‘may’, ‘wl’, ‘woukd’, ‘could’ or 'should’ or, n each case,
their negative or other vanations or comparable termnology and
include all matters that are not histoncal facts They appear na
rnumber of places throughout this Annual Report and includs
statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or curment expectatons
and those of our officers, directors and employees conceming,
amongst other things, our results of operations, financial condition,
lqudity, prospects, growth, strategies and the businesses we cperate

Ctther factors that could cause actual resuts to differ matenally from
thoss estmated by the forward-looking statements include, but are not
Imited to

— global economic businass conditons,

— monetary and interest rate policies,

- forexgn curmency exchange rates,

-~ equity and property prices,

- the Impact of competivon, inflaton,

- changes to ragulations, taxes,

- changes to consumer saving and spending habits, and
— our success Inmanaging the above factors.

Consequently, our actual future financial condition, performance and
results could differ matenally from the plans, goals and expectations
set out In our forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes
no obligation to publicly updats any forward-iooking staterment,
whether as a result of new Information, future events or othenwvise
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